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Finance & Insurance Committee 
 


February 11, 2009 
 


Tentative Minutes 
 
1) Call to Order: Chairman Hopkins called the meeting to order at 2:30p.m. Present: Ben Diehl, Skip Kenney, 


Ed Rice, Rich Gronewold, Pat Saunders and Paul White. Others: Treasurer John Coffman, Sheriff Greg 
Beitel, Health Dept. Administrator Doreen O’Brien, Solid Waste Director Steve Rypkema, Greg Query with 
Query Insurance, Larry Boes, Bob DeArvil Marcia Heuer, Lynne Kilker and Don Conn.  
 


2) Approval of Minutes: January 14, 2009: Motion by Kenney, 2nd by Rice to approve the minutes. Motion 
carried. 
 


3) Approval of Bills:  
Motion by Saunders, 2nd by Diehl to approve the Treasurer bills in the amount of $161.71. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Rice, 2nd by Kenney to approve the Finance & Administrator bills in the amount of $56,546.50. 
Motion carried. 
 


4) Public Comment: None 
 


5) Insurance Report: Mr. Query distributed and discussed the annual review of coverages. He also informed 
the Committee that they need to elect a HIPAA Privacy Officer for the County. Motion by Rice, 2nd by 
Diehl to approve Treasurer Coffman as the HIPAA Privacy Officer. Motion carried.  
 


6) Finance Report: Treasurer Coffman disturbed a copy of the budget performance and discussion followed. 
 


7) New Business: None 
 


8) Old Business:  
a) Exelon Update: Treasurer Coffman states nothing new to report. 


 
b) County Administrator Search: Chairman Rice states Springsted has 35 applicants and will be narrowing 


it down to 10 for the Executive Committee which will in turn narrow down to 5 for interviews. 
 


c) Board Meeting Update: Chairman Rice informs the Committee that future County Board Meetings will 
be held at the Judicial Center due to maintenance issues. 
 


d) Treasurer Coffman distributes a “Resource Analysis” packet and explains a question was raised in 
Personnel & Salary – County Clerk & Recorder Committee in regards to his staff increases and he just 
wanted his Committee to have the same information. 
 


9) Adjournment: As no further business was before the Committee, Chairman Hopkins declared the meeting 
adjourned. Time: 3:27 p.m. 


 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Tiffany O'Brien 
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“Improved Mapping for Informed Decisions” 
Oregon, Illinois  61061             


 


 
2 February 2009 


 
 
 
Parcels / Devnet 


We are now verifying our parcel information with our DevNet database. 
This will help create boundary files for our various districts and municipalities. 
 


 
Aerial  
 


Kris and Larry will locate the control points for our 2009 aerials.  The 2009 flight 
will be flown in early spring. 


 
Map / Address Booklets 
 


We have updated our Map Booklet for 2009.  The Address Booklet has been 
completed for the County.  Municipality addresses are not in the booklet. 


 
Remote Access 


 
Remote data access for the membership is proceeding.  The current issue is 
internet access outside the secure net of the county network.  We are looking into 
different options to solve this issue 


 
ArcGIS Server 
 


Development continues on the remote mapping program.  Outside internet access 
problem is addressed. 


 
 
 
 







Equipment / Software 
 


With the new year’s project more computing power is needed.  We will be 
purchasing new computers for the GIS personnel.  The current computers will be 
purchased by another agency thus reducing the cost of the new computers. 
A study of contouring software is underway.  This will allow the Partnership to 
generate contours for the entire county. 


 
  
Larry Callant 
GIS Coordinator 
Ogle County GIS Partnership 
 








H.E.W. & Solid Waste Committee Meeting 
 


February 10, 2009 
 


Tentative Minutes 
 


1. Call to Order: Chairman Jason Bauer called the meeting to order at 4:04 p.m. Present: Fred Horner, 
Lynne Kilker, Jim Barnes, Dorothy Bowers and Dan Janes. Others: Health Dept. Administrator Doreen 
O’Brien, Solid Waste Director Steve Rypkema, Dr. Champley and Janet Kacvinsky with ROE. Absent: 
Dennis Williams. 
 


2. Approval of Minutes: January 13, 2009: Motion by Bowers, 2nd by Horner to approve the minutes. 
Motion carried. 
 


3. Public Comment: None 
 


4. Health Department:  
a. Monthly Report: Health Dept. Administrator O’Brien distributed various hand-outs. 


 
b. Kings Sewer Update: Health Dept. Administrator O’Brien stated the process is moving slow but 


positive. 
 


5. Regional Office of Education:  
a. Monthly Invoices: Motion by Bowers, 2nd by Horner to approve the ROE bills in the amount of 


$5,634.75. Motion carried. 
 


b. Truancy Report: Janet Kacvinsky distributed a copy of the Lee/Ogle Truancy Protocol and gave 
a brief overview of the program. 
 


6. Solid Waste Department: 
a. Monthly Invoices: Motion by Bowers, 2nd by Janes to approve the bills in the amount of 


$892,926.39. Motion carried. 
 


b. Financial Report: It was noted the expenditures are at 13% with income at 31%. 
 


c. Host Fees Report / Annual CPI Adjustments: Solid Waste Director Rypkema distributed copies 
of the annual report for Veolia Orchard Hills Landfill and Rochelle Landfill. 
 


d. Waste Reduction/Recycling Grant Applications: Baileyville Bandits 4-H Club: Motion by 
Barnes, 2nd by Bowers to approve the worm bin grant in the amount of $208.40. Motion carried. 
 


e. Clean-up Day Grant Application: Motion by Barnes, 2nd by Bowers to approve the Monroe 
Township grant not to exceed $2,000. Motion carried. 
 


f. Status of Rochelle Host Agreement: Solid Waste Director Rypkema updated the Committee 
about the agreement and stated they have received some payments and the process is very time 
consuming. 
 


g. Solid Waste Plan Update: Still in progress. 
 


 
 







7. Animal Control: 
a. Monthly Invoices: Motion by Bowers, 2nd by Horner to approve the Pet Population bills in the 


amount of $4,012.85. Motion carried. Motion by Horner, 2nd by Bowers to approve the Animal 
Control bills in the amount of $10,163.65. Motion carried. 
 


b. Feral Cat Program: Dr. Champley asked for permission to purchase more traps for the program, 
the Committee agreed. 
 


8. New Business: 
a. Vice-Chairman: Motion by Kilker, 2nd by Barnes to elect Dorothy Bowers as Vice-Chairman. 


Motion carried. 
 


b. Rice informed the Committee that the County Board meetings will be held at the Judicial Center 
in Room 202 starting this month and gave a brief update about the County Administrator search 
progress. 
 


9. Old Business:  
a. Discuss Mental Health “708” Board Applicant: Discussion took place in regards to the interview 


process and board application. Kilker states a better, more thorough process needs to be 
developed and used consistently. Bauers asks the Committee to have suggestions ready for 
implementing a new process at the next meeting. 
 


10. Adjournment: Since no further business was before the Committee, Chairman Bauer declared the 
meeting adjourned. Time: 5:45 p.m. 


 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Tiffany O'Brien 













Judiciary / Circuit Clerk / Juvenile & Probation Meeting 
 


February 10, 2009 
 


Tentative Minutes 
 


1. Call to Order: Chairman Maggie Nye called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. Present: Kim Stahl, Skip 
Kenney, Bobbie Colbert, Mel Messer and Bob DeArvil. Others: Circuit Clerk Marty Typer, Director of 
Court Services Greg Martin, Focus House Director Mike Dale, Ed Rice and Don Conn. Absent: Kim 
Gouker. 
 


2. Approval of Minutes: January 13, 2009: Motion by Kenney, 2nd by Messer to approve the minutes. 
Motion carried. 
 


3. Consideration of Monthly Invoices:   
M
carried. 
 
M
 
M
carried. 
 
M
 


4. 


otion by Stahl, 2nd by DeArvil to approve Focus House bills in the amount of $1,994.65. Motion 


otion by DeArvil, 2nd by Messer to approve Probation bills in the amount of $4,620. Motion carried. 


otion by Stahl, 2nd by DeArvil to approve Circuit Clerk bills in the amount of $3986.09. Motion 


otion by Colbert, 2nd by Kenney to approve Judiciary bills in the amount of $2,888.92. Motion carried. 


epartment Reports:D  


a. Probation: Director of Court Services Martin discussed the budget with the Committee. 


ocus House: Director of Court Services Martin discussed the budget in regards to their part time 


 


gle County Reporting Center: Monthly totals were distributed and Focus House Director Dale 


ircuit Clerk: Circuit Clerk Typer distributed and briefly explained a copy of his annual report 


5. 


 


 
b. F


/ extra time line items. Focus House Director Dale informed the Committee about the upcoming 
annual spaghetti supper scheduled for April 8th. He also distributed a monthly report; census is at
23 with 14 from with-in the county. 
 


c. O
informed the Committee about a new program starting to help kids that are suspended from 
school for less than 10 days. 
 


d. C
that is sent to State; he also commented that advertising will be available on the Judici website. 
 


New Business: Rice informs the Committee about the location of the up coming board meetings; 


ld Business:


Judicial Center, Room 202 at 5:30 p.m. 
 


6. O  None 


djournment:
 


7. A  As no further business was before the Committee, Chairman Nye declared the meeting 


ectfully submitted, 


adjourned. Time: 4:02 p.m. 
 
 
Resp
Tiffany O'Brien 

























Tentative Minutes 
 
 
 
 


Ogle County Long Range Planning- Courthouse Renovation Committee Meeting 
 


Feb. 10, 2009 
 


First Floor Meeting Room, Courthouse 
 


 
1.  Chairman Stahl calls the meeting to order at 9:02 am 
Members Present: Chm. Stahl, Hopkins, Gronewold, Rice, Messer                                                 
  Others Present: Jeanne Scholl, Sheriff Beitel, John Coffman, Doreen O=Brien, Don Conn, Bob 
De Arvil, Jim Barnes, Larry Callant, Jim Harrison, Becky Huntley , Dennis Vovos and Andrea 
Caputo, Holabird and Root 
 
2.  A motion is made to approve the minutes of Jan. 15, 2009,  by Gronewold, Second by Rice. 
Motion carried. 
 
3. Courthouse Renovation Project 
 
$ Review time line 
            March 1-Final Geo-thermal report.  Initial feed back from test well is that rock was hit at 


240 feet.  Shorter wells as a consequence.  Vovos is waiting on a fiscal report and it is in 
the works. 


 
$ The paint specialist discovered there is stencil under stencil.  Need to make a decision 


which stenciling we want to go with.  Judgement call of which part of history we want to 
capture. 


 
$ Need to tie up plan revisions. 
 
$ Looking to bid period end of March beginning of April.  May Board meeting to approve 


bids.  Construction should begin in June.  Courthouse offices will move out 
approximately May 1.  Hazardous material abatement during May-construction to begin 
in June.  Sheriff Beitel will contact the hazardous abatement companies. 


 
$ Drawings are almost finished. 
 
$ Questions about insurance- Coffman and Rice will meet with Vovos. 
 
$ Construction should take about 1 year 







             (Jim McBride enters at 9:15) 
$ Bids for moving-Rice has contacted Dave Beguin of Allied Moving of Sycamore.  He 


will put together a bid spec.  This will include moving to Mt. Morris and back. 
 
$ Rice has contacted 4 people, looking for a fifth to identify Aantique@ items and make 


decisions what to do with them.  They will be stored at the back of the Pines Road 
Annex.  Caputo has put together a CD of items, already.  Present volunteer committee: 
Jeanne Scholl, Bonnie Hendrickson, Chairman, Peri Query, Sheryl Hopkins. 


 
$ Rice moves to approve the Long Range Planning Bills for $10,000 to Verzieg and 


Bradford Systems Corp.(subject to down payment info) for $91,398.84 for a total of 
$101,398.84.  Messer seconds.  Motion carried. 


 
4. New Business 


Sheriff Beitel explains phone system and network between Oregon and Mt. Morris.  He is 
exploring wireless connection with fiber from county to Liberty Hill to Mt. Morris.  Sunday 
morning microwave link fried between county and Liberty Hill.  2 receivers failed at same site at 
same time.  The Sheriff prefers wireless connection over Verizon solution.  The county will have 
something for the future with wireless.  Nothing to be gained with Verizon.  When we walk 
away we will have nothing.  Hopkins feels it is better to invest our money in something we can 
continue to use.  Messer states we will keep old system as a back -up, redundant paths.  Sheriff 
will check into cost differential.  Sheriff is working with RMU, which is helping with savings. 
 
Hopkins moves for the Sheriff to look into the fiber and wireless communications to Liberty 
Hill.  Rice seconds.  Motion carried. 
 
5.  Public Comment- None 
 
6.Meeting moves to third floor to check out stenciling. 
Motion is made by Rice to continue to uncover the original stenciling.  Hopkins seconds.  
Motion carried. 
 
7. Next meeting Dates: 
 


Feb. 24, 2009 at 9:00 am 
 


March 10, 2009 at 9:00 am 
 
8.  There being no further business, the meeting is adjourned.  9:45. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Rebecca Huntley 
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SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS AND PLANNING &
ZONING COMMITTEE


of the
OGLE COUNTY BOARD


SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS AND 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMITTEE REPORT


FEBRUARY 11, 2009


The regular monthly meeting of the Supervisor of Assessments and Planning & Zoning Committee of
the Ogle County Board was held on Wednesday, February 11, 2009 in the County Board Room, Third
Floor, Ogle County Courthouse, Oregon, IL.


The Order of Business is as follows:


1. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF A QUORUM


Chairman Lyle Hopkins called the meeting to order at 1:01 P.M.  Roll call indicated six members
of the Committee were present; Chairman Lyle Hopkins, Larry Boes, Ben Diehl, Marcia Heuer,
Dennis Williams and Jim Barnes.  Mel Messer was absent.


2. READING AND APPROVAL OF REPORT OF JANUARY 14, 2009 MEETING AS MINUTES


Mrs. Heuer made a motion to approve the report of January 14, 2009 as minutes; seconded by
Mr. Williams. The motion carried by a voice vote


SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS PORTION OF MEETING:


3. CONSIDERATION OF MONTHLY BILLS OF SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS, AND
ACTION


Monthly bills of the Supervisor of Assessments were presented to the Committee for
consideration.  The bills totaled $626.72.  Mr. Boes made a motion to approve the payment of
the bills in the amount of $626.72; seconded by Mr. Diehl.  The motion carried by a voice vote.


4. OLD BUSINESS


Mr. Harrison stated the Board of Revue meetings were held January 14, 15, 22 and 23.  Board
adjourned for the year February 9th to finish the 2008 assessment year.  All is on schedule.  


Mr. Harrison informed the Committee that on January 28th he spoke to the Rochelle Kiwanis
Club regarding real estate taxes.


5. NEW BUSINESS


There was no new business for consideration.


PLANNING & ZONING PORTION OF MEETING:


6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


There was no unfinished business for consideration.
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7. NEW BUSINESS


A. DECISIONS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


#9-08 SPECIAL USE -- David & Paijit Ancona, 12488 E. Utility Rd., Davis Junction,
IL for a Special Use Permit to allow a Small Rural Business (dumpster storage &
rental/general hauling of non-hazardous materials including furniture, appliances,
construction debris, etc.) in the  AG-1 Agricultural District on property described as
follows and owned the petitioners:


Part of the SE1/4 of the SW1/4 Section 15 Scott Township 42N, R1E of the 3rd
P.M., Ogle County, IL, 5.0 acres, more or less
Property Identification Number: 11-15-300-003
Common Location: 12488 E. Utility Rd.


Mr. Reibel handed out a letter received from Attorney David Silverman on behalf of the
Village of Davis Junction with the recommendation that the Village of Davis Junction
would like to have considered and a memo from Mr. Reibel regarding same.


Mr. Barnes asked have there been any requests to have the property cleaned up?  Mr.
Reibel answered yes.  There have been administrative warning notices issued by the 
Solid Waste department, and a violation file from the Zoning office in 1997 for storage of
inoperable vehicles and junk.  There is an active violation now for the running of the
business without a Special Use permit and storage of junk, inoperable motor vehicles
and unlicensed motor vehicles.  Mr. Barnes asked when were notices sent to him? 
Were they within the last year.  Mr. Reibel answered October of 2007; Mr. Barnes asked
did he cooperate?  Mr. Reibel stated that he has of late.  The case was referred to the
States Attorney and now has a stay in the case while he is going through the Special
Use process.  Mr. Barnes asked if Davis Junction and Scott Township both have filed
objections to this request, to which Mr. Reibel answered that they have.  Mr. Hopkins
stated this business was there before Davis Junction adopted a Comprehensive Plan.


Mr. Williams asked is the fence to border the entire property and what will it look like? 
Mr. Reibel referred to the concept plan and stated the fence would only be for around
the area where the dumpsters are stored, not the entire site.


Mr. Barnes stated I’m not trying to put anyone out of business, but I would like to see the
fence in and the  place cleaned up before the Special Use is granted.  


Mrs. Heuer stated if my understanding is right, if the recommendations given by
Attorney Silverman were put in place, it would satisfy the Village of Davis Junction.  Mr.
Reibel answers that the letter states, “These conditions will ensure that the Anconas’
proposed special use is not inadvertently converted to a junkyard and also preserve the
environmental quality of the property and surrounding areas, as well as aquifers.”


Mr. Hopkins stated I feel the Zoning Board of Appeals recommendations are what we
should stick with.  The time for public comment and testimony was at the Zoning Board
of Appeals meeting and their recommendations have covered these issues.  This
business has been there for 17 years.  The Township and Village put in ordinances after
he was there.  If he doesn’t follow the ZBA recommendation, we can pull the Special
Use permit.


Mr. Boes stated they have been asked repeatedly to clean up the property and have
ignored each request.  This concerns me as he may ignore future requests.  I feel that
before I can vote in favor of this request, he needs to clean up the property.  Mr.
Hopkins stated the issue at hand is his proposed business and the Special Use Permit,
not his lifestyle.  


Mr. Diehl asked how long is the Special Use good for?  Mr. Reibel answered the ZBA
recommends five years.  Mrs. Heuer stated Attorney Silverman requests two (2) years
with only a two (2) year extension.  The sunset point is automatic if the site is annexed
into the Village.  Mr. Reibel stated that his only concern is if the property would be
forcibly annexed.


Mrs. Heuer stated I make motion to amend staff recommendation #5 and insert valid for
two (2)years and appear before Zoning Administrator for extension not to exceed two (2)
years.  Mr. Reibel stated I don’t believe that I have the authority to approve an
extension.  The State’s Attorney has reviewed and approved the condition as drafted. 
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Mrs. Heuer stated two (2) year for review and two (2) year extension not to exceed four
(4) years total rather than five (5) as recommended by the ZBA.  Mr. Hopkins asked if
they would have to come back after four (4) years.  Mrs. Heuer stated Attorney
Silverman recommends four (4) years total.  Mr. Hopkins stated if there is no problem
after four (4) years, we shouldn’t put him out of business.  I want to leave that open
ended.


Discussion ensued regarding the request for total of four (4) years by the Village of
Davis Junction. Mr. Diehl stated he should have option to renew if he’s doing a good job. 


Mr. Williams stated I have a concern regarding the environmental issues as the County
does not have the resources to monitor this.  Discussion ensued.  Mr. Hopkins stated he
doesn’t take anything home unless it is late in the day.  It all goes right to land fill and
they have their criteria for disposing of improper materials.  


Mr. Reibel read the revised recommendation #5 as follows: This special use permit shall
be valid for a period of two (2) years from the data of approval by the Ogle County
Board.  The Supervisor of Assessments and Planning & Zoning Committee of the Ogle
County Board shall have the delegated responsibility and authority to either extend or
discontinue the Special Use Permit upon the expiration of said two (2) year period,
giving due consideration to the continued compatibility of the authorized use with the
surrounding area and other applicable factors as determined by the Committee.  The
Committee shall give notice of its intent to act on this matter as provided herein to the
owner of the land to which the Special Use Permit applies, to all adjacent land owners,
to the Village of Davis Junction, and to Scott Township.  The Committee may renew the
Special Use Permit for successive periods of time, provided any single extension shall
not exceed two (2) years.


Mrs. Heuer moved to approve the amendment to condition number 5 as read; seconded by Mr.
Diehl; Mr. Hopkins asked for a roll call vote, the vote being as follows: Heuer - yes,  Boes - no,
Barnes - no,  Diehl - yes, Williams - no, Hopkins - yes.   The motion was defeated by a tie vote
of 3-3.


Mr. Hopkins asked to I have a motion for approval of the Special Use with the original
ZBA recommended conditions.  Mr. Diehl stated the environmental issue is not up to us
and I move to approve; seconded by Mrs. Heuer. Mr. Hopkins stated we are only talking
about the business regarding the storage of dumpsters that are usually empty, not on
his total lifestyle.  Can I have a roll call vote, the vote being as follows: Mr. Boes - no,
Mr. Williams - no, Mrs. Heuer - yes, Mr. Diehl - yes, Mr. Barnes - no, Mr. Hopkins - yes. 
The motion to recommend approval was defeated by a tie vote of 3-3.


Mr. Hopkins stated the petition with be referred to the County Board for action.


B. MOBILE HOME APPLICATIONS - (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


There were no mobile home applications for consideration.


8. SUBDIVISION PLATS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


There were no subdivision plats for consideration.


9. CONSIDERATION OF MONTHLY BILLS OF PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT, AND
ACTION


Monthly bills of the Planning & Zoning Department were presented to the Committee for
consideration.  The bills totaled $403.59.  Mrs. Heuer made a motion to approve the payment of
the bills in the amount of $403.59; seconded by Mr. Barnes.  The motion carried by a voice
vote.


10. REFERRAL OF NEW PETITIONS TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS FOR PUBLIC
HEARING
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#1-09 SPECIAL USE -  Eswood School District #269, %Dwight Mayberry, Superintendent,
304 N. Main St., Lindenwood, IL to allow a private wind energy conversion system in the R-2
Single-Family Residence District on property described as follows and owned by the petitioner:


S 25' Lot 4, Lots 5&6, and part of vacated Galena St., Block 6 Lynnville (Original Town);
and Lots 1-5 Block 2 Perry’s Addition; and a 3.58 acre westerly adjoining parcel; all part
of the SW1/4 Section 5 Lynnville Township 41N, R2E of the 3rd P.M., Ogle County, IL
Property Identification Number: 19-05-326-001, -011, & -015
Common Location: 304 N. Main St.


Mrs. Heuer made a motion to refer the above new requests to the Zoning Board of Appeals for
public hearing; seconded by Mr. Williams.  The motion carried by a voice vote.


11. OTHER BUSINESS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


Election of Vice Chairman for Ogle County Supervisor of Assessments and Planning &
Zoning Committee


Mr. Hopkins asked are there any nominations for the Vice Chairman position?  Mr. Diehl stated I
nominate Mrs. Heuer; Mr. Boes seconded.   Mr. Boes moved to close nominations; the motion
was seconded by Mr. Barnes.  The motion to close nominations carried by a voice vote. The
motion to elect Mrs. Heuer to the position of Vice Chair of the Supervisor of Assessments and
Planning & Zoning Committee carried by a voice vote.


12. PUBLIC COMMENT


Mr. Hopkins stated that due to construction at the old courthouse we need to find a new place to
hold our meeting as well as the Regional Planning Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals
meetings.  I have checked with the Sheriff’s office and they have no problem with us using their
training room.  Mr. Reibel stated I have spoken with Mr. Cook and he has no problem with us
using the meeting room at the Highway Department for the Regional Planning Commission and
Zoning Board of Appeals meetings.  Mr. Hopkins stated it does not matter to me, whatever
works best for you.  It was the common consensus of the Committee that the Committee will
begin meeting at the Sheriff’s Training Room and the Regional Planning Commission and
Zoning Board of Appeals will meet at the Highway Department through the duration of the Old
Courthouse remodel project.


Mr. Reibel stated last week Mr. Cook and I attended a wind farm seminar.   There was not a lot
of new information available.  I have the book from the seminar at my office if anyone would like
to review it.  Discussion ensued regarding current wind farm companies doing research in Ogle
County.


13. ADJOURN


The regular monthly meeting of the Supervisor of Assessments and Planning & Zoning Committee of
the Ogle County Board adjourned at 1:41 P.M.  The next meeting of the Supervisor of Assessments
and Planning & Zoning Committee is scheduled for March 11, 2009 at 1:00 P.M.


Respectfully submitted,


Michael Reibel
Planning & Zoning Administrator








          


Ogle County Community 


Mental Health Board 


   


 


 
OGLE COUNTY COMMUNITY 


 
   MENTAL HEALTH ( 708 ) BOARD 


 
 MINUTES OF THE   


 
December 4, 2008 Meetings 


 
On December 4, 2008, Gordon Dockerty, President, called a meeting of the 708 Board to 
order at 7:30 a.m. at the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office, Jefferson Street, Oregon, Illinois, 
at the call of the president and a notice given to each board member and on notice posted 
at the Ogle County Courthouse and Ogle County Sheriff’s Office.  Gordon Dockerty 
presided. 
 
The secretary called the roll: 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Gordon Dockerty, President, Louise Hall, Treasurer, 
Kathleen Wilson, Dorothy Bowers, Ogle County Board Liaison  
 
ABSENT: Susan Schroeder Vice President, Marcia Heuer, Emery Harmon,   
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Craig Carpenter of Village Of Progress; Jim Sarver and Kim 
James of Sinnissippi Center’s Inc., Lorrie Bearrows of Ogle County Hospice, Judy Nettz 
and Susan Loyd of Lutheran Social Services of Illinois,  
 
The Chair announced a quorum. 
 
Approval of Agenda: Kathleen Wilson moved to accept the agenda as amended.  
Seconded by Dorothy Bowers.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Review and approval of the November minutes was done.  Louise Hall moved to 
approve the minutes for the November meeting as corrected.  Seconded by Dorothy 
Bowers.  Motion carried unanimously.    
 
Review and approval of the agency vouchers for December and January was done. 
Kathleen Wilson moved to approve the vouchers for December and January as 
submitted.  Seconded by Dorothy Bowers.  Motion carried four ayes, no nays and 
three absent. 
 
After reviewing the financial report for December. A motion was made by Louise Hall 
to approve the financial report for December as presented.  Kathleen Wilson 
seconded.   Motion carried four ayes, no nays and three absent. 
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Officer’s Reports: 
 
Lorrie Bearrows has presented a newspaper article to Kathleen Wilson for the month of 
November. 
 
Dorothy Bowers no new information regarding comments from Board Members. 
 
Unfinished Business: 
 
The video “ A Crises in Caring “ Lorrie Bearrows reported that it is now part of their 
orientation and that all of the new people (15) will be viewing it and the first week of 
January. 
 
A review of the Three Year Plan FY 2008-2011 was done by the Board a motion was 
made by Dorothy Bowers to accept the plan as presented.  Seconded by Kathleen 
Wilson.  Louise Hall suggested a couple of changes and everyone agreed.  Then Dorothy 
Bowers amended her motion to include the changes and Kathleen Wilson seconded.  
Motion carried four ayes, no nays and three absent. 
 
Human Services Directory will be printed and ready for distribution at the February 
meeting. The new Agency Brochure will also be ready for distribution. 
 
Sinnissippi Center’s Inc. has printed the 2008 Ogle County Behavioral Health Survey 
Questionnaire. Dorothy Bowers and Marcia Heuer will hand out at the County Board 
Meeting in December and pick up after the meeting, for our review at the February 
meeting. 
 
The Agencies turned in the Special Funding Request and the Board will review.  Those 
agencies that were not present will mail their request to the Board Members prior to the 
end of the month for review.  Discussion regarding the extra funding will be held in 
February. 
 
New Business: 
 
Gordon Dockerty has decided not to renew his application for another term, so it will be 
necessary to elect a new President at the February meeting. 
 
Agency Funding Hearing: 
 
Jim Sarver of Sinnissippi Centers, Inc –They have received some money.  They are 
now working on their cash reserve.   
 
They will be holding their annual Holiday Party for consumers on December 12 from 
9:30 am until 2:30 pm 
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Craig Carpenter of the Village of Progress reported that November 12th was the 
Annual Banquet on a Wednesday night at 6:30 pm at St. Mary Learning Center they had 
a good turn out and a good evening. 
 
 
Kable News will be leaving about May for Fairfield, Ohio and they will be loosing their 
tenant for the Foundation. 
 
They will be holding their Christmas Party for the consumers on December 12th.  
 
Judy Nettz and Susan Lloyd of Lutheran Social Services of Illinois - Judy Nettz 
reports that they are working with Oregon Schools.  Susan Loyd reported they have been 
very active so far this year from October and November they have had an increase of 
50%.   
 
Russ Shurbet of Easter Seals Children’s Development Center  
 
Lorrie Bearrows of Ogle County Hospice - reports that the payments are later coming 
in all the time.  According to a new census there is an increase from 48 to 50 today 
showing the growing need for services. 
 
The new building should be done in February and they will be holding an Open House. 
 
Donna Moulton of Hope –  
 
There being no objection the meeting was adjourned. 
 
The next meeting will be February 5, 2009 at the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office, Training 
Room, Jefferson Street, Oregon, IL. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Cecilia M. Zimmerman 
Recording Secretary 
 
815.732.6762 
fax  732.6147 
celiazimm@oglecom.com 
 
Approved: February 5, 2009 
 
______________________________  ___________________________ 
, President               Louise Hall, Secretary/Treasurer 
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Macon County eyes
self-insurance


Peoria approves
sales tax referendum


Manar named new
Chief of Staff


Lee County creates
safety committee


Macoupin County Board Chairman Andrew Manar has been named the new Chief of Staff
under Senate President John Cullerton. He previously served as Director of Policy and
Budget for the Senate Democrats. Manar, 33, graduated from Southern Illinois University at
Edwardsville with a major in History. His experience includes working for the late state
Senator Vince Demuzio and managing Senator Deanna Demuzio’s campaign.  


Lee County has created a new safety committee in order to prevent accidents at county
worksites and avoid lawsuits resulting from such accidents. The county's insurance
provider works through CIRMA, a risk management program owned and managed by
Illinois counties. Training is the main goal of the program and, “most of the time that's all
that is required to prevent accidents from happening,” according to Lee County Board
member John Ferrone. The committee’s duties include revision of a “boilerplate” safety
manual supplied by CIRMA. 


In a narrow 11-10 vote, the Shelby County Board approved the proposal for a $130,000
electronic control panel system for the county jail. It will operate cell doors and record all
radio transmissions and phone conversations. The law enforcement committee approved
the spending before the official approval of the county board, however the county board
affirmed the decision made by the committee.   


The Peoria County Board approved placing a referendum on April ballot asking voters to
raise the county’s sales tax rate by 1/4 of 1% to help fund public facilities. If approved by
the electorate, the sales tax increase would be the equivalent of twenty-five cents for every
$100 purchased. The referendum includes a sunset clause setting the tax increase to
expire twenty (20) years from its effective date of January 1, 2010. Money collected from
the increase would be used to help fund construction of the Peoria Riverfront Museum.


The Menard County Emergency Medical Services is seeking to enhance their current 911
calling system to aid police, paramedics, firefighters, and other emergency responders.
The original E-911 program was implemented about a year ago but the new administrator
of the County Emergency Medical Services looks to enhance the system with additional
data including mapping the location of fire hydrants along with automatic external defibrilla-
tors. The five-year project began in 2002 with an approval from Menard County voters to
implement a $3.25 surcharge on their landline phone bill.  


The Macon County Board Finance Committee is proposing a resolution to earmark a
$57,093 health insurance surplus for a hospitalization reserve, moving them closer to a
county run health insurance program. An auditor for the county stated that with the 600
county employees it puts Macon on the borderline between large and small organizations
to make self-insurance cost-effective. The surplus came from charging county departments
the projected average for health insurance costs during the previous fiscal year.
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Kankakee County
considering feral cat
colonies


Macoupin considers
wind turbines


County board to
decide fate of old
courthouse


Crawford approves
animal contract pact


Madison County
reaffirms commitment
to mentally ill


Morgan County to
lose large employer


A lawsuit filed by P&S Grain LLC and V.W. Bowman Oil Co. against the Williamson County
Board was tossed out by Judge John Speroni. The lawsuit aimed to stop the collection of a
1 percent sales tax for school construction approved by voters last February. In his ruling,
Speroni said the plaintiffs did not have standing as taxpayers to bring the lawsuit before the
court. Neither plaintiff is a voter in the county. The plaintiffs can appeal the ruling.


The ACH Food Company will be closing their plants in Jacksonville and Champaign in the
coming months resulting in the loss of 450 central Illinois jobs. The ACH plant was opened
in 1952 under the name Mrs. Tucker Shortening. According to a company statement,
employees will be given at least 60 days notice before being let go. The ACH plant is one
of Morgan County's largest employers. 


In order to diversify their economic base, Macoupin County is considering installing wind
turbines. The northwestern section of the county is a potential spot for the project recom-
mended by a Western Illinois University study. The county installed a 165 foot meteor-
ological tower over 12-16 months measuring wind velocity and the data showed a viable
location near Modesto, Illinois. The wind turbine project will diversify the county’s economic
base which is mainly focused on coal, ethanol, and tourism. 


Kankakee County Board member Ann Bernard has introduced a plan to curb the number of
feral cats in the county. The management program aims to establish feral cat colonies in
unincorporated areas of the county that would be supervised by a caretaker. Each colony
would be sponsored by an animal shelter or humane society. Critics argue that managing
cats is not that simple and it could add a burden to the county as colony cats would have
to be spayed or neutered and micro-chipped by a licensed veterinarian. There is no funding
provided in the ordinance. The proposal is before the Community Service Committee.  


The old Effingham County Courthouse could be turned into a museum. The county has
applied for an Illinois Transportation Enhancement Grant that would secure a large percent-
age of the funds needed for converting the courthouse into a museum. An additional 20
percent would have to come from local sources. County officials would like to see plans for
the courthouse finalized by July. Some favor tearing down the 137-year-old building and
making a parking lot. The county board will ultimately make the final decision.  


The Crawford County board approved a new contract for animal control with the Crawford
County Humane Society. Under the three-year contract, the Society will receive $33,000
this year, up from $25,750 per year, with a five percent increase for each of the next two
years. The contract hit a snag when a disagreement arose over whether the society was
required to pick up strays in the unincorporated areas of the county only versus in addition
to incorporated areas of municipalities. Local municipalities balked at paying additional fees
for animal pick up. The society agreed to pick up animals in all areas of the county.


Following the settlement of a lawsuit filed against the county on behalf of 11 residents of
the Shelter Care Home, Madison County officials closed the facility February 6 and have
set aside transition funding in the amount of $550,000 each year for 15 years to assist the
residents for any services they require that are not paid by state and federal sources. The
money is earmarked to support the new Chestnut Health assisted living center proposed
for Collinsville. The county also committed to continuing its support for the Madison County
Mental Health Board and the Community Development Department, both of which work in
support of the county’ mentally ill and developmentally disabled citizens. Closing the Shelter
Care Home will save county taxpayers almost a million dollars a year in annual expenses.
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Iroquois County
tries night meetings


The Illinois Liquor Control Commission has reinstated a gas station's license to sell liquor
after the McHenry County Chairman revoked it. The same gas station employee had been
caught three times from December 2007 to July 2008 selling alcohol to minors. The gas
station was fined $1,000 dollars for the first offense, $1,500 for the second, and the license
was revoked with the third offense. The Illinois Liquor Control Commission has stated the
county did not follow a progressive discipline plan. The Chairman is asking the McHenry
County court to uphold his decision to revoke the license.  


The Iroquois County Board has switched to night meetings temporarily in response to
citizens who say that morning meetings discourage election candidates and public partici-
pation. Iroquois County Board Chairman Ron Schroeder announced he is not in favor of
night meetings but is willing to allow them on a trial basis. The county board as a whole will
decide in March whether or not to continue the night meetings. 


DeKalb County has rehired its Washington D.C. lobbying firm, after cutting them out of the
2009 budget in order to reduce costs. With the new economic stimulus package looming,
the county decided to hire back the lobbying firm at a rate of $4,000 dollars a month down
from $7,500. Funding for the firm will likely come from the county’s opportunity fund.  


Vermilion County board members have approved a new wind ordinance. Since the county
does not have zoning, the ordinance compensates by creating a building-permit format that
oversees companies looking to build in the county. The ordinance sets several rules for
wind farms including the permit process, road care during the construction phase and
buffer zones between the turbines and adjacent properties. At least three companies have
approached Vermilion County about the potential for wind farms.


The DeWitt County Museum is the recipient of a grant for a mural that is to be painted
depicting Abraham Lincoln's journeys in DeWitt County.  According to the museum curator,
Karl Smith of Normal and Sally Walsh of Farmer City have been commissioned to create
the painting. The mural will go on display in the spring as part of the 200th anniversary
celebration of Abraham Lincoln's birthday.  


A proposal before the Cook County Board would make picking up a prostitute no longer a
criminal offense. “Johns” would instead face fines up to $1,000 along with impounding of
their vehicles and 100 hours of community service. The proposed county public morals
nuisance ordinance has the support of Cook County Sheriff Tom Dart who says current
charges of a $100 fine and 2-hour class do not deter repeat offenders. Police would have a
choice of charging the offender under the new ordinance or current misdemeanor charge. 


County commissioners are moving forward on renovations to the historic Morgan County
Courthouse. The commissioners are calling for bids to replace the old asphalt shingle roof
with new slate and copper flashing, remove and replace deteriorated stone banding,
remove and replace portions of the wood exterior trim, and repair of wood dormers, among
other items. It is anticipated the initial work will cost around $1 million. 


Boone County board members have put 38 acres of county-owned farmland up for sale.
The money raised from the sale of the farm will help fund a courthouse expansion. The
county plans to purchase 4.8 acres adjacent to the county Health Department in order to
build a 12,000 square-feet addition to the facility. Bond proceeds will be used to fund a
portion of the expansion project which is estimated to cost about $5.2 million. 
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Rural Electric Co-op
erects wind turbine
near Springfield


A voluntary severance plan offered to employees will save Sangamon County more than
$1 million annually. Forty-five employees have opted to take the package. Those workers
will receive one week’s salary for every two years of service with the county, up to 25 years.
Employees also have the option of a one-time insurance payout of $4,000. The county will
refrain from filling the vacated positions for at least six months, after which any new hires
for those positions can be paid no more than 60% of the previous employees’ salaries.


Jefferson County has entered into an agreement with Energy Plus to market around 7,000
acres of coal rights in the county. According to Jefferson County Chairman Ted Buck there
is no up-front costs and if a buyer is brought to the table the board will still have a vote to
determine whether or not to accept the given proposal.  


Mercer County Hospital has received approval from the Illinois Facilities Planning Board to
go-ahead with the 10.5 million in renovations they proposed. It will be switched to single-
patient care rooms and expand out-patient services. The project will likely start in late spring
or early summer and is expected to take about 18 months to complete. 


The Rural Electric Convenience Cooperative of Auburn has erected a wind turbine south of
Springfield in Farmersville. The co-op has around 5,500 members in Montgomery, Morgan,
Sangamon, Macoupin, and Christian counties. The “gob knob,” as the wind turbine is known,
is erected on the site of the old Freeman United Mine that operated there from 1951 to 1971.
The turbine will supply power for about 300 homes. It was purchased through a series of
federal and state grants along with zero-interest clean energy bonds for 1.8 million dollars.


The Mason County Emergency Telephone System Board has filed a lawsuit against the city
of Havana for not allowing them to construct a communications tower that would provide
greater emergency services in the county. The city states that any structure over 100-feet
is a zoning violation. However, a zoning variance could allow for the tower to be erected.  


The Fulton County Board approved two referendums to be placed on the April ballot to help
fund county road repairs. If approved by voters taxes paid for county highways will increase
from 7.65 cents to 20 cents per $100 of equalized assessed valuation. The second referen-
dum would impose a new five-year tax of 8.33 cents which would generate about $750,000
a year to fund maintenance programs such as chip-sealing. The county’s monthly allotment
from the motor fuel tax is down about 28 percent.


Kane County has decided to shift the costs of the KaneComm emergency dispatch services
to the communities it serves. They will charge a membership fee along with a fee that
depends on the number of calls a community generates. The county plans to phase in the
increase to the municipalities over the next three years.  


The LaSalle County Board is considering enacting a towing fee for individuals charged with
drunk driving. The fee would be in addition to the towing companies fee and would be
enforced at the impound when a person goes to pick up the car. The towing fee will only be
applied when police are needed at the scene and not imposed on individuals requiring a
standard tow. 
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Personnel & Salary – County Clerk & Recorder Committee 
 


February 11, 2009 
 


Tentative Minutes 
 


1. Call to Order: Chairman Skip Kenney called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m. Present: Bobbie Colbert, Marcia 
Heuer, Larry Boes, Dorothy Bowers and Pat Saunders. Others: Ed Rice, County Clerk & Recorder Becky 
Huntley, Treasurer John Coffman, Solid Waste Director Steve Rypkema, Supervisor of Assessment Jim Harrison, 
Coroner Lou Finch, Director of Court Services Greg Martin, Rich Gronewold and Don Conn. Absent: Kim 
Gouker. 
 


2. Approval of Minutes: December 10, 2008: Motion by Bowers, 2nd by Heuer to approve the minutes. Motion 
carried.  
 


3. Approval of Bills: Motion by Saunders, 2nd by Bowers to approve the County Clerk & Recorder bills in the 
amount of $6,634.52. Motion carried. 
 


4. Public Comment: Treasurer Coffman addresses the Committee in regards to questions raised in December’s 
meeting about salary increases in his department. He distributes a “Resource Analysis” packet and explains his 
reasons for the increase above 3% to 9%. Further discussion took place.  
 


5. County Clerk & Recorder Report: County Clerk Huntley distributed the Recorder’s monthly report; she states 
they are seeing a rise in mortgage recordings. She also states her office is very busy preparing for the April 7th 
election. 
 


6. New Business:  
a. Health Insurance Correspondence: Chairman Kenney informs the Committee about a situation with an 


employee in regards to the dental insurance. Discussion took place about our policy and procedures; 
consensus of Committee is that more information needs to be given to employees at the time of hire with 
full disclosure of dental and health benefits. 
 


b. Vice-Chairman: Motion by Saunders, 2nd by Bowers to elect Bobbie Colbert as Vice-Chairman. Motion 
carried. 
 


c. Hiring Freeze: Chairman Kenney states his view about a possible hire freeze until a County Administrator 
is hired. Discussion took place. 
 


d. Wage Increases from December 2008: Discussion took place in regards to the different increases given.  
 


e. Heuer Wage Comparison Data: Heuer distributed numerous hand-outs of information compiled from the 
EA survey and employees pay from FY 2004 to current. Further discussion took place. 
 


7. Old Business: 
a. EA Compensation Program: The Committee discussed the future of this project. Consensus of Committee 


is to continue with the process and get in touch with Employers Association for completion of the project. 
 


8. Adjournment: Since no further business was before the Committee, Chairman Kenney declared the meeting 
adjourned. Time: 11:49 a.m. 


 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Tiffany O'Brien 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS   )
                    )SS
COUNTY OF OGLE      )


In the Matter of the Petition
              of
David and Paijit Ancona, Scott Township
Ogle County, Illinois


               Testimony of Witnesses
               Produced, Sworn and
               Examined on this 19th day
               of January A.D. 2009
               before the Ogle County
               Zoning Board of Appeals


Present:
Maurice Bronkema
Randall Anderson
Curtis Freeberg
Maynard Stivers
Bruce McKinney, Chairman
Michael Reibel, Zoning Administrator
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Call this meeting of the
2      Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals for January
3      29th, 2009 to order.
4           Please rise for the Pledge of Allegiance.
5                    (The Pledge of Allegiance was
6                     recited.)
7           MR. McKINNEY:  Please be seated.
8           Roll call, please.
9                    (Roll call was taken and all were


10                     present.)
11           MR. REIBEL:  Five present.
12           MR. McKINNEY:  We do have a quorum.
13           The verbatim transcripts serving as
14      minutes from the last meeting are on file and
15      will not be read at this time.  I'll entertain a
16      motion to approve the minutes of the last ZBA
17      meeting.
18           MR. ANDERSON:  So moved.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Second?
20           MR. BRONKEMA:  Second.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Moved and seconded.  All in
22      favor signify by saying aye.
23                    (All those simultaneously
24                     responded.)
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed said no.
2           Motion passed.
3           All testimony will be taken under oath.
4      Please come forward to testify and state your
5      name and address to the recording secretary.
6      Please spell your last name.  When testifying,
7      please speak clearly and loud enough to be
8      heard.  We do have microphones up here in front
9      and please use them so people in the back can


10      hear you.  This hearing is the only opportunity
11      to place testimony and evidence on the record.
12      There will not be another opportunity beyond
13      tonight's hearing to submit additional evidence
14      or testimony for consideration.  Please turn off
15      all cell phones, pagers and any other electronic
16      devices you may have.
17           The procedures on hearings that will be
18      followed tonight is as found in the ZBA Rules of
19      Procedures or the Citizens Guide to Zoning Board
20      of Appeals, which are available near the door in
21      the back of the room.
22           Mr. William Funk is present representing
23      the Ogle County -- Ogle County Planning
24      Commission, if any Board members have any
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1      questions on their action on this petition.
2           If anyone has trouble hearing please let
3      me know.
4           Mr. Reibel, what is the first order of
5      business?
6           MR. REIBEL:  First order of business is to
7      consider the request filed December 17th, 2008
8      of David and Paijit Ancona, 12488 East Utility
9      Road, Davis Junction, Illinois for a Special Use


10      Permit to allow a Small Rural Business for
11      dumpster storage and rental/general hauling of
12      nonhazardous materials including furniture,
13      appliances, construction debris, etcetera in the
14      AG-1 Agricultural District on property described
15      as follows and owned by the Petitioners:
16           Part of the SE1/4 of the SW1/4 Section 15


          Scott Township 42N, R1E of the 3rd P.M.,
17           Ogle County, IL, 5.0 acres, more or less.
18           Property Identification Number:
19      11-15-300-003.
20           Common Location:  12488 East Utility Road.
21           For the record, a sign was posted along
22      the frontage of the premises indicating that a
23      public hearing is to be held.  All adjoining
24      property owners to the petition have been
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1      670.15 feet.  The existing land use is
2      residential, former farmstead.  Surrounding land
3      use and zoning, the site is surrounded by land
4      that is in agricultural use, cropland.  All
5      surrounding land is zoned AG-1, Agricultural
6      District.
7           No previous zoning history on the site.
8           Special Information:  Public utilities,
9      the site is in close proximity to the Village of


10      Davis Junction; however, sanitary sewer and
11      water service is not available to the site at
12      this time.  The site is served with a private,
13      on-site well and septic system.  Transportation,
14      East Utility Road is a gravel-surfaced, Township
15      maintained road.
16           Physical characteristics, the site is
17      located on a well-drained upland side slope.
18      The site is gently sloping, with slopes on-site
19      ranging from 2 to 5 percent.  The site is not
20      subject to flooding or ponding of surface water.
21      According to the Ogle County Soil Survey, the
22      soil type present on the site is:  622B - Wyanet
23      silt loam, 2 to 5 percent slopes.  This soil
24      type is classified as "prime farmland".  This
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1      notified by certified mail of the hearing this
2      evening on the specifics of the petition, and a
3      legal notice was published in the January 5th,
4      2009 edition of the Ogle County Life again
5      notifying the public of the hearing this evening
6      and the specifics of the petition.
7           I have received notice via e-mail
8      transmission from the Ogle County Highway
9      Department that reads:  This office has no


10      comments on Special Use No. 9-08 SU.  Granting
11      of this Special Use will not have a measurable
12      impact upon the stormwater impact of the site.
13           This is received from Curtis D. Cook,
14      P.E., County Engineer.
15           Under the Staff Report, I will point out
16      under general information -- this is the Staff
17      Report with a revised date of January 26, 2009
18      -- under general information, David and Paijit
19      Ancona are the owners of the property and the
20      site that's subject to the petition.  The site
21      is located on the north side of East Utility
22      Road beginning approximately 54-hundredths of a
23      mile west of North Junction Road.  The size of
24      the site is five acres.  It's 325 feet by
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1      soil type is rated as having severe limitations
2      for septic fields due to slow water movement.
3           Under the LESA program, the LESA
4      score of                                   187
5      indicates a Low rating for protection.  Land
6      Evaluation,                                 84.
7      Site Assessment,                           103.
8           The following are recommended conditions
9      for approval of this Special Use Permit:


10           All proposals and representations made by
11      the Applicant and/or their representatives shall
12      be conditions of the Special Use Permit,
13      including, but not necessarily limited to, the
14      installation of screening, 6-foot high fence, as
15      depicted and described on the Concept Plan
16      submitted as part of the petition for Special
17      Use Permit.  Said fence/screening shall be
18      installed within 90 days of the approval of this
19      Special Use Permit.
20           Two:  There shall be no outside storage
21      and/or accumulation of junk, as defined by the
22      Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance, waste,
23      inoperable and/or unlicensed motor vehicles,
24      etcetera on the site.
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1           Three:  There shall be no storage on the
2      site of dumpsters containing waste materials in
3      excess of 24 hours, provided any dumpster
4      containing waste is completely covered or
5      enclosed.
6           Four:  All dumpsters shall be stored
7      within the area enclosed by the fence/buildings
8      and out of view from the public road at all
9      times.


10           Five:  This Special Use Permit shall be
11      valid for a period of five years from the date
12      of approval by the Ogle County Board.  The
13      supervisor of assessments and Planning and
14      Zoning Committee of the Ogle County Board shall
15      have the delegated responsibility and authority
16      to either extend or discontinue the Special Use
17      Permit upon the expiration of said five-year
18      period giving due consideration to the continued
19      compatibility of the authorized use with the
20      surrounding area and other applicable factors as
21      determined by the committee.  The committee
22      shall give notice of his intent to act on this
23      matter as provided herein to the owner of the
24      land to which the Special Use Permit applies, to
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1      from the Village of Davis Junction dated January
2      21st, 2009 which reads:
3           "This letter is to inform you that at our
4      January 13th regular meeting of the Davis
5      Junction Village Board we discussed the request
6      for a Special Use Permit filed with the Ogle
7      County Zoning Board of Appeals by David and
8      Paijit Ancona to allow a Small Rural Business on
9      real estate zoned presently as AG-1.


10           The Village of Davis Junction specifically
11      lists as goals and objectives in our
12      Comprehensive Plan agricultural to prevent the
13      premature conversion of prime agricultural land
14      to nonagricultural uses.  By the use of careful
15      planning, the orderly phasing of development
16      provides for appropriate transitional uses
17      between the existing and planned portions of the
18      community to protect agricultural land and to
19      minimize conflicts between dissimilar uses,
20      commercial development, minimize and mitigate
21      any negative impacts of commercial and business
22      uses at this time upon neighboring land use
23      areas, ensure that appropriate environmental
24      protection provisions are included in all new
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1      all adjacent landowners and to the Village of
2      Davis Junction and to Scott Township.
3           At the January 22nd, 2009 meeting of the
4      Ogle County Regional Planning Commission
5      Mr. Conn made a motion to approve Petition No.
6      9-08 Special Use for David and Paijit Ancona
7      with the stipulation that it be reviewed every
8      five years in a way that Mr. Reibel works out
9      with the State's Attorney and subject to the


10      conditions as recommended in the Staff Report.
11      Mr. White seconded the motion to recommend
12      approval.  The roll call vote was five in favor
13      of the motion to recommend approval; one
14      opposed.
15           The Illinois Department of Natural
16      Resources, Illinois Natural Heritage Database
17      contains no record of state listed threatened or
18      endangered species, the Illinois natural area
19      inventory sites, dedicated Illinois nature
20      preserves or registered land or water reserves
21      in the vicinity of the project location.  The
22      consultation process with Illinois DNR is
23      terminated.
24           I have received a letter which is on file
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1      commercial developments, require all outdoor
2      storage areas visible to the public and adjacent
3      residential properties to be screened by
4      landscaping, fencing, walls or a combination of
5      these elements.
6           Village Board Members, residents and
7      developers have voiced their concerns to us
8      about a collection/storage type of business
9      being allowed so close to our 60-acre community


10      park and housing development.  There are also
11      plans for a housing development on the south
12      side of Utility Road west of Junction Road.
13           The Davis Junction Village Board voted to
14      oppose this request and would hope that the Ogle
15      County Planning and Zoning Commission and the
16      Ogle County Board would consider our position as
17      you make your decision.
18           Signed by Sheryl Hawley, Davis Junction
19      Village President."
20           I also have a letter on file from Scott
21      Township dated January 21st, 2009 which reads:
22           "This letter is in reference to a petition
23      for a Special Use Permit at a public hearing to
24      be held on January 29, 2009.  A petition for a
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1      Special Use Permit has been filed by David and
2      Paijit Ancona.  It is the position of the Scott
3      Township Board of Trustees and the Scott
4      Township Long Range Planning Commission to deny
5      this permit.  The Township Long Range Planning
6      Commission has implemented a plan that primarily
7      is to protect, strengthen and maintain its
8      economic base that agricultural pursuits provide
9      the Township.  It also prevents the conversion


10      of agricultural land to scattered nonfarm
11      development which when unmanaged unnecessarily
12      increases the cost of public services to all
13      citizens and results in the premature
14      disinvestment of agricultural.
15           Yours Truly, signed by Robert L. Horn,
16      Scott Township Supervisor; and William Haas,
17      Chairman, Scott Township Long Range Planning
18      Commission."
19           I believe that's all I have, Mr. Chairman.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  Will the Petitioner or
21      whoever's going to be testifying please come
22      forward and be sworn in?
23           First of all, before we swear you in, this
24      is a public hearing, so entertain a motion to go
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1           Tell us about your petition.
2           MR. ANCONA:  I live at 12488 East Utility
3      Road.  I have been in business for 17 and a half
4      years doing a hauling and dumpster business and
5      I'm just trying to continue my business.  I have
6      no place to go at this time, so I'm just trying
7      to buy some time for a five-year Special Use
8      Permit.  Hopefully by then I can get some money
9      together and maybe, you know, move out of there


10      if possible, but right now I'm just -- I bought
11      some new equipment and I'm financially strapped
12      right now.
13           So that's all I'm trying -- I don't feel
14      I'm no worse than a farmer having, you know,
15      corn wagons.  You know, I ain't got nothing
16      different than a farmer.  I got three trucks and
17      I have got about 15 dumpsters onsite, but like I
18      said, they're no different than if you had corn
19      wagons on wheels, these just don't have wheels,
20      you drop them off and you pick them up with a
21      truck.  That's all about I got to say on it.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  You understand that
23      Scott Township and Davis Junction both have
24      filed letters opposing this petition?
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1      into a public hearing.
2           MR. BRONKEMA:  So moved.
3           MR. FREEBERG:  Second.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  Moved and seconded.  All
5      those in favor signify by saying aye.
6                    (All those simultaneously
7                     responded,)
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say no.
9           Motion passed.


10           Please step closer to the microphone.
11      Please raise your right hand.
12            DAVID ANCONA and PAIJIT ANCONA,
13      being first duly sworn, testified as follows:
14           MR. McKINNEY:  Can you give her your
15      names.
16           MR. ANCONA:  David A. Ancona, Sr.,
17      A-N-C-O-N-A.
18           MS. ANCONA:  Paijit Ancona.
19           MR. ANCONA:  P A --
20           MS. ANCONA:  P-A-I-J-I-T.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Step closer to the
22      microphones so people in the back can hear you
23      when you have your back turned to the -- well,
24      can you kind of face us too?
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1           MR. ANCONA:  Yes, I just heard it tonight.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.
3           MR. ANCONA:  I heard the Village, last
4      time I was here I heard about it.
5           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  About how close are
6      you to the Village limits of Davis Junction, do
7      you know?
8           MR. ANCONA:  No, I don't know.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  About a quarter mile, a


10      half mile?
11           MR. ANCONA:  I would say about a quarter
12      mile.
13           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Do you understand
14      and agree to the five recommended conditions
15      Mr. Reibel read?
16           MR. ANCONA:  Yes, I do.
17           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Right now you are
18      storing about how many dumpsters?
19           MR. ANCONA:  I got about 15 on-site right
20      now.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  In this storage how
22      often do you have full dumpsters or dumpsters
23      that have waste in them overnight?
24           MR. ANCONA:  This time of year I'd say
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1      never.  In the summertime maybe more often than
2      not because, you know, people call and they want
3      their dumpster picked up at 5 o'clock at night.
4      Well, I can't make it to the dump because they
5      close at 4:30.  This time of year I'm slow and
6      so there's no problem picking it up, getting it
7      to the landfill, getting back, dropping it off.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  What time does the landfill
9      close?


10           MR. ANCONA:  Right now it closes at 4.  In
11      the summer it closes at 4:30.  On Saturdays
12      they're open until usually 11 but now they're
13      backing off their hours so now they're only open
14      until 9 on Saturdays.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  How big an area do you pick
16      up or drop dumpsters off at?  Do you go all the
17      way to Oregon?
18           MR. ANCONA:  Yeah, I go to Oregon,
19      Rochelle, Winnebago County, just within a
20      hundred mile radius.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  I noticed that none
22      of the dumpsters or your trucks doesn't have a
23      name or anything on the --
24           MR. ANCONA:  Right.
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Are you insured?
2           MR. ANCONA:  Yes, I am.  I got liability
3      insurance on the farm, I got 2 millions (sic) on
4      my business, and then I got 3 to 500,000 on my
5      truck in case somebody gets hurt or something.
6           MR. McKINNEY:  You stated in your opening
7      statement you have been in business for 17
8      years?
9           MR. ANCONA:  17 and a half years where I'm


10      at now.  Three and a half years on 7874 Highway
11      251.  I have been in business for almost 25
12      years.
13           MR. McKINNEY:  So you have been in
14      business at this location on Utility Road --
15           MR. ANCONA:  17 and a half years.
16           MR. McKINNEY:  And you have never applied
17      for a Special Use Permit?
18           MR. ANCONA:  No, I haven't.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Do you know if you
20      need to be regulated by the EPA or anything in
21      trash hauling?
22           MR. ANCONA:  No, I don't know if I have to
23      be or not.  They was after my property one time,
24      the EPA from Ogle County, because I was open


Page 18


1           MR. McKINNEY:  Are you doing business as
2      Dave's Hauling?
3           MR. ANCONA:  Yes, Dave's Hauling and
4      Dumpster Business.
5           MR. McKINNEY:  Are you registered with the
6      State of Illinois?
7           MR. ANCONA:  No, I'm not.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Do you have a CDL
9      license?


10           MR. ANCONA:  I don't need a CDL at this
11      time.  I just got a Class C.
12           MR. McKINNEY:  So you don't need to have a
13      CDL license?
14           MR. ANCONA:  Well, I got a permit.  I need
15      a CDL to drive one of my trucks, but I got a
16      part-time guy that helps me if I need to use
17      that truck.  I just bought it.  The guy that
18      used to drive it, he passed away in February, so
19      he had a CDL license so I never -- I didn't
20      really need one.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  How many trucks do you
22      have?
23           MR. ANCONA:  I got two roll-off trucks,
24      then I got a 18-foot grain truck.
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1      burning and they never said anything.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  Were you cited for that
3      open burning?
4           MR. ANCONA:  They told me to quit doing
5      it.  They didn't fine me or nothing.
6           MR. McKINNEY:  Have you done any other
7      open burning or anything?
8           MR. ANCONA:  No.  I got a pile of brush
9      that I got to burn but it's from a property.


10      They said I could burn, you know, stuff.  I had
11      a bunch of trees go down.
12           MR. McKINNEY:  Do you understand what
13      hazardous waste is?
14           MR. ANCONA:  Yes, I do.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  What all that includes?
16           MR. ANCONA:  Yes.
17           MR. McKINNEY:  Have you ever had anybody
18      throw some hazardous waste or anything in your
19      dumpsters?
20           MR. ANCONA:  As far as I know they
21      haven't.  Like I said, 99 percent of the time I
22      go to the landfill and dump it, I mean, if they
23      bury something in the middle -- middle of the
24      dumpster I wouldn't know.  Same with all the
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1      other -- you know, all the other dumpsters, I
2      won't know if somebody hides some hazardous
3      waste in it you're not going to know.  I mean
4      you go through the thing and if it's radiation
5      it's going to beep and I never have no radiation
6      on there.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  But things like batteries
8      or oil --
9           MR. ANCONA:  Right, that's not supposed to


10      go in there.
11           MR. McKINNEY:  But you don't even check to
12      see if --
13           MR. ANCONA:  There's no way I can check.
14      Like I said, if they put it in the middle of the
15      load I'll never know.
16           MR. McKINNEY:  But do you check at all?
17      You know, they may not --
18           MR. ANCONA:  When I tarp it I make sure,
19      you know, there ain't nothing in there because
20      I'll get in trouble if I go up to the landfill,
21      they can fine me up to, you know, $300 if
22      there's stuff in there that's not supposed to be
23      in there.
24           MR. McKINNEY:  Have you ever been fined by
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1      it was last Saturday, and to tell you the truth
2      your place looked like a dump.  You got things
3      all over the place.  I don't -- you know, one of
4      the requirements is to have a -- I believe a
5      6-foot fence, you have got some fencing out
6      there but --
7           MR. ANCONA:  That ain't until after the
8      Special Use Permit is approved.  I mean, I
9      couldn't put a fence up now even if I tried


10      because of the snow, I mean the ground is froze.
11           MR. McKINNEY:  You have got right along
12      the road in your -- I guess you would call it
13      where you store your dumpsters looks like an old
14      truck body or something, do you use that for
15      storage?
16           MR. ANCONA:  Yes, I do, I use it for
17      storage.
18           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Is there any way
19      some of these dumpsters could be stored inside
20      some of the barns?
21           MR. ANCONA:  They're not high enough.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  Do you store anything in
23      the barns?
24           MR. ANCONA:  Yeah, I got stuff that I use,
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1      the landfill?
2           MR. ANCONA:  No, I haven't, and I have
3      been going there ever since they have been open.
4      They were closed for a few years because their
5      permit was denied and they had to re-establish
6      it.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  We have to go -- we have
8      like six Standards that we have to go through to
9      determine this Special Use Permit meets


10      Standards.  One of the Standards is that the
11      proposed Special Use will not be unreasonably
12      detrimental to the value of the property in the
13      neighborhood in which it is located or the
14      public health, safety, morals, comfort and
15      general welfare at large.
16           You don't think that this would be
17      detrimental to the property value?
18           MR. ANCONA:  No, I don't.  Like I said,
19      I'm no different than a farmer that has
20      equipment.  If he has grain trucks, you know,
21      grain wagons with wheels, that's all these are
22      but without wheels, but once I put the fence up
23      you won't even know what I'm doing.
24           MR. McKINNEY:  I was out there I believe
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1      I got rental property and stuff I use for, you
2      know, like wood and stuff that I can use in my
3      rental business.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  I do know that Davis
5      Junction is a growing community, a lot of people
6      are moving down from Rockford, and they will
7      probably be building to the north.  You don't
8      think your place would hurt property values or
9      even maybe discourage a developer from building


10      a 300, $400,000 home across the road?
11           MR. ANCONA:  I know they got some down at
12      the park that's been there two, three years that
13      they can't sell, and the way the economy is down
14      now if they're going to build 300, $400,000
15      houses I don't see in the near future the way
16      the economy is at least for another year or so.
17           MR. McKINNEY:  One of the other Standards
18      is that the location and size of the Special
19      Use, nature and intensity of the operation
20      involved in or conducted in connection with it
21      and the location of the site with respect to
22      streets giving access to it are such that the
23      Special Use will not dominate the immediate
24      neighborhood.
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1           You don't think that all these dumpsters
2      stored around there and your trucks that are
3      parked will be a detriment to -- if they build
4      across the road a subdivision?
5           MR. ANCONA:  I don't think so.  I don't
6      think they're going to build a subdivision
7      within the next five years.  I mean, it's
8      possible, but I don't see it in the near future.
9      Like I said, I have been there 17 and a half


10      years, and most of the growth is across the
11      railroad tracks.
12           MR. McKINNEY:  Off-street parking, I know
13      you have got a big driveway but that's pretty
14      crowded as it is.  Can you get anything else in
15      that driveway?
16           MR. ANCONA:  I don't understand your
17      question.
18           MR. McKINNEY:  Well, like parking trucks
19      or cars and whatever else you got stored around
20      your --
21           MR. ANCONA:  Well, that's all on my
22      property, whatever you saw was there.  I just
23      got one car, I got a van, you know, and I got my
24      three trucks.  I keep one truck in the garage, I
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1      got to clean them, don't you?
2           MR. ANCONA:  No, I don't.  No, I don't.  I
3      mean when the landfill is open they got the
4      truck wash and I take them through there.
5           MR. BRONKEMA:  You don't have to clean the
6      boxes?
7           MR. ANCONA:  No, I don't spray them out or
8      anything.
9           MR. BRONKEMA:  You got me on that one.


10           MR. McKINNEY:  How about problems with
11      rodents, varmints, birds in the summertime?
12           MR. ANCONA:  Nope.
13           MR. McKINNEY:  You don't clean out the --
14      the dumpsters?
15           MR. ANCONA:  No, I don't spray them out.
16           MR. McKINNEY:  And you don't have any
17      problems with --
18           MR. ANCONA:  No.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  -- rodents and birds?
20           MR. ANCONA:  Most of the time there's --
21      I'd say 99 percent of the time there's not
22      garbage in there.  Most of the stuff is like
23      construction debris, shingles, household stuff,
24      so there's -- you know, it's not food stuff per
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1      keep it in there so I can --
2           MR. McKINNEY:  Do you have some disabled
3      cars?
4           MR. ANCONA:  No.  I got rid of those when
5      they told me I had to get them off the property.
6           MR. McKINNEY:  Uhm, when you bring
7      dumpsters back do you sometimes go through and
8      maybe try to salvage out anything, like copper
9      wire or anything?


10           MR. ANCONA:  If it's on the top.  I mean,
11      I don't dump it on the property and go through
12      it.  I mean, if I see copper or aluminum, sure,
13      I'll keep it because it's recyclable.
14           MR. McKINNEY:  Where do you store that
15      stuff?
16           MR. ANCONA:  I got one of those barns I
17      keep aluminum and stuff in there.
18           MR. BRONKEMA:  What about your wash-out
19      facilities?  What do you have for wash-out
20      facilities?  I mean, everybody knows you got to
21      wash dumpsters.
22           MR. ANCONA:  I don't -- what do you mean,
23      as far as spraying them out?
24           MR. BRONKEMA:  Well, cleaning them.  You
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1      se.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  Do you have any
3      dumpsters -- any customers with dumpsters like
4      at a restaurant or grocery stores?
5           MR. ANCONA:  Nope.  Nope.  Mostly I work
6      for like LDR Construction, and they keep them
7      for like couple months at a time.  They do a lot
8      of fire damage to houses.  I got a couple
9      roofers that I do a lot of roofing for.  You


10      know, I drop dumpsters off to them and that's --
11      but I don't have any per se, you know, like for
12      a restaurant.  You mean like a weekly pickup?  I
13      don't have that type of service.
14           MR. FREEBERG:  You said roughly 90 percent
15      of the stuff goes to a landfill, what's the
16      other 10 percent do?
17           MR. ANCONA:  I'm talking about when he
18      said garbage, 90 percent of the stuff we don't
19      have garbage in it.
20           MR. FREEBERG:  Huh?
21           MR. ANCONA:  Doesn't have garbage.  I mean
22      at the landfill you have to do a house cleanout,
23      you know, when they got food stuff.
24           MR. FREEBERG:  What's the other
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1      10 percent?
2           MR. ANCONA:  I don't understand.
3           MR. FREEBERG:  You made a comment --
4           MR. McKINNEY:  I think you made a comment
5      that 10 percent has to be stored overnight, you
6      said something like 90 percent goes straight to
7      the landfill.
8           MR. ANCONA:  Right.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  You mean the other


10      10 percent you have to keep overnight?
11           MR. ANCONA:  Right, and take it to the
12      landfill and dump it.
13           MR. FREEBERG:  Besides the dumpster
14      storage and rental you're saying general hauling
15      of nonhazardous materials, is that construction
16      debris and that kind of stuff?
17           MR. ANCONA:  That's correct.
18           MR. FREEBERG:  Do you ever unload that on
19      your property, or how do you work that part of
20      the business?
21           MR. ANCONA:  I -- that's what I got that
22      grain truck for.  That's kind of like becoming
23      obsolete because I now use a lot of dumpsters.
24      It's a lot easier to drop a dumpster and load it
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1      grandfathered in since I was there 17 and a half
2      years.  Instead of letting the judge make a
3      decision I decided to go through a Special Use
4      Permit.
5           MR. STIVERS:  And you're telling us that
6      all those vehicles that we see out there are
7      operable?
8           MR. ANCONA:  Right.  I mean, it might take
9      me a day to get them running because it's cold


10      and stuff, but I can get them to move if you
11      want.
12           MR. FREEBERG:  How far are you from the
13      landfill?
14           MR. ANCONA:  About five miles.
15           MR. ANDERSON:  Your dumpsters sit outside?
16           MR. ANCONA:  Correct.
17           MR. ANDERSON:  And if it rains obviously
18      they don't have a seal on them to contain the
19      water?
20           MR. ANCONA:  Right.
21           MR. ANDERSON:  What would happen if you
22      have got something sitting there overnight and
23      it rains and it leeches out through the back end
24      of the dumpster?  Are you going to be able to
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1      up.
2           MR. FREEBERG:  But you don't unload any of
3      that there, it's just you might have to let the
4      truck sit there?
5           MR. ANCONA:  Right.
6           MR. BRONKEMA:  How much truck storage have
7      you got?  I could see one barn that would be in
8      the back for a truck.
9           MR. ANCONA:  I just -- I got that garage


10      that I store one truck in.
11           MR. BRONKEMA:  One truck?
12           MR. ANCONA:  The other two are outside.
13           MR. STIVERS:  So what prompted you after
14      17 years to apply for a permit?
15           MR. ANCONA:  They took me to court.
16           MR. STIVERS:  Who?
17           MR. ANCONA:  Mr. Reebel (phonetic) --
18           MR. BRONKEMA:  Reibel.
19           MR. ANCONA:  -- took me to court, and so I
20      went before the judge and we have been going on
21      for a year, and he was going to make a judgment
22      and I talked to the State's Attorney and they
23      said, well, we'll try for a Special Use Permit
24      first, because I asked that we could be
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1      contain that on your property, whatever leeches
2      out?
3           MR. ANCONA:  Well, where I have got the
4      dumpsters at it's all concrete.
5           MR. ANDERSON:  I understand that, but the
6      water still has to run someplace; where is that
7      going to run, out into the ditch, or is it going
8      to stay on the property?
9           MR. ANCONA:  It should stay on the


10      property because of where it's at.  I haven't
11      run across that problem.  Like I said, most
12      people, you know, you tell them what to put in
13      there.  I hand out a card telling them what they
14      can put in there, what they can't, you know.
15      Most people follow the rules; I'm sure there's a
16      few that don't.  I mean, Old Orchard Landfill,
17      they're right there and they're parking all
18      theirs right on the dirt and they have got the
19      Old Gensler Garden down there and they are
20      parking there's over there too, so they have no
21      cement, it's going into the dirt.
22           MR. ANDERSON:  They're in a position they
23      can contain it on their property.
24           MR. ANCONA:  Right.  I'm just saying that
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1      it is going into the dirt and mine wouldn't
2      because it is on concrete, and I could get some
3      Oil Dry if it was oil and, you know, clean it up
4      if need be.
5           MR. BRONKEMA:  What are you proposing to
6      do -- I mean, I know you're going to put up a
7      fence but, I mean, are you going to organize?  I
8      mean, it's definitely not organized.  I mean,
9      you have got one here and here.


10           MR. ANCONA:  I mean it's all snowed out.
11      My snowplow needs a starter on it, I need to get
12      that on it, and since I can't plow I just got to
13      work around the snow.  I had to shovel all that
14      out by hand so I could get in there.  But
15      usually in the summertime I can line them all up
16      and I don't have a problem, but when there's
17      snow and stuff in there, ice, I can't -- it's
18      hard for me to, you know, line them up.
19           Like I said, once there's a fence there
20      you won't even notice I have them in there.
21      That gate there, I'm going to reenforce that and
22      make that a fence too so it will be one solid
23      fence over to the area.
24           MR. BRONKEMA:  I guess I'm kind of used to
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1           MR. BRONKEMA:  Do you have a facility to
2      wash your trucks or don't you do that?
3           MR. ANCONA:  I usually don't but, I mean,
4      if I do I just wash it on that concrete there, I
5      power wash it.  In the summertime they usually
6      got a truck wash when it's real muddy out so you
7      can run through that truck wash -- I don't know
8      if you have been out to the landfill there --
9      and it shoots up all over the place.


10           MR. BRONKEMA:  Yeah, it's all recycled
11      water.
12           MR. ANCONA:  Right.  Sometimes I don't
13      know if it's any good or not, it's so dirty.
14           MR. McKINNEY:  My biggest concern is going
15      back to this hazardous waste material.  You said
16      you do a lot of tear outs of buildings which
17      means that there could be a lot of asbestos,
18      especially on these old buildings, and then you
19      don't really check to see if you have got any
20      asbestos in there, you dump it, you know, the
21      landfill may not catch it either, you dump it,
22      you still have remnants in your containers.
23      Like the question was asked about sitting out in
24      the rain and that stuff washes out, heads from
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1      the kind of garbage haulers in my town:  he has
2      adequate facilities for trucks; if there's a
3      loaded truck it's in the building; and there may
4      be two dumpsters outside like you got but
5      they're cleaned, they're power washed; he has a
6      facility that it goes into a tank, they don't
7      run on the ground and into the sewer system or
8      anything, it's all contained and redone; and I
9      just got a problem with looking at yours and you


10      don't clean the tanks, I don't know how you do
11      without cleaning the tanks, I really don't.
12           MR. ANCONA:  I don't know, I don't think
13      Old Orchard cleans theirs out, I mean I could be
14      wrong.  I know several dumpster companies
15      --Rockford Transport, he don't clean his.  I
16      mean there's a lot of them.  I didn't know they
17      sprayed them out, to tell you the truth, I have
18      never heard of it.  When you pick up a dumpster
19      with construction debris with plaster and stuff,
20      all that stuff is going to come out of there;
21      and in the wintertime when it freezes you get
22      water and ice in there, they use a big backhoe
23      and, you know, break the ice and get what they
24      can get out of there.
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1      your concrete down to the ditch and I have no
2      idea where it goes.  Same way with maybe used
3      oil.  My biggest concern, like I said, was
4      you're not really checking to see what's even in
5      your containers.
6           MR. ANCONA:  Well, I check it but, like I
7      said, if you're going to hide something with a
8      load in it there's no -- I see Old Orchard
9      coming in there and they're dumping tires in


10      there.  Now, whoever put those tires in there
11      they weren't supposed to, because the landfill
12      can't accept tires.  So, I mean, that guy, he
13      brought his in and he didn't know or if he did
14      he didn't care.  I mean, they dump the tires and
15      then they have to get them out of there.  I
16      mean, there's no way to -- you know, I can't
17      open up the gate and open the stuff and see
18      what's in there.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Well, going back -- my big
20      concern -- you know, that's stuff that's in the
21      landfill that's not supposed to be in the
22      landfill but it's there in the landfill.  You're
23      storing stuff that maybe a quarter of a mile and
24      maybe in the future within five years may be
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1      just right across the street from some houses
2      where kids will be playing.
3           MR. ANDERSON:  Mike, is there anything in
4      the County regarding Health Department
5      inspections or EPA inspections for something
6      like this?
7           MR. REIBEL:  The Solid Waste Management
8      Department has delegated authority from IEPA to
9      enforce the Environmental Protection Act.


10           MR. ANDERSON:  What would be inspections?
11           MR. REIBEL:  What would the inspections
12      be?
13           MR. ANDERSON:  Would there be an
14      inspection of this facility at different
15      intervals during the year?
16           MR. REIBEL:  This isn't -- what Mr. Ancona
17      is proposing isn't a regulated activity, just
18      the hauling of this nonhazardous waste material,
19      so there are no inspections per se.
20           MR. ANDERSON:  No concerns with regards to
21      runoff or anything?
22           MR. REIBEL:  Solid Waste Department didn't
23      say they had any concerns regarding that, no.
24           MR. FREEBERG:  Now, as far as asbestos or
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1           For the recording secretary, please give
2      her your name and address.
3           MR. TALBOT:  John Talbot, 147 Harvest Glen
4      Drive, Davis Junction, Illinois 61020.
5           MR. McKINNEY:  And your connection with
6      Davis Junction?
7           MR. TALBOT:  I'm the Village Trustee with
8      Ordinance Enforcement.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.


10           MR. TALBOT:  Actually I had a couple
11      sheet's worth of questions but you have asked
12      most of my questions already, so I would just
13      pick up with a few that I have that he didn't
14      answer.
15           There are long white semi trailers parked
16      sporadically on the property, what are those
17      used for?
18           MR. ANCONA:  That's just -- I got one
19      semi, 40-foot box.
20           MR. TALBOT:  Is it licensed?
21           MR. ANCONA:  No, that's just one of the --
22      I brought that there 17 and a half years ago.
23      It's still got some of my furniture from the
24      last house I moved from.
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1      motor oil, anybody that picks up at any house
2      the homeowner can throw it in the middle of his
3      plastic bag and they can throw it in the truck
4      and not know it.  I mean, do you expect him to
5      go through all his stuff?  Nobody does that I
6      don't think in the industry.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  Any other questions for
8      right now?
9           MR. ANDERSON:  No.


10           MR. McKINNEY:  I believe we have one
11      letter of appearance.
12           MR. REIBEL:  We do.  We have an appearance
13      entered by John Talbot, Village Trustee from the
14      Village of Davis Junction.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  Let me explain this.  A
16      letter of appearance means that this person can
17      come and ask you questions.  They cannot make
18      any testimony at this time, he will not be sworn
19      in.  He can ask you questions, you can answer
20      it, and then when he's done then we will go and
21      take testimony of people that are either in
22      favor or opposed to the petition.
23           Mr. Talbot, do you want me to come
24      forward?
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1           MR. TALBOT:  Okay.  As far as appliances,
2      is there the opportunity that you may be
3      bringing refrigerators onto the property?
4           MR. ANCONA:  Yes, there is, and I have --
5      I told the Board last week I have recover -- I
6      got a recovery machine to, you know, pump it out
7      if need be.
8           MR. TALBOT:  You have a Freon license --
9      you have the appropriate license to remove Freon


10      from refrigerators?
11           MR. ANCONA:  Yes, I do, from Rockford
12      College.
13           MR. TALBOT:  I noticed two boats on the
14      property; are those part of the junk business or
15      are those recreational use?
16           MR. ANCONA:  Well, is there two or one?
17           MR. TALBOT:  I thought I had seen two.
18           MR. ANCONA:  I think there's only one.  I
19      got that from my horse trailer guy, for hauling
20      stuff he gave me that boat.
21           MR. TALBOT:  Is there --
22           MR. ANCONA:  Oh, there is two boats.  The
23      other one down there is my son's.
24           MR. TALBOT:  Are either of the boat
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1      licensed with the state?
2           MR. ANCONA:  No, the one ain't.  My son
3      did have a license.  It's been sitting there a
4      year, I don't know if he's going to get rid of
5      it or what.  He lives in Machesney Park and he
6      has no place to store it so he stored it over
7      there.
8           MR. TALBOT:  The red GMC pickup or Chevy
9      pickup that's right when you come into the


10      property with the white hood --
11           MR. ANCONA:  Yes.
12           MR. TALBOT:  -- does that vehicle run?
13           MR. ANCONA:  Yeah, it does.
14           MR. TALBOT:  Even though it's buried in
15      the snow?
16           MR. ANCONA:  Yeah.  I mean, I can't go
17      nowhere with it now.
18           MR. TALBOT:  But it is licensed by the
19      state?
20           MR. ANCONA:  No, it's not licensed, but it
21      does run.  I am going to get rid of that, that's
22      going.
23           MR. TALBOT:  Do you file taxes with the
24      state and federal --
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1           MR. ANCONA:  Just ask that the Board
2      reconsider, you know, my petition.  Like I said,
3      I have been there 17 and a half years, trying to
4      raise my four grandchildren.  I bought some new
5      equipment and I'm financially strapped right
6      now, and I don't have no place to go and I'm
7      just trying to make ends meet and that's all I'm
8      trying to do is operate a business.
9           Like I said, I have been doing this for 17


10      and a half years.  I'm not trying to violate the
11      law.  I did -- when I was doing the business I
12      didn't realize that, you know, it was illegal to
13      Mr. Reebel (phonetic) until Mr. Reebel made
14      mention that it was, so then we went to the
15      court.  Like I said, I'm not trying to pull any
16      wool over anybody's eyes, you know, I'm just
17      trying to make a living.
18           Like I said, I work -- I have been doing
19      it for 20 something years, and this is going to
20      devastate me if I have to leave.  It would be a
21      hardship for me.  You know, I work 12 hours a
22      day, five, six days a week every day, I get up
23      usually between 5, 6 o'clock, and in the
24      wintertime I get done, you know, 4 or 5, but in
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1           MR. ANCONA:  Yes.
2           MR. TALBOT:  -- from the business you are
3      running?
4           MR. ANCONA:  Yes, I do.
5           MR. TALBOT:  Okay.  That's all I have that
6      really differs from the questions you have asked
7      earlier.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Do you have any
9      further statements you want to make right now?


10           MR. ANCONA:  No.
11           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Go ahead and sit
12      down.  If you want to sit down here in front.
13           Is there anybody here that wishes to come
14      forward and testify in favor of the petition?
15           Seeing none, is there anybody here that
16      wishes to come forward to testify opposing this
17      petition?  No one wants to come forward to
18      oppose?
19           Okay.  With that, we will go back into
20      open session.
21           MR. BRONKEMA:  So moved.
22           MR. REIBEL:  Make closing statements.
23           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Do you have any
24      closing statements you want to make?
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1      the summer I work sometimes 8, 9 o'clock at
2      night.  Like I said, I'm just trying to raise my
3      grandchildren, I'm not trying to do anything
4      illegally, and stuff that needs to -- you know,
5      there's other stipulations that you want to put
6      maybe we can see if we can work something out.
7      Like I said, I'm not trying to do anything
8      illegally.
9           I know the Village wants to grow but, like


10      I said, there's some houses down at the end of
11      the road that are priced high and they haven't
12      sold, and I don't foresee in the near future
13      they're going to be across from me.  Like I
14      said, in five years maybe by then I'll be able
15      to get a piece of property and, you know, not
16      even have to worry about it, maybe just park my
17      trucks there and not worry about having
18      dumpsters there.
19           That's all I have got to say.  Thank you.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  Thank you.  With that,
21      entertain a motion to close this public hearing.
22           MR. STIVERS:  Mike, what's the shortest
23      time a permit can be issued for this one; for
24      five years?  What's the shortest amount of time?
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1           MR. REIBEL:  There's no limitation on how
2      short a period you can issue it for.
3           MR. BRONKEMA:  I really have a problem
4      with the five years.  That's a long time away,
5      and I really think it ought to be regulated a
6      little quicker than that, I feel like three
7      years.  Five years you can get out of hand
8      pretty bad.
9           MR. STIVERS:  It can get out of hand in 16


10      months.
11           MR. ANDERSON:  Yeah, a year.
12           MR. FREEBERG:  I don't know, I -- five
13      years can go by pretty fast.  I think with the
14      economy being what it is, especially if there
15      are houses there that they haven't already sold
16      -- when I was out there it seemed like there was
17      quite a bit of space in there that they can
18      build houses before they have to build one
19      across the road from him.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  We are still in a public
21      hearing.  Mr. Ancona?
22           MR. ANCONA:  Yes.
23           MR. McKINNEY:  Would you have any
24      objections to lowering that five years to say
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1      ain't doing any better than the other truck.
2      It's got all that pollution control stuff on it
3      and it's got to get so hot and it doesn't work
4      properly otherwise.  I would have only had the
5      one dumpster truck but I needed a backup,
6      otherwise I would have been out of business.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  Any other questions before
8      we close the public hearing?
9           MR. BRONKEMA:  What about the Planning


10      Commission, what was their feeling on it?
11           MR. McKINNEY:  Mr. Funk?
12           MR. FUNK:  Yes?
13           MR. McKINNEY:  Mr. Bronkema wants to know
14      about the Planning Commission's discussion on
15      this petition.
16           MR. FUNK:  Can I make a statement from
17      here or do you want me to be sworn in?
18           MR. McKINNEY:  Yeah.  Does he need to be
19      sworn in?
20           MR. REIBEL:  Not -- he's representing the
21      Planning Commission, just telling you what they
22      did.
23           MR. FUNK:  Well, there was discussion in
24      regards to -- similar along the lines of you
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1      three years?
2           MR. ANCONA:  Well, if I had to I would.
3      It's just, like I said, I'm in a situation right
4      now and I'm just kind of -- I mean, if we had to
5      I would but I just -- five years seems like it's
6      adequate time to do what I need to do and then
7      if there's growth or by that time if I secured a
8      different piece of property, you know, it
9      wouldn't be no problem, but like he said, five


10      years is going to go by fast.  I mean, three
11      years is going to go by extremely fast, and then
12      I got to start the whole process over again.
13           MR. FREEBERG:  You mention you bought new
14      equipment; are you increasing the size of the
15      business?
16           MR. ANCONA:  No.
17           MR. FREEBERG:  Or do you envision to?
18           MR. ANCONA:  I bought one truck and it's
19      just --
20           MR. FREEBERG:  So your plan is to sort of
21      be what it's been?
22           MR. ANCONA:  Right.  I don't plan on
23      growing.  I had one truck that kept breaking
24      down so I got this other truck, and this truck
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1      folks this evening, and the statements that the
2      Petitioner made were the same at our meeting.  I
3      think that they were concerned about a
4      businessman being put out of business; however,
5      there is definitely some development in the
6      works there, and then the one member made a
7      motion -- or made a suggestion of the five year
8      limit, that seemed to take hold pretty well, and
9      that was basically what put the thing over on


10      approval and it went 5 to 1 vote.
11           I have to tell you that I voted against
12      it, because the Village of Davis Junction has a
13      Comprehensive Plan that's come up to the
14      Planning Commission and through the ZBA and up
15      to the County Board that's been approved, and I
16      believe that there should be some support of
17      that Comprehensive Plan.  Development is
18      definitely going to go north in that Village and
19      you can see by their plans, and if you saw the
20      plan -- I saw the map, and there is development
21      there directly across the road to the -- and
22      slightly to the east in back of the -- or along
23      the recreational area there, the park.  There's
24      a proposal or a possibility of some apartment
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1      buildings to be built in there that's in a
2      planning stage at this point in time.
3           I think, as I said, we were concerned
4      about a businessman and the five year limit was
5      put down on that.
6           MR. BRONKEMA:  Did they also feel that
7      there's some room for improvement?
8           MR. FUNK:  Oh, yes, definitely.
9           MR. BRONKEMA:  On his part I mean to --


10           MR. FUNK:  It's not a credit to the area.
11           MR. BRONKEMA:  -- upgrade it?
12           MR. FUNK:  Yeah, it needs to be upgraded,
13      the appearance and everything.
14           MR. STIVERS:  I don't believe that that
15      all entails your business.  I mean, like the
16      Chairman spoke earlier, I mean, that's your
17      whole 5 acres that you have there, I mean,
18      that's an eyesore, it doesn't only include your
19      business, you follow me?  He's suggesting what
20      the whole place looked like in general.
21           MR. ANCONA:  I don't understand what
22      you're trying to --
23           MR. BRONKEMA:  You should have sort of
24      spruced it up a little before we looked at it,
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1           MR. TALBOT:  Sure.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  And Mr. Ancona would be
3      able to rebuttal and ask you questions too after
4      your statements.
5           So if you can come forward.
6           MR. TALBOT:  All right.
7                     JOHN TALBOT,
8      being first duly sworn, testified as follows:
9           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay, and you have already


10      given her your name and address.
11           Davis Junction is an incorporated Village,
12      correct?
13           MR. TALBOT:  Yes.
14           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  You have passed a
15      Comprehensive Plan?
16           MR. TALBOT:  Yes.
17           MR. McKINNEY:  And have you filed that
18      with the County?
19           MR. TALBOT:  Yes.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  About how long ago did you
21      pass this Comprehensive Plan?
22           MR. TALBOT:  That would have been around
23      2007.  We started in 2006, completed it about 13
24      months later.
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1      plain and simple.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  Basically your property
3      looked like a junk yard.
4           MR. STIVERS:  Excluding the business.
5           MR. McKINNEY:  I mean, not just the feed
6      lot area but the whole area.  We had a place up
7      south of Byron a couple years ago that was a
8      little bit worse than your property, but just
9      storing a lot of things that don't need to be


10      stored on your property.
11           I think that's what you were getting to
12      here.
13           MR. STIVERS:  Exactly.
14           MR. McKINNEY:  We are still in a public
15      hearing and I -- Mr. Funk brought up something
16      that if Mr. -- is it Talbot?
17           MR. TALBOT:  Talbot, yes.
18           MR. McKINNEY:  If you don't mind, can I
19      swear you in and ask you questions?  You did say
20      you are the zoning official?  You are a trustee
21      but also in charge of zoning?
22           MR. TALBOT:  Zoning ordinance enforcement.
23           MR. McKINNEY:  Do you mind if I swear you
24      in and we ask you some questions?
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  So it's only about not even
2      two years old?
3           MR. TALBOT:  (Nods head.)
4           MR. McKINNEY:  Can you tell us in this
5      Comprehensive Plan what your plans are for the
6      north -- let me back up.
7           What's your plans for growth?  Is it to
8      the north, south, east, west?
9           MR. TALBOT:  Well, I mean, the


10      Comprehensive Plan spells out what type of
11      growth we would take to the north.  I mean,
12      depending on how far north you would want to go
13      you -- what that would be would change.
14           I mean, certainly we are -- on Utility
15      Road I don't know that it was apartment
16      buildings but I believe it was the talk of
17      multi-family development, not an apartment
18      building.  There's also talk of a north park
19      entrance in the works as well on the north that
20      would face Utility Road.
21           As you would get down further the type of
22      what you would want further down would change.
23      Certainly as you got closer to the landfill you
24      wouldn't be building residential, you would be
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1      looking for more commercial type, as spelled out
2      in the plan.
3           MR. McKINNEY:  Where are you trying to
4      grow your Village right now?  Is it to the
5      north, or are you still looking to the east
6      along Route 72?
7           MR. TALBOT:  Well, quite frankly there's
8      been discussion of annexing toward 39, towards
9      the 39 corridor as far as, you know, recruiting


10      for retail, sales tax revenue.
11           MR. McKINNEY:  Do you currently have any
12      developers looking in the northwest area to
13      possibly start building?
14           MR. TALBOT:  Over on Utility Road you're
15      saying?
16           MR. McKINNEY:  Yes.
17           MR. TALBOT:  Parking Subdivision
18      (phonetic), the builder that is already there,
19      there's talk of a multi-family on Utility Road.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  Have you annexed that in
21      yet?
22           MR. TALBOT:  I believe it is part of the
23      Village, because they own all that land in the
24      area.
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1      this point there's nothing there, I mean I see
2      no sewer lines, no nothing there.
3           MR. TALBOT:  This development would
4      actually be -- in a sense it would be north of
5      the park.
6           MR. BRONKEMA:  North and east of the park?
7           MR. TALBOT:  Well, right behind the park,
8      north of the back end of the park, so it would
9      be northwest.


10           MR. FREEBERG:  Most of Davis Junction
11      development has been south.
12           MR. TALBOT:  The majority of the
13      residential construction has, yes.
14           MR. FREEBERG:  Is he right to say that
15      there's houses sitting out there that have been
16      for sale for a couple years?
17           MR. TALBOT:  I don't -- I mean, there's
18      been houses that have been for sale.  To say
19      two, three years, I really can't answer that.
20           MR. FREEBERG:  The information that we got
21      shows it in what you call a secondary growth
22      area, and this says here that this secondary
23      growth area shall not be a near term priority
24      for the Village of Davis Junction.  What is not
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  How close is this property
2      to Mr. Ancona's?  I'm picturing where the park
3      is, that fence along --
4           MR. TALBOT:  The end of the fence on the
5      west.
6           MR. McKINNEY:  Yeah, so it would be on the
7      west side of that park area?
8           MR. TALBOT:  It would be probably an
9      eighth of a mile.  I mean, I think you can


10      see -- if you were standing on that last fence
11      post on Utility Road on the west I believe you
12      can probably see his house.
13           MR. McKINNEY:  How many acres is this
14      developer looking at?
15           MR. TALBOT:  I'm not quite sure what the
16      acres are that he owns.
17           MR. FREEBERG:  You said there's talk, I
18      mean there's talk of all kind of things.  What
19      are the odds there's going to be any land broken
20      there in the next three to five years?
21           MR. TALBOT:  It would depend on the
22      economy.  I certainly can't talk for the
23      developer.
24           MR. BRONKEMA:  To the west of the park at
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1      be near term?  Does that mean you don't have any
2      plans for this area for awhile?
3           MR. TALBOT:  Once again, the only thing
4      would be north on Utility Road and then the
5      north park entrance.  I mean, we certainly
6      discussed what we would like to see in those
7      areas eventually, but as far as sitting down
8      with a developer for somebody to do it, no.
9           MR. FREEBERG:  It says the primary growth


10      area is better positioned for near term
11      predominately residential development.  Where's
12      the primary growth area?
13           MR. TALBOT:  For residential would be on
14      the south side of the tracks.
15           MR. FREEBERG:  Okay.  Development in a
16      secondary growth area should be discouraged
17      until the primary growth area is well on its way
18      to being developed and built on.
19           So, I mean, it says this is in the
20      secondary growth area and the way I read that
21      you don't really have any plans for this area
22      for awhile except for maybe some talk, but
23      apparently there's nothing concrete going on?
24           MR. TALBOT:  Well, once again --
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1           MR. FREEBERG:  Is that correct?
2           MR. TALBOT:  You're referring to the
3      residential development -- the secondary
4      residential development you're referring to?
5           MR. FREEBERG:  Yeah.
6           MR. TALBOT:  That would be, you know,
7      depending on the economy as far as when the
8      houses would sell.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  But you do have a developer


10      looking at it now?
11           MR. TALBOT:  The developer owns it, and
12      one of the representatives from the developer is
13      here this evening as well.
14           MR. McKINNEY:  Have you started any type
15      of infrastructure in that north section of town,
16      northwest side?
17           MR. TALBOT:  I can't speak if there is
18      infrastructure already on Utility Road.  I know
19      there certainly is where the houses are.  I
20      can't give you an honest answer where that
21      infrastructure is.
22           MR. REIBEL:  I'm not sure we're all on the
23      same page.
24           MR. McKINNEY:  On this map, this is where


Page 59


1           MR. TALBOT:  That would actually be so we
2      could encourage -- be able to take on the
3      growth, whether it be residential or commercial,
4      and we have made the commitment to the waste
5      water treatment plan which will be done, I
6      believe in May of this year.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  Any other questions of
8      Mr. Talbot?
9           MR. ANDERSON:  No.


10           MR. McKINNEY:  Do you have any questions
11      of Mr. Talbot?
12           MR. ANCONA:  No, sir.
13           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Unless you have
14      anything else --
15           MR. TALBOT:  Can I sit down?
16           MR. McKINNEY:  Yeah.
17           Is -- since we're still in public hearing,
18      is there anybody else that wishes to come
19      forward to oppose the petition or in favor of
20      the petition?
21           MR. PAYNE:  I'm the developer.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  Come forward and I'll swear
23      you in.
24
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1      your park is?
2           MR. TALBOT:  Yes.
3           MR. McKINNEY:  Where is this developer
4      looking at?
5           MR. TALBOT:  It would be along Utility
6      Road.  I believe it would be here.  I'm not
7      quite sure how much land they own all the way
8      down.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  How far to the west are


10      they going to go?  Just in this area?
11           MR. TALBOT:  Would we be able to get the
12      developer up here to answer that, because I
13      would just be guessing?
14           MR. McKINNEY:  Yeah.  He would have to be
15      sworn in.
16           He's indicated on this map it would be up
17      in this area just north.  Want to pass that
18      down.
19           Has your Village started budgeting or
20      anything for infrastructure in that area?
21           MR. TALBOT:  Well, we're building a
22      multi -- excuse me, the waste water treatment
23      plant out to the east of town.
24           MR. McKINNEY:  East of town.
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1                    CHARLES PAYNE,
2      being first duly sworn, testified as follows
3           MR. McKINNEY:  Give her your name and
4      address.
5           MR. PAYNE:  Charles Payne, P-A-Y-N-E,
6      29397 Church Road, Sycamore, Illinois, 60178.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Mr. Payne, if you
8      would step closer to the mic.  You say you're
9      the developer?


10           MR. PAYNE:  I'm a partner.
11           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay, and you own about how
12      many acres of land is there?
13           MR. PAYNE:  There's probably 70 there.
14           MR. McKINNEY:  What are your plans for
15      this?
16           MR. PAYNE:  Well, I thought my partner
17      wrote a letter, Roy Stiphanda (phonetic).
18           MR. REIBEL:  No, sir.
19           MR. PAYNE:  He's an attorney and I know he
20      told me he wrote a letter to you, and I wasn't
21      going to respond, you know.
22           MR. REIBEL:  Haven't received anything.
23           MR. PAYNE:  Anyhow, I mean, we already
24      have infrastructure, the infrastructure's all
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1      in.  We have water and sewer services.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  Can you show me on this map
3      where this 70 acres is?
4           MR. PAYNE:  Sure.
5           MR. BRONKEMA:  It's all on the east side
6      of the park?
7           MR. PAYNE:  Pardon?
8           MR. BRONKEMA:  It's on the east side of
9      the park?


10           MR. McKINNEY:  This is north.  This is the
11      park.
12           MR. PAYNE:  Right.  Right, so we have this
13      here, this is Park View West, then we own all
14      the way down to -- down to the end here, which
15      we have, you know, this is owned up to here.  We
16      put 16 -- we improved this with a 16-inch water
17      main all the way down to Utility Road.  I mean
18      we put a lot -- lot of improvements and we put
19      all -- we improved all this with water and
20      sewer.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  This is annexed into the
22      City.  Is this strip of land annexed into the
23      City?
24           MR. PAYNE:  I know this is all annexed
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1      usually have feature builders, and right now
2      sure there's no building but there's no building
3      in the United States, so I mean.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  When you would build it
5      would be building hundred thousand dollar homes
6      or $500,000 homes or higher?
7           MR. PAYNE:  No, they're, you know, 350 or
8      300.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  Are you looking at any


10      property even farther west?
11           MR. PAYNE:  Not at this time.
12           MR. McKINNEY:  You don't have any options
13      or anything on your property?
14           MR. PAYNE:  No, I don't.  I don't have any
15      further options.  We put the roads and sewers
16      all in but, I mean, we have a substantial amount
17      of money in the property.
18           MR. McKINNEY:  Mr. --
19           MR. PAYNE:  We put high back curbs and,
20      you know, we usually try to do pretty nice
21      things.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  Mr. Ancona said that you
23      built quite a few homes there but they're empty?
24           MR. PAYNE:  Oh, I know at the time, I
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1      here.
2           MR. REIBEL:  It is.
3           MR. PAYNE:  In fact, I was wondering why
4      we didn't get a notice myself because we were --
5           MR. REIBEL:  It doesn't touch.
6           MR. PAYNE:  Pardon?
7           MR. REIBEL:  Because it doesn't touch.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  They own here --
9           MR. PAYNE:  Oh, doesn't touch, no, the


10      road is in between.
11           MR. McKINNEY:  -- to the north side of the
12      park.
13           MR. BRONKEMA:  He's a quarter mile or so
14      from that.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  Looks like from the edge it
16      might be an eighth -- about how far away are you
17      from the Petitioner?
18           MR. PAYNE:  Oh, looking at that I'd just
19      estimate probably, what, 500 feet.
20           MR. REIBEL:  Yeah, close to that.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  What type of homes are you
22      building?
23           MR. PAYNE:  We usually do trade-up but
24      we -- in other words, I'm a developer, we
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1      mean, we're right on the edge of when, you know,
2      the economy changed in the house building and,
3      you know, we're one of those things where you're
4      caught.  I have done other -- I have done
5      developments all my life, one was -- just like
6      in Sycamore we did Fox Point, which I know I did
7      where Farm & Fleet put all the houses behind.  I
8      mean, sure everything went good till -- till now
9      and, I mean, that's just part of the times.


10           MR. FREEBERG:  Do you personally want this
11      operation shut down and out of there in the next
12      five years?
13           MR. PAYNE:  Well, I don't think that's the
14      place for one.  I mean, there's a place for
15      everything, I don't think it's the place right
16      by the park, I mean, with Davis Junction putting
17      that park in, a gorgeous park.
18           MR. FREEBERG:  How old is the park?
19           MR. PAYNE:  I don't know, probably -- I'm
20      just guessing --
21           MR. BRONKEMA:  I would say 10 years.
22           MR. PAYNE:  Yeah, probably 10 years.
23           MR. FREEBERG:  How long have you owned
24      this property?
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1           MR. PAYNE:  Probably five years.
2           MR. FREEBERG:  So he was there first.
3      Have you offered to buy his property?  Fine if
4      you don't like it there and you don't like the
5      looks of it.  Have you offered to buy his
6      property?
7           MR. PAYNE:  His property?
8           MR. FREEBERG:  Yeah.
9           MR. PAYNE:  Why should I?


10           MR. FREEBERG:  Well, I don't know,
11      somebody apparently doesn't want him there.
12           MR. PAYNE:  I can't go around buying every
13      property, I mean, that's why you're here,
14      zoning.
15           MR. FREEBERG:  Sometimes people try to use
16      the Government to achieve their --
17           MR. PAYNE:  Oh, I'm not.
18           MR. FREEBERG:  -- what they want.
19           MR. PAYNE:  But I think the Government
20      should respect, you know, other people.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Any other questions of
22      Mr. Payne?
23           Mr. Ancona, do you have any questions of
24      the developer?
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Is there anybody else that
2      wishes to testify either in favor or opposing
3      this petition?
4           Seeing none, I ask for a motion to close
5      the public hearing.
6           MR. BRONKEMA:  So moved.
7           MR. FREEBERG:  I'll second.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Been moved and seconded to
9      close the public hearing.  All those in favor


10      signify by saying aye.
11                    (All those simultaneously
12                     responded.)
13           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed said nay.
14           Motion passed.  We're back into open
15      session.
16           Before we go into our finding of facts,
17      did you guys want to discuss this five year,
18      three year?
19           MR. ANDERSON:  Stick with five.
20           MR. BRONKEMA:  Well, he brought up a good
21      point, three years don't give you much breathing
22      room, and five years ain't the end of the earth
23      I guess, but I'd like to see some improvement
24      before he -- ahead --
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1           MR. ANCONA:  Do you own those two -- those
2      houses down there that ain't selling that have
3      been there, I think at least two years?
4           MR. PAYNE:  No, I do not.
5           MR. ANCONA:  That big white house that's
6      on the corner by the park?
7           MR. PAYNE:  No, I don't own it, no.
8           MR. ANCONA:  That's not part of your --
9           MR. PAYNE:  That is part of the


10      development, but I don't own the house.
11           MR. ANCONA:  Excuse me, it's part of the
12      development but your company owns it?
13           MR. PAYNE:  No.  No.  No.
14           MR. ANCONA:  A contractor just built it
15      there, he just bought the property off of you?
16           MR. PAYNE:  Right.
17           MR. ANCONA:  And he's trying to sell it
18      but he can't sell it?
19           MR. PAYNE:  Correct, uh-huh.
20           MR. ANCONA:  That's all I have.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Thank you.
22           MR. PAYNE:  I mean, there's a lot of
23      people in the United States that can't sell
24      their homes, we all know that.
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1           MR. ANCONA:  I will.  I will.
2           MR. BRONKEMA:  -- ahead of time, I mean.
3           MR. ANCONA:  I'll do my best.  Like I say,
4      the weather ain't cooperating much either, it's
5      been cold and snow.
6           MR. BRONKEMA:  I'm talking more than a
7      fence.
8           MR. ANCONA:  Excuse me?
9           MR. BRONKEMA:  I want to see more than a


10      fence.
11           MR. ANCONA:  Right.  Okay.
12           MR. FREEBERG:  You got a couple buildings
13      that appear to be falling down.
14           MR. ANCONA:  That just happened a month
15      ago.
16           MR. FREEBERG:  Maybe you can throw it in
17      your dumpster.
18           MR. ANCONA:  I'm dealing with the
19      insurance company, hopefully they'll give me
20      some money.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Nothing else, we'll go
22      through the finding of facts.
23           MR. REIBEL:  Special Use Standard No. 1)
24      That the proposed Special Use will not be
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1      unreasonably detrimental to the value of other
2      property in the neighborhood in which it is to
3      be located or public health, safety, morals,
4      comfort or general welfare at large.
5           MR. FREEBERG:  I think considering the
6      five year limit that's been agreed to and the
7      current state of the economy as far as
8      construction, I think the proposed Special Use
9      will not be unreasonably detrimental to the


10      value of other property in the neighborhood in
11      which it is located or the public health,
12      safety, morals, comfort or general welfare at
13      large due to the low intensity of the proposed
14      use and the proposed use is completely
15      surrounded by agricultural uses and is well
16      buffered from residential uses and per agreement
17      will be -- have a fence built around it to limit
18      the sight.
19           MR. STIVERS:  Standard met.
20           MR. FREEBERG:  Okay, so I think the
21      Standard is met on that.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  I don't quite agree.
23      I think even right now it's a detriment to Davis
24      Junction the way it stands right now.  I'm very
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1      conducted in connection with it and the location
2      of the site with respect to streets giving
3      access to it are such that the Special Use will
4      not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to
5      prevent development and use of neighboring
6      property in accordance with the applicable
7      zoning district regulations.  In determining
8      whether the Special Use will so dominate the
9      immediate neighborhood considerations shall be


10      given to, A) The location, nature and height of
11      the buildings, structures, walls and fences on
12      the site and B) The nature and extent of the
13      proposed landscaping and screening on the
14      proposed site.
15           MR. ANDERSON:  The location and size of
16      the Special Use, the nature and intensity of the
17      operation involved in or conducted in connection
18      with it and the location of the site with
19      respect to streets giving access to it are such
20      that the Special Use will not dominate the
21      immediate neighborhood so as to prevent
22      development and use of neighboring property in
23      accordance with the Ag Zoning District
24      regulations.  The proposed Special Use is


Page 70


1      concerned about him even storing waste
2      overnight, especially if there is a possible
3      chance whether it has some hazardous waste in
4      there, could be asbestos, could be used oil or
5      something, it's not being checked, could be
6      bringing in rodents, birds, you know.
7           MR. ANDERSON:  But that's why I asked if
8      there was anything in the County that can
9      regulate IEPA, we don't have anything that's for


10      nonhazardous waste and that's what he got, so we
11      don't have any way to --
12           MR. BRONKEMA:  Regulate.
13           MR. ANDERSON:  So I agree with the
14      Standard being met.
15           MR. STIVERS:  I agree.
16           MR. BRONKEMA:  I'll agree too, but I'd
17      still like to see the improvements before.
18           MR. ANDERSON:  I agree.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  So four agree, one feels
20      Standard not met.
21           Next.
22           MR. REIBEL:  Standard 2) That the location
23      and size of the Special Use, nature and
24      intensity of the operation involved in or
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1      surrounded by cropland and screened by a solid
2      wood fence 6 feet high and will provide service
3      to the area.
4           I feel that Standard is met.
5           MR. STIVERS:  I agree.
6           MR. FREEBERG:  I agree.
7           MR. BRONKEMA:  I'll have to agree.  He's
8      the only driveway on that road to start with,
9      plus he's providing a service.


10           MR. McKINNEY:  I'll agree.
11           MR. REIBEL:  Standard 3) That off-street
12      parking and loading areas will be provided in
13      accordance with the Standards set forth in the
14      zoning regulations.
15           MR. BRONKEMA:  Well, the site's large
16      enough for adequate off-street parking and
17      loading area and it could be provided.  At this
18      point I don't feel that the off-street parking
19      and loading is adequate, so I'll have to
20      disagree with that one.
21           Standard not met.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  I also feel that with
23      everything that's stored in that parking lot and
24      feed lot there's not really much room to even
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1      move around right now, so he doesn't have really
2      too much adequate space.
3           MR. BRONKEMA:  He's got plenty of property
4      but at this point there's just -- it's not
5      adequate.
6           MR. STIVERS:  I agree.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  You agree that the Standard
8      is not met or met?
9           MR. STIVERS:  Not met.


10           MR. FREEBERG:  The way -- the way this
11      reads it says the site is large enough.  I mean,
12      it may not be used now but I think there's
13      plenty of space there, so I think Standard is
14      met.
15           MR. REIBEL:  The reason we provide
16      off-street -- or require off-street parking is
17      so that we don't have parking on the road or in
18      the road right-of-way.  Is there enough room
19      right there so that there's not congestion on
20      the road or parking on the road or encroachment
21      on road right-of-ways?
22           MR. ANDERSON:  He doesn't have problems
23      with getting stuff off the road, he's got
24      everything on the property.  Whether we like the
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1      Back up, strike that.
2           No. 4) That adequate utilities, ingress,
3      egress to the site, access roads, drainage and
4      other such necessary facilities have been or
5      will be provided.
6           MR. BRONKEMA:  I -- utilities, ingress,
7      egress to the site, access road, drainage and
8      other such necessary facilities have been or
9      will be provided.


10           I feel that Standard is met.
11           MR. ANDERSON:  I agree.
12           MR. FREEBERG:  I agree.
13           MR. STIVERS:  Agree.
14           MR. McKINNEY:  Agree.
15           MR. REIBEL:  Standard 5) That the proposed
16      use can be operated in a manner that is not
17      detrimental to the permitted developments and
18      uses in the zoning district and can be developed
19      and operated in a manner that is visibly
20      compatible with the permitted uses in the
21      surrounding area and is deemed essential or
22      desirable to preserve and promote the public
23      health, safety and general welfare of Ogle
24      County.
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1      fact that it's organized or not is probably
2      irrelevant.
3           MR. McKINNEY:  Maury, do you want to
4      change your --
5           MR. STIVERS:  Yeah, that's a different --
6      I mean, he does have enough to accommodate what
7      he does with the dumpsters.
8           MR. ANDERSON:  Yeah.
9           MR. BRONKEMA:  I still disagree.  He's got


10      adequate enough space but it's just not
11      provided.
12           MR. McKINNEY:  I also agree it's not met.
13           So three agree it's met, two not met.
14           MR. REIBEL:  Standard 5 ) That the
15      proposed use can be operated in a manner that is
16      not detrimental to the permitted developments
17      and uses in the zoning district and can be
18      developed and operated in a manner that is
19      visually compatible with the permitted uses in
20      the surrounding area and is deemed essential or
21      desirable to preserve and promote --
22           MR. McKINNEY:  Mike, I think you missed
23      No. 4, didn't you?
24           MR. REIBEL:  I'm sorry.  I'm sorry.  Yeah.
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1           MR. ANDERSON:  The proposed use can be
2      operated in a manner that is not detrimental to
3      the permitted developments and uses in AG-1
4      Zoning District, which are primarily
5      agricultural related uses, with the
6      recommendations that have been put in place.
7           I feel that Standard is met.
8           MR. BRONKEMA:  I'll agree.
9           MR. FREEBERG:  I agree.


10           MR. STIVERS:  I agree.
11           MR. McKINNEY:  I feel that it's not met.
12      We have letters from both Davis Junction and --
13      what, Scott Township?
14           MR. REIBEL:  Yes.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  Requesting that we deny
16      this, the County Board deny it because it
17      doesn't fit into their Comprehensive Plan for
18      this area.
19           MR. STIVERS:  I think it is like someone
20      said, he's been there 17 years.  This developer
21      knew that man had that piece of property at the
22      time that he developed that, he didn't bring
23      that up to the County at that point -- at that
24      stage.  He was there first.
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1           MR. ANDERSON:  And everything we're
2      talking about with development is speculation,
3      that's why there's a five-year limit on the
4      Special Use Permit, at that time then it can be
5      reviewed and if there's development going on
6      that it's not -- then it becomes detrimental,
7      but at this point it's not detrimental.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  I still feel it's
9      not met.


10           So four say it is met and one not met.
11           MR. REIBEL:  Standard 6) That the proposed
12      Special Use complies with all provisions of the
13      applicable district regulations.
14           MR. FREEBERG:  The proposed Special Use
15      appears to comply with all provisions of AG-1
16      District regulations.
17           I think the Standard is met.
18           MR. ANDERSON:  I agree.
19           MR. STIVERS:  I agree.
20           MR. BRONKEMA:  I agree.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Agree.
22           Going through the six Standards, Standard
23      1:  Four felt that Standard was met, one not
24      met; Standard 2, all five agreed that the
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1           MR. BRONKEMA:  I have a comment to make.
2      I got an idea that this City probably uses this
3      man for some of their business.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  I'm just -- my concern is
5      once he's there legally for five years with the
6      Special Use Permit it's going to be very hard
7      when they want to start developing to be taking
8      this away from him.
9           MR. STIVERS:  Mr. Ancona, you well


10      understand what the Board has done?  Most of
11      this we're expecting you to follow those five
12      rules.
13           MR. ANCONA:  Right, I understand that.
14           MR. FREEBERG:  One thing I thought about,
15      and there hasn't been any discussion, that he's
16      not going to put up a permanent investment, like
17      a building or something, that five years down
18      the road we're saying, okay, now you got to tear
19      the thing down, it's going to stay pretty much
20      like it is, so I don't see any problem
21      reconsidering this if anything like that would
22      change over the five years.
23           MR. McKINNEY:  Anything else, or are you
24      ready to vote?
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1      Standard was met; No. 3, three stated Standard
2      was met, two not met; No. 4, all agreed the
3      Standard was met; 5, four people -- four of us
4      agreed that the Standard was met, one not met;
5      and 6, all agreed the Standard met.
6           So I will entertain a motion.
7           MR. FREEBERG:  I think we have sort of a
8      compromise here which we don't see very often.
9      On the one hand I can appreciate the City


10      doesn't want something like that long term as
11      development grows out there.  On the other hand
12      Mr. Ancona has agreed to the five-year limit.
13      So I think there's been sort of a compromise.
14           So I'll make a motion that we recommend to
15      the County Board that they grant the Special Use
16      Permit 9-08 to the Anconas with the -- what is
17      it -- five restrictions that have been agreed
18      to.
19           MR. STIVERS:  Right.
20           MR. ANDERSON:  I'll second that.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Been moved and seconded to
22      recommend approval of Special Use No. 9-08 for
23      David and Paijit Ancona.
24           Ready for roll call.
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1           Roll call.
2           MR. REIBEL:  Bronkema?
3           MR. BRONKEMA:  Yes.
4           MR. REIBEL:  Stivers?
5           MR. STIVERS:  Yes.
6           MR. REIBEL:  Anderson?
7           MR. ANDERSON:  Yes.
8           MR. REIBEL:  Freeberg?
9           MR. FREEBERG:  Yes.


10           MR. REIBEL:  McKinney?
11           MR. McKINNEY:  No.
12                    (By voice vote four ayes, one
13                     nay.)
14           MR. REIBEL:  Four voted yes, one no.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  Motion passed.
16           Do you want to inform them about the next
17      meetings?
18           MR. REIBEL:  Yes.  This petition will go
19      to the Planning and Zoning Committee on February
20      11th, and that's at 1 o'clock in the afternoon
21      right here in this room.  You're welcome to
22      attend.  To the County Board for decision on
23      February 17th, that's at 5:30 in the evening,
24      also right here.
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  We have got some
2      more business but it doesn't need to be --
3      Callie doesn't need to take verbatim minutes,
4      does she?
5           MR. REIBEL:  No, not if the only thing we
6      have is the resolution to adopt the schedule of
7      meetings for this calendar year.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay, so you can go off the
9      record.


10                    (A discussion was held off
11                     the record.)
12           MR. McKINNEY:  Motion to adjourn.
13           MR. FREEBERG:  So moved.
14           MR. BRONKEMA:  Second.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  Moved and seconded.  All
16      those in favor signify by saying aye.
17                    (All those simultaneously
18                     responded.)
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say nay.
20                    (The hearing was concluded at
21                     8:22 p.m.)
22
23
24
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1      Now on this 29th day of January, A.D. 2009, I
2 do signify that the foregoing testimony was given
3 before the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals.
4
5
6
7


               Bruce McKinney, Chairman
8
9


10
11
12


               Michael Reibel,
13                Zoning Administrator
14
15
16
17


               Callie S. Fleming
18                Certified Shorthand Reporter


               Registered Professional Reporter
19                IL License No. 084-004489


               P.O. Box 381
20                Dixon, Illinois  61021
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REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT
JANUARY 22, 2009


The regular monthly meeting of the Ogle County Regional Planning Commission was held on
Thursday, January 22, 2009 in the County Board Room, Third Floor, Ogle County Courthouse,
Oregon, IL.


The Order of Business is as follows:


1. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF A QUORUM.


Chairman Funk called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. Roll call indicated six members of the
Regional Planning Commission were present: Chairman Lloyd Funk, Paul White, Randy Ocken,
Don Conn, David Poole and Wayne Reising. Ron Colson was absent.


2. READING AND APPROVAL OF REPORT OF NOVEMBER 20, 2008 AS MINUTES.


Chairman Funk asked for any changes or corrections to the report of the November 20, 2008
meeting of the Ogle County Regional Planning Commission.  Hearing none, Chairman Funk
declared the minutes approved as read.


3. UNFINISHED BUSINESS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


There was no unfinished business for consideration.


4. NEW BUSINESS


A. DECISIONS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


#9-08 SPECIAL USE -- David & Paijit Ancona, 12488 E. Utility Rd., Davis
Junction, IL for a Special Use Permit to allow a Small Rural Business (dumpster
storage & rental/general hauling of non-hazardous materials including furniture,
appliances, construction debris, etc.) in the  AG-1 Agricultural District on property
described as follows and owned the petitioners:


Part of the SE1/4 of the SW1/4 Section 15 Scott Township 42N, R1E of
the 3rd P.M., Ogle County, IL, 5.0 acres, more or less
Property Identification Number: 11-15-300-003
Common Location: 12488 E. Utility Rd.


Mr. Reibel read the Staff Report.  The Staff Report indicates that the existing land use is
residential; all surrounding land is in agricultural use and zoned AG-1; the site is located within
the 1.5 mile planning radius of the Village of Davis Junction and is designated as a “Secondary
Growth Area” by the Village Comprehensive Plan; the Ogle County Amendatory Comprehensive
Plan designates the site and surrounding area for continued agricultural use; the road providing
access to the site is gravel-surfaced and under the jurisdiction of Scott Township; the soil type
present on the site is 622B - Wyanette silt loam, 2-5% slopes, which is classified as “Prime
Farmland”; the LESA score of indicates a low rating for protection (LE = 84.0; SA = 103).


The Staff Report recommends that following conditions:
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1. All proposals and representations made by the applicant and/or their representative shall
be conditions of the Special Use Permit, including, but not necessarily limited to, the
installation of screening (6' high fence) as depicted and described on the Concept Plan
submitted as part of the petition for Special Use Permit.  Said fence/screening shall be
installed within ninety (90) days of the approval of this Special Use Permit.


2. There shall be no outside storage and/or accumulation of junk (as defined by the Ogle
County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance), waste, inoperable and/or unlicenced motor
vehicles, etc. on the site.


3. There shall be no storage on the site of dumpsters containing waste materials in excess
of twenty-four (24) hours, provided any dumpster containing waste is completely covered
or enclosed.


4. All dumpsters shall be stored within the area enclosed by fence/buildings and out of view
from the public road at all times.


A letter from the County Highway Department indicates they have no comments regarding this
request.  IDNR found no record of State-listed threatened or endangered species in the vicinity
of the project location.


Mr. & Mrs. Ancona were present.  Mr. Ancona stated he has been in the dumpster business for
seventeen years.  He now understands that a special use permit is required for him to continue
running his business. He explained that there are several businesses operating in the area
including the Orchard Hills Landfill and Gensler Gardens which have dumpsters on the site.  He
explained that his dumpsters are currently stored on a concrete slab.  He stated that during the
summer months most of the dumpsters are being used and are off the site but winter is slower
so more are being stored during that time.  He explained how he will be enclosing the area
where the dumpsters are being stored with a 6' high wood fence.  He stated that he currently
serves customers in both Winnebago and Ogle County and purchases his diesel at the gas
station located at Route 72 and Route 251.  He feels that he pays taxes and puts money back
into Ogle County.


Mr. Poole clarified that Mr. Ancona has had the dumpsters for a number of years, which Mr.
Ancona confirmed.


Mr. Funk asked for clarification on what will be done with the dumpsters.  Mr. Ancona
responded that he will pickup the full dumpsters take the contents to the Orchard Hills Landfill
and bring them back to his property and that his truck will be the only one coming in and out of
the site.


Mr. Funk questioned what will be done with other larger trash items such as furniture.  Mr.
Ancona clarified that he takes in no chemicals and that larger items will be disposed of at the
landfill within two days.


Mr. Conn asked Mr. Reibel if a time limit could be put on the special use to better monitor the
impact of the business on the residential growth in the area.  He suggested a renewal every five
years.  Mr. Reibel stated that a time limit can be place on the Special Use Permit.  Mr. White
responded that he doesn’t want to see Mr. Ancona pay more fees by renewing the permit every
five years. Mr. Reibel stated that he could talk to the State’s Attorney and see if the County
Board could delegate authority to the Planning & Zoning Committee to review the permit and
decide if it could be renewed or if a public hearing would need to be held.  The members
agreed.


Mr. Reising expressed concern that construction debris, appliances and etc. could be on the
site.  He stated that he feels this is open ended and questioned if Mr. Ancona anticipated more
than what was listed in the application.  Mr. Ancona explained that the material he normally
hauls comes from a customer moving and the materials that remain.   Mr. Conn stated that the
materials stay in the container while on the site and is never dumped there.  Mr. Reising
expressed concern that he has seen hogs thrown in a dumpster and that is something that
neighbors wouldn’t want on the site even overnight.  Discussion ensued.
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Mr. Ocken suggested that the time limit be set at ten years instead of five.  


It was clarified that Davis Junction designates the property as a “secondary growth area”.  


Mr. Reibel stated that he would recommend the renewal period set for every five years.  He
explained that Davis Junction is growing fast and it is easier to keep track of a case every five
years as opposed to every ten.


Bob DeArvil, member of the Ogle County Board was present.  He expressed concern of
appliances being hauled to the property and leaking chemicals such as freon.  Mr. Ancona
responded that he generally doesn’t pick up large appliances of that type but if he does he has
the equipment to remove and dispose of freon.  


Mr. Conn made a motion to approve the #9-08 Special Use Permit for David & Paijit Ancona
with the stipulation that it be reviewed every five years in a way that Mr. Reibel works out with
the States Attorney and subject to the conditions as recommended in the Staff Report; Mr. Funk
asked what would happen if the property is annexed into the Village of Davis Junction.  Mr.
Reibel responded that it would no longer be under the County’s jurisdiction; Mr. White seconded
the motion to recommend approval.  Mr. Funk called for a roll call, the vote being as follows: 
Mr. Conn - yes; Mr. Poole - yes; Mr. Ocken - yes; Mr. White - yes; Mr. Reising -yes; Mr. Funk -
no.  The motion carried by a vote of 5 in favor, 1 opposed.


5. OTHER BUSINESS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


2009 Meeting Resolution


The 2009 Meeting resolution of the Regional Planning Commission was presented to the
Committee for consideration.  


Mr. Conn made a motion to approve the 2009 meeting resolution; seconded by Mr. Ocken.  The
motion carried by a voice vote.


6. PUBLIC COMMENT


There was no public comment.


7. ADJOURN


Chairman Funk declared the meeting adjourned at 7:22 P.M.  The next meeting of the Ogle
County Regional Planning Commission will be February 19, 2009 in the County Board Room,
Third Floor, Ogle County Courthouse, Oregon, IL.


Respectfully submitted,


Michael Reibel
Zoning Administrator
















STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS


COUNTY OF OGLE )
ORDINANCE NO.                                  


AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 12488 E. UTILITY ROAD


WHEREAS, David & Paijit Ancona have filed a petition for a Special Use Permit in the AG-1 Agricultural
District (Petition No. 09-08SU) to allow a Small Rural Business (dumpster storage & rental / general hauling of non-
hazardous materials including furniture, appliances, construction debris, etc.) on property located at 12488 E. Utility
Road in Scott Township and legally described as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; and


WHEREAS, following due and proper notice by publication in the Ogle County Life at least fifteen (15)
days prior thereto, and by mailing notice to all owners of property abutting the subject property, the Village of Davis
Junction and Scott Township at least fifteen (15) days prior thereto, the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals
conducted a public hearing on January 29, 2009, at which the petitioner presented evidence, testimony, and exhibits
in support of the requested the requested Special Use Permit, and no member(s) of the public spoke in favor of or
against the petition.  However, the Village of Davis Junction and Scott Township submitted letters of objection to
the requested Special Use Permit, said letters being part of the official record; and


WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, having considered the evidence, testimony and exhibits
presented has made its findings of fact and recommended that the requested Special Use Permit be granted with
conditions as set forth in the Findings of Fact and Recommendation of the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals
dated January 29, 2009, a copy of which is appended hereto as Exhibit “B”; and


WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Committee of the Ogle County Board has reviewed the testimony
and exhibits presented at the public hearing and has considered the Findings of Fact and Recommendation of the
Zoning Board of Appeals, and has forwarded no  recommendation to the Ogle County Board regarding the requested
Special Use Permit (a motion being made and seconded to recommend approval, with the roll call vote resulting in 3
votes in favor of the motion to recommend approval, and 3 votes against said motion); and


WHEREAS, the Ogle County Board has considered the findings of fact and recommendation of the Zoning
Board of Appeals, and has determined that granting the Special Use Permit to allow a Small Rural Business
(dumpster storage & rental / general hauling of non-hazardous materials including furniture, appliances, construction
debris, etc.) in the AG-1 Agricultural District would be consistent with the requirements established by Section
9.08(C) of the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance;


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF OGLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as
follows:


SECTION ONE:  The report of the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals, Exhibit “B” attached hereto, is
hereby accepted and the findings set forth therein are hereby adopted as the findings of fact and conclusions of the
Ogle County Board.


SECTION TWO:  Based on the findings of fact set forth above, the request of David & Paijit Ancona for a
Special Use Permit in the AG-1 Agricultural District (Petition No. 09-08SU) to allow a Small Rural Business
(dumpster storage & rental / general hauling of non-hazardous materials including furniture, appliances, construction
debris, etc.) on property located at 12488 E. Utility Road in Scott Township and legally described as shown in
Exhibit “A” attached hereto, is hereby approved.


SECTION THREE: This approval of a Special Use Permit is subject to the following conditions:


1. All proposals and representations made by the applicant and/or their representative shall be conditions of
the Special Use Permit, including, but not necessarily limited to, the installation of screening (6' high fence)
as depicted and described on the Concept Plan submitted as part of the petition for Special Use Permit. 
Said fence/screening shall be installed within ninety (90) days of the approval of this Special Use Permit.
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2. There shall be no outside storage and/or accumulation of junk (as defined by the Ogle County Amendatory
Zoning Ordinance), waste, inoperable and/or unlicenced motor vehicles, etc. on the site.


3. There shall be no storage on the site of dumpsters containing waste materials in excess of twenty-four (24)
hours, provided any dumpster containing waste is completely covered or enclosed.


4. All dumpsters shall be stored within the area enclosed by fence/buildings and out of view from the public
road at all times.


5. This special use permit shall be valid for a period of five (5) years from the data of approval by the Ogle
County Board.  The Supervisor of Assessments and Planning & Zoning Committee of the Ogle County
Board shall have the delegated responsibility and authority to either extend or discontinue the Special Use
Permit upon the expiration of said five (5) year period, giving due consideration to the continued
compatibility of the authorized use with the surrounding area and other applicable factors as determined by
the Committee.  The Committee shall give notice of its intent to act on this matter as provided herein to the
owner of the land to which the Special Use Permit applies, to all adjacent land owners, to the Village of
Davis Junction, and to Scott Township.


SECTION FOUR:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption by the County Board
of Ogle County, Illinois and attestation by the Ogle County Clerk.


SECTION FIVE:  Failure of the owners or other party in interest or a subsequent owner or other party in
interest to comply with the terms of this Ordinance, after execution of such Ordinance, shall subject the owners or
party in interest to the penalties set forth in Section 9.10 of the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance.


PASSED BY THE COUNTY BOARD THIS 17TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2009 A.D.


                                                                              
W. Ed Rice, Chairman of the Ogle County Board


ATTEST:


                                                                              
Rebecca Huntley, Ogle County Clerk and
Ex Officio Clerk of the Ogle County Board


        Motion to approve Ordinance 2009-0201 was DEFEATED on a Roll Call Vote







EXHIBIT “A”


Part of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of Section Fifteen (15), Township Forty-two (42)
North, Range One (1) East of the Third (3rd) Principal Meridian, Ogle County, Illinois,
bounded and described as follows, to-wit: Beginning at a point on the South line of the
Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of said Section Fifteen (15), said point being 276.00 feet
West of the Southeast (SE) corner of said Southwest Quarter (SW1/4); thence continuing
Westerly along the South line of said Southwest Quarter (SW1/4), a distance of 670.15
feet; thence Northerly perpendicular to said South line, a distance of 325.00 feet; thence
Easterly parallel to the South line of said Southwest Quarter (SW1/4), a distance of
670.15 feet; thence Southerly perpendicular to said South line, a distance of 325.00 feet
to the point of beginning, situated in Ogle County, State of Illinois


P.I.N.: 11-15-300-003


        Motion to approve Ordinance 2009-0201 was DEFEATED on a Roll Call Vote
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Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals
911 W. Pines Road


Oregon, IL 61061
815.732.1190


Fax: 815.732.2229


1


FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION
OF THE OGLE COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS


This is the findings of fact and the recommendation of the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals
concerning an application of David & Paijit Ancona, 12488 E. Utility Rd., Davis Junction, IL, in case
#09-08SU.  The applicants are requesting a Special Use Permit to permit a Small Rural Business
(dumpster storage & rental / general hauling of non-hazardous materials including furniture, appliances,
construction debris, etc.) in the AG-1 Agricultural District on Parcel Identification No. 11-15-300-003, a
5.0 acre parcel which is  part of Section 15, Township 42N, Range 1E of the 3rd Principal Meridian and is
located in Scott Township at 12488 E. Utility Road.


After due notice, as required by law, the Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing in this case on
January 29, 2009 in the County Board Room, 3rd Floor, Ogle County Courthouse, Oregon, Illinois and
hereby report their findings of fact and their recommendation as follows:


SITE INFORMATION: See Staff Report (attached herewith).


ANALYSIS OF SEVEN STANDARDS:  After considering all the evidence and testimony presented at
the public hearing, this Board makes the following analysis of the six standards listed in Section 9.08(C)
(Standards for Special Use Permits) of the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance that must all be
found in the affirmative prior to recommending granting of the petition.


1. That the proposed special use will not be unreasonably detrimental to the value of other property
in the neighborhood in which it is to be located or the public health, safety, morals, comfort or
general welfare at large.  Considering the five-year limitation on the Special Use Permit and
the current state of the economy as far as construction, the proposed special use will not be
unreasonably detrimental to the value of other property in the neighborhood in which it is
to be located or the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare at large due to
the low intensity of the proposed use, the proposed special use is completely surrounded by
agricultural uses and is well-buffered from residential uses, and will be screened from sight. 
STANDARD MET.


2. That the location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in
or conducted in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving
access to it are such that the special use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to
prevent development and use of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning
district regulations. In determining whether the special use will so dominate the immediate
neighborhood, consideration shall be given to:


a. The location, nature and height of building, structures, walls and fences on the site; and,


b. The nature and extent of proposed landscaping and screening on the proposed site.
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The location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in
or conducted in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving
access to it are such that the special use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as
to prevent development and use of neighboring property in accordance with the AG-1
zoning district regulations.  The proposed special use is surrounded by crop land, will be
screened with a solid wood fence six feet in height, and will provide a service to the area. 
STANDARD MET.


3. That off-street parking and loading areas will be provided in accordance with the standards set
forth in these regulations.  The site is large enough that adequate off-street parking and
loading areas can be provided.  STANDARD MET.


4. That adequate utilities, ingress/egress to the site, access roads, drainage and other such necessary
facilities have been or will be provided.  Adequate utilities, ingress/egress to the site, access
roads, drainage and other such necessary facilities have been or will be provided.
STANDARD MET.


5. That the proposed use can be operated in a manner that is not detrimental to the permitted
developments and uses in the zoning district; can be developed and operated in a manner that is
visually compatible with the permitted uses in the surrounding area; and is deemed essential or
desirable to preserve and promote the public health, safety and general welfare of Ogle County. 
With conditions that have been recommended, the proposed use can be operated in a
manner that is not detrimental to the permitted developments and uses in the AG-1 zoning
district, which are primarily agricultural and agriculturally-related uses. STANDARD
MET.


6. That the proposed special use complies with all provisions of the applicable district regulations. 
The proposed special use appears to comply with all provisions of the AG-1 district
regulations.  STANDARD MET.


RECOMMENDATION: After considering all the evidence and testimony presented, this Board finds
that the application meets all the standards as found in Section 9.08(C) of the Ogle County Amendatory
Zoning Ordinance.


Therefore, the Zoning Board of Appeals hereby recommends that a Special Use Permit be granted to
allow a Small Rural Business (dumpster storage & rental / general hauling of non-hazardous materials
including furniture, appliances, construction debris, etc.) in the AG-1 Agricultural District subject to the
following conditions:


1. All proposals and representations made by the applicant and/or their representative shall be
conditions of the Special Use Permit, including, but not necessarily limited to, the installation of
screening (6' high fence) as depicted and described on the Concept Plan submitted as part of the
petition for Special Use Permit.  Said fence/screening shall be installed within ninety (90) days of
the approval of this Special Use Permit.


2. There shall be no outside storage and/or accumulation of junk (as defined by the Ogle County
Amendatory Zoning Ordinance), waste, inoperable and/or unlicenced motor vehicles, etc. on the
site.


3. There shall be no storage on the site of dumpsters containing waste materials in excess of twenty-
four (24) hours, provided any dumpster containing waste is completely covered or enclosed.


        Motion to approve Ordinance 2009-0201 was DEFEATED on a Roll Call Vote
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS


COUNTY OF OGLE )
RESOLUTION NO.                                  


A RESOLUTION DENYING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 12488 E. UTILITY ROAD


WHEREAS, David & Paijit Ancona have filed a petition for a Special Use Permit in the AG-1 Agricultural
District (Petition No. 09-08SU) to allow a Small Rural Business (dumpster storage & rental / general hauling of non-
hazardous materials including furniture, appliances, construction debris, etc.) on property located at 12488 E. Utility Road
in Scott Township and legally described as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; and


WHEREAS, following due and proper notice by publication in the Ogle County Life at least fifteen (15) days
prior thereto, and by mailing notice to all owners of property abutting the subject property, the Village of Davis Junction
and Scott Township at least fifteen (15) days prior thereto, the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals conducted a public
hearing on January 29, 2009, at which the petitioner presented evidence, testimony, and exhibits in support of the requested
the requested Special Use Permit, and no member(s) of the public spoke in favor of or against the petition.  However, the
Village of Davis Junction and Scott Township submitted letters of objection to the requested Special Use Permit, said
letters being part of the official record; and


WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, having considered the evidence, testimony and exhibits presented has
made its findings of fact and recommended that the requested Special Use Permit be granted with conditions as set forth in
the Findings of Fact and Recommendation of the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals dated January 29, 2009, a copy of
which is appended hereto as Exhibit “B”; and


WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Committee of the Ogle County Board has reviewed the testimony and
exhibits presented at the public hearing and has considered the Findings of Fact and Recommendation of the Zoning Board
of Appeals, and has forwarded no  recommendation to the Ogle County Board regarding the requested Special Use Permit
(a motion being made and seconded to recommend approval, with the roll call vote resulting in 3 votes in favor of the
motion to recommend approval, and 3 votes against said motion); and


WHEREAS, the Ogle County Board has considered the findings of fact and recommendation of the Zoning Board
of Appeals, and has determined that granting the Special Use Permit to allow a Small Rural Business (dumpster storage &
rental / general hauling of non-hazardous materials including furniture, appliances, construction debris, etc.) in the AG-1
Agricultural District would not be consistent with the requirements established by Section 9.08(C) of the Ogle County
Amendatory Zoning Ordinance;


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF OGLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows:


SECTION ONE:  The report of the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals, Exhibit “B” attached hereto, is hereby
rejected by the Ogle County Board.


SECTION TWO: The request of David & Paijit Ancona for a Special Use Permit in the AG-1 Agricultural
District (Petition No. 09-08SU) to allow a Small Rural Business (dumpster storage & rental / general hauling of non-
hazardous materials including furniture, appliances, construction debris, etc.) on property located at 12488 E. Utility Road
in Scott Township and legally described as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, is hereby denied.


SECTION THREE:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption by the County Board of
Ogle County, Illinois and attestation by the Ogle County Clerk.


PASSED BY THE COUNTY BOARD THIS 17TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2009 A.D.


                                                                              
W. Ed Rice, Chairman of the Ogle County Board


ATTEST:


                                                                              
Rebecca Huntley, Ogle County Clerk and
Ex Officio Clerk of the Ogle County Board


                            2009-0214
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EXHIBIT “A”


Part of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of Section Fifteen (15), Township Forty-two (42)
North, Range One (1) East of the Third (3rd) Principal Meridian, Ogle County, Illinois,
bounded and described as follows, to-wit: Beginning at a point on the South line of the
Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of said Section Fifteen (15), said point being 276.00 feet
West of the Southeast (SE) corner of said Southwest Quarter (SW1/4); thence continuing
Westerly along the South line of said Southwest Quarter (SW1/4), a distance of 670.15
feet; thence Northerly perpendicular to said South line, a distance of 325.00 feet; thence
Easterly parallel to the South line of said Southwest Quarter (SW1/4), a distance of
670.15 feet; thence Southerly perpendicular to said South line, a distance of 325.00 feet
to the point of beginning, situated in Ogle County, State of Illinois


P.I.N.: 11-15-300-003
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Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals
911 W. Pines Road


Oregon, IL 61061
815.732.1190
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FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION
OF THE OGLE COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS


This is the findings of fact and the recommendation of the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals
concerning an application of David & Paijit Ancona, 12488 E. Utility Rd., Davis Junction, IL, in case
#09-08SU.  The applicants are requesting a Special Use Permit to permit a Small Rural Business
(dumpster storage & rental / general hauling of non-hazardous materials including furniture, appliances,
construction debris, etc.) in the AG-1 Agricultural District on Parcel Identification No. 11-15-300-003, a
5.0 acre parcel which is  part of Section 15, Township 42N, Range 1E of the 3rd Principal Meridian and is
located in Scott Township at 12488 E. Utility Road.


After due notice, as required by law, the Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing in this case on
January 29, 2009 in the County Board Room, 3rd Floor, Ogle County Courthouse, Oregon, Illinois and
hereby report their findings of fact and their recommendation as follows:


SITE INFORMATION: See Staff Report (attached herewith).


ANALYSIS OF SEVEN STANDARDS:  After considering all the evidence and testimony presented at
the public hearing, this Board makes the following analysis of the six standards listed in Section 9.08(C)
(Standards for Special Use Permits) of the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance that must all be
found in the affirmative prior to recommending granting of the petition.


1. That the proposed special use will not be unreasonably detrimental to the value of other property
in the neighborhood in which it is to be located or the public health, safety, morals, comfort or
general welfare at large.  Considering the five-year limitation on the Special Use Permit and
the current state of the economy as far as construction, the proposed special use will not be
unreasonably detrimental to the value of other property in the neighborhood in which it is
to be located or the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare at large due to
the low intensity of the proposed use, the proposed special use is completely surrounded by
agricultural uses and is well-buffered from residential uses, and will be screened from sight. 
STANDARD MET.


2. That the location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in
or conducted in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving
access to it are such that the special use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to
prevent development and use of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning
district regulations. In determining whether the special use will so dominate the immediate
neighborhood, consideration shall be given to:


a. The location, nature and height of building, structures, walls and fences on the site; and,


b. The nature and extent of proposed landscaping and screening on the proposed site.
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The location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in
or conducted in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving
access to it are such that the special use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as
to prevent development and use of neighboring property in accordance with the AG-1
zoning district regulations.  The proposed special use is surrounded by crop land, will be
screened with a solid wood fence six feet in height, and will provide a service to the area. 
STANDARD MET.


3. That off-street parking and loading areas will be provided in accordance with the standards set
forth in these regulations.  The site is large enough that adequate off-street parking and
loading areas can be provided.  STANDARD MET.


4. That adequate utilities, ingress/egress to the site, access roads, drainage and other such necessary
facilities have been or will be provided.  Adequate utilities, ingress/egress to the site, access
roads, drainage and other such necessary facilities have been or will be provided.
STANDARD MET.


5. That the proposed use can be operated in a manner that is not detrimental to the permitted
developments and uses in the zoning district; can be developed and operated in a manner that is
visually compatible with the permitted uses in the surrounding area; and is deemed essential or
desirable to preserve and promote the public health, safety and general welfare of Ogle County. 
With conditions that have been recommended, the proposed use can be operated in a
manner that is not detrimental to the permitted developments and uses in the AG-1 zoning
district, which are primarily agricultural and agriculturally-related uses. STANDARD
MET.


6. That the proposed special use complies with all provisions of the applicable district regulations. 
The proposed special use appears to comply with all provisions of the AG-1 district
regulations.  STANDARD MET.


RECOMMENDATION: After considering all the evidence and testimony presented, this Board finds
that the application meets all the standards as found in Section 9.08(C) of the Ogle County Amendatory
Zoning Ordinance.


Therefore, the Zoning Board of Appeals hereby recommends that a Special Use Permit be granted to
allow a Small Rural Business (dumpster storage & rental / general hauling of non-hazardous materials
including furniture, appliances, construction debris, etc.) in the AG-1 Agricultural District subject to the
following conditions:


1. All proposals and representations made by the applicant and/or their representative shall be
conditions of the Special Use Permit, including, but not necessarily limited to, the installation of
screening (6' high fence) as depicted and described on the Concept Plan submitted as part of the
petition for Special Use Permit.  Said fence/screening shall be installed within ninety (90) days of
the approval of this Special Use Permit.


2. There shall be no outside storage and/or accumulation of junk (as defined by the Ogle County
Amendatory Zoning Ordinance), waste, inoperable and/or unlicenced motor vehicles, etc. on the
site.


3. There shall be no storage on the site of dumpsters containing waste materials in excess of twenty-
four (24) hours, provided any dumpster containing waste is completely covered or enclosed.


Did not Present to Ogle County Board







3


4. All dumpsters shall be stored within the area enclosed by fence/buildings and out of view from
the public road at all times.


5. This special use permit shall be valid for a period of five (5) years from the data of approval by
the Ogle County Board.  The Supervisor of Assessments and Planning & Zoning Committee of
the Ogle County Board shall have the delegated responsibility and authority to either extend or
discontinue the Special Use Permit upon the expiration of said five (5) year period, giving due
consideration to the continued compatibility of the authorized use with the surrounding area and
other applicable factors as determined by the Committee.  The Committee shall give notice of its
intent to act on this matter as provided herein to the owner of the land to which the Special Use
Permit applies, to all adjacent land owners, to the Village of Davis Junction, and to Scott
Township.


ROLL CALL VOTE:  The roll call vote was 4 members for the motion to recommend granting, 1
opposed.


Respectfully submitted this 29th day of January 2009 by the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals.


Bruce McKinney, Chairman
Maurice Bronkema
Maynard Stivers
Randall Anderson
Curtis Freeberg


_____________________________________
Bruce McKinney, Chairman


ATTEST:


_____________________________________
Michael Reibel, Secretary


Did not Present to Ogle County Board










































































































































































































































RESOLUTION PRESENTED AT FEBRUARY 17, 2009 COUNTY BOARD MEETING

























RESOLUTION 2009-0215 
 
 


 
RESOLUTION SETTING FORTH THE CHANGE OF FUTURE  


OGLE COUNTY BOARD MEETINGS 
 
 


WHEREAS, the Sheriff has recommended all future Ogle County Board Meetings be 
moved from the Ogle County Courthouse to the Judicial Center Courtroom 202 due to a 
maintenance situation at the current meeting location; 
 


WHEREAS, the Judicial Center is a secured facility and Security will need to be present 
while the Judicial Center is open to a Public Meeting;  


 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, to prevent an increase in overtime and to help 


defray the cost which would be incurred by the use of Security;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Ogle County Board Meetings will meet at 3:00 p.m., 


on the third Tuesday of the month, at the Judicial Center in Courtroom 202 until further notice. 
 
Presented and Adopted by the Ogle County Board on February 17, 2009. 
 
 
         ___________________________ 


W. Ed Rice 
Chairman, Ogle County Board 


 
Attest: 
 
________________________ 
Rebecca Huntley 
Ogle County Clerk  


RESOLUTION NOT PRESENTED TO COUNTY BOARD
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Introduction 
 


The Ogle County Highway Department is responsible for the construction and maintenance 
of all the bridges and roads in the Ogle County Highway System. In addition to constructing and 
maintaining the 271 miles of roads and 59 bridges on the County Highway System, the department 
assists the 24 townships of Ogle County in the construction and maintenance of their 969 miles of 
highways and 194 bridges. Maintaining this extensive highway system in a manner capable of 
serving the motorists of Ogle County is an expensive task. It is the responsibility of this 
department to provide the required services to the public within the limits established by our 
funding mechanisms and law. 


The purpose of this annual report is not only to discuss last year’s and next year’s 
construction projects, but to also familiarize you with the varied aspects of the Ogle County 
Highway Department. This report will give you some insight into the volume of work supervised 
by this Department and on how successful this Department has been in acquiring funds from 
outside sources to assist in the construction of highway improvements in Ogle County. 


 
Every year, the Ogle County Board passes a budget for the Highway Department that 


reflects funding from two sources, local real estate taxes and motor fuel tax. While these two 
sources provide the majority of funding for the Ogle County Highway Department, this 
Department supervises projects funded from several other sources as well. Some of these other 
sources are township funds, Federal Highway Administration funds (FHWA), competitive grants, 
developer concessions, or state special funds.  


The method of funding a County Highway Department with local property taxes is spelled 
out at length in the Illinois Compiled Statutes. There are three separate levies, County Highway 
Tax, County Aid to Bridge Tax, and Matching Tax. Each tax has specific uses as defined in the 
statutes and each one has a maximum rate that can be extended. The maximum rate for the County 
Highway fund is $0.10 per $100 assessed valuation while the Bridge tax and Matching tax are both 
$0.05 per $100 assessed valuation each. A portion of the $0.19 per gallon motor fuel tax received 
by the State of Illinois is statutorily distributed to Counties based upon the number of registered 
vehicles in that County. Since 2003 the local property tax levied by this Department has been 
$15.19 million and the motor fuel tax received from the State has been $6.729 million for a sum 
average of $3.653 million per year.  


Another established source of funding County highways are the FHWA Surface 
Transportation Rural (STR) funds and Bridge Replacement and Rehabilitation Program (BRRP) 
funds. Since 2003 Ogle County has contracted $3.212 million of STR funds for roadway 
improvements. Another $1.130 million is to be contracted for 2009. Since 2003 more than 
$385,000 from BRRP has been contracted for bridge replacements. 


Statutorily, County Highway Departments must oversee the expenditure of state funds 
utilized by Townships. This means that the Ogle County Highway Department oversees the 
design, construction, and accounting of Township projects funded by Township Motor Fuel Tax 
and Illinois’ Township Bridge Program (TBP). Since 2003, more than $1.164 million of TBP 
projects and $10.326 million of Township maintenance and construction projects.  
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Finally, another group of revenue sources available to fund highway improvements in Ogle 
County is what I will refer to as Outside Sources. This group includes special state or federal 
allocations to specific projects, funds from private sources, be it railroads or developers, and 
competitive grant programs that could include Truck Access programs and Economic 
Development programs. Receiving funding from these Outside Sources takes a considerable 
amount of time and effort, but it can be well worth the effort.  


This Department was successful in attaining $333,000 of Truck Access Route Program 
funds for improvements to Daysville Road, Titus Road, Grange Road, and Steward Road. Since 
2003 this Department has been successful in attaining over $5.6 million from the Illinois 
Commerce Commission for grade separation improvements on Burlington Road, Thorpe Road, 
and Steward Road. An additional $5.49 million came from other outside sources to fund these 
grade separations.  


This office was also successful in convincing the Illinois Department of Transportation 
(IDOT) to invest $3.2 million toward improvements to the Flagg Road / IL 251 intersection. A 
considerable portion of this allocation will be spent on improvements to Flagg Road. These IDOT 
funded improvements coincide with another $405,000 of improvements to Flagg Road funded by 
the Rochelle Township High School. In 2007 IDOT and the Department of Economic 
Development agreed to contribute nearly $1 million towards the improvement of Daysville Road 
and IL 64.  


This office will oversee the design of improvements to Brush Grove and Gurler Roads. 
This year Senator Obama’s office set aside $100,000 for the design of highway improvements to 
these roads this year. In the past few years DP Partners contributed $226,000 to improvements on 
Steward Road and the Union Pacific Railroad contributed $486,000 towards improvements to 
Gurler Road.  


 
Funding assistance from Outside Sources has been utilized on 11 highway improvement 


projects overseen by this office since 2003. Infrastructure contributions from this category have 
totaled an amazing $16.57 million during this timeframe. This is more than the County Highway 
Department property taxes and County Motor Fuel Tax allocations combined for the same period! 
As said before, while securing funding from these outside sources can take a lot of time and effort, 
it is well worth it. With property tax growth flat and motor fuel tax allocations down 8.5% just last 
year, these Outside Sources of project funding will play a more and more important role in funding 
Ogle County’s infrastructure needs in the future. 







 
 5 


2008 Construction Projects 
  


Following is a summary of highlights from this year=s construction projects, both County 
and Township, overseen by your Ogle County Highway Department. 


 
Section 06-00247-00-CG, River Road Curb and Gutter 
This project was the reconstruction of a segment of River Road, through the Rock River 


Terrace, in Rockvale Township. This piece of River Road was extremely narrow, had been 
patched many times and suffered from inadequate roadway drainage. To fix these problems, the 
new roadway would have curb and gutter, paved shoulders, and the roadway travel lanes would be 
widened. 


 


  
 


  
 
The project started with the removal of the existing concrete gutter and installation of new 


storm sewer and curb drain inlets. Of course Verizon, NiCor, and Com Ed had to relocate their 
facilities to make room for the wider travel lanes and shoulders. Once the underground utility work 
was completed, new concrete curb and gutter was installed, the pavement and shoulders were 
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widened, and the shoulders and pavement were then paved. Final grading was completed behind 
the new curb and gutter and all disturbed areas were seeded. The project was completed on  
August 27, 2008. 


The price tag for this project was $555,495. It was funded by a combination of Motor Fuel 
Tax Funds (40%), local Federal Aid Matching Funds (30%), and County Bridge Funds (30%).  
Willett, Hofmann and Associates performed the preliminary engineering and stakeout. Ogle 
County personnel performed the construction engineering. Terry Remhof was the Resident 
Technician for Ogle County on this project. 
 


Section 07-00248-00-BR, Freeport & Lanark Road Culvert Improvements 
This project included a box culvert extension, a culvert replacement and slope improvements 


at 2 locations. One location was on Freeport Road, North of Town Line Road. The other location 
was on Lanark Road, just East of Freeport Road. Over the past few years, this Department has 
completed several of these type improvements along Freeport Road. Steep roadway slopes 
constantly erode, may require guardrail which causes snow drifts, and are locations of potential 
motorist rollovers. 
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The Freeport Road location required the extension of a concrete box culvert on one side of the 
road only. The Lanark Road location involved removing a box culvert that had been extended two 
times already over the past 90 years. County forces hauled fill material in to widen the shoulders 
and fill the slopes. These locations now have wider shoulders and less steep roadway slopes. This 
will increase motorist safety and reduce the potential for rollovers. 


Nathan Schwartz, PE performed the preliminary engineering, Kevin Smetters performed the 
construction engineering, and Schlichting & Sons was the contractor for this $75,763 project. The 
project was funded with local County Aid to Bridge funds. 
 


07-00250-00-BR Lowden Road Culvert Improvements  
This project included box culvert extensions and slope improvements at 3 locations and one 


concrete box culvert replacement on Lowden Road, between Daysville Road and Flagg Road. 
Steep roadway slopes constantly erode, may require guardrail which causes snow drifts, and are 
locations of potential motorist rollovers. 


  


   
 


One location included extending a culvert on both sides of the road to flatten the steep slopes 
behind the guardrail. Due to right-of-way acquisition limitations, guardrail will still have to be 
installed on one side of the road at this location. The other three locations required culverts be 
extended or a new, longer culvert be installed to extend the roadway slopes. County forces hauled 
fill material in to widen the shoulders and fill the slopes. These locations now have wider 
shoulders and less steep roadway slopes. This will increase motorist safety and reduce the potential 
for rollovers. 
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Nathan Schwartz, PE performed the preliminary engineering, Kevin Smetters performed the 
construction engineering, and Northwest Illinois Construction was the contractor for this $260,553 
project. The project was funded with local County Aid to Bridge funds. 
 


07-00249-00-BR Lowden Road Bridge replacement 
This project was the replacement of a small bridge on Lowden Road, just South of the 


Sinnissippi Tree Farm. The original structure had been constructed about 1917. It was too narrow, 
structurally inadequate and needed costly repairs. This old bridge was replaced with a new double 
barrel concrete box culvert. Installation of guardrail was required on this project. 


 


  
 
Moring Construction was the contractor for this $160,900 project. The project was funded 


with local County Aid to Bridge Funds (100%). Wendler Engineering Services completed 
surveying and preliminary engineering. Kevin Smetters was the Engineering Technician on this 
project for Ogle County. 
 


07-00246-00-GR, Guardrail Improvements, Meridian & Montague Roads 
This project consisted of guardrail improvements at several locations along Meridian Road 
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and Montague Road. Guardrail is installed to protect motorists from hazards within close 
proximity to the roadway surface. These hazards could be steep slopes, immovable objects, or drop 
offs. The design of today’s guardrail is the result of many years of safety study and crash testing. 
Sometimes guardrail installed many years ago has even been found to fail today’s crash testing. An 
example of this is the older “Texas Turn-down” guardrail installed years ago. (see below, left). It 
has been found to contribute to roll over accidents. These segments of guardrail are then replaced 
with new crash test approved guardrail as funds are available. 
 


  
 


Ogle County forces staked out the locations for the new guardrail and then removed the 
existing guardrail. Upon removal of the existing guardrail, fill was placed to allow for wider 
shoulders and provide support for the new guardrail posts. The new slopes were then fine graded 
and stabilized. 
 


  
 


Lovewell Fencing was the guardrail contractor on this $51,458 project. All other work was 
performed by Ogle County personnel. This project was funded with local County Aid to Bridge 
funds. 
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07-00210-01-WR, Flagg Road & IL 251 Intersection Improvements 
This project consists of improvement of the Flagg Road / IL Rt. 251 intersection by adding 


left and right turn lanes, installing storm sewer, curb & gutter and sidewalks, and making grade 
adjustments to IL 251. In addition, Flagg Road, from the IL 251 intersection to the Rochelle High 
School will be improved to a 4 lane cross section. 


Ogle County and the City of Rochelle have been hounding IDOT to make the listed IL 251 
intersection improvements for 5 years. In the Fall of 2007 IDOT informed Ogle County that IDOT 
would fund the project in 2008 if Ogle County would administer the project. This project 
agreement will allow the intersection and Flagg Road be improved at the same time. This project 
will finally complete the Flagg Road improvements from the Rochelle Township High School to 
IL Rt. 251. 


Ogle County oversaw the acquisition of all right-of-way and easements for the project. After 
all the right-of-way was acquired, the old Culligan building was razed to make room for the new 
turn lanes. Rockford Blacktop and their subcontractor began the project this Fall by installing 
storm sewer, waterlines, and sanitary sewer. Seventy-five percent of the underground utility work 
was completed before the project entered its’ Winter shutdown. 


 


  
 
This coming Spring, the balance of the utility work will be completed before the contractor 


narrows the intersection to two lanes and begins widening the pavement and installing the curb and 
gutter. To allow construction of the required improvements and still maintain two lanes of traffic, 
the work will be done in 7 different phases. Newspaper, email, radio, and message boards will be 
utilized to keep the public informed of the changing traffic patterns during this project. The project 
is to be completed by November 1, 2009. 


IDOT has allocated $3.2 million dollars towards the cost of their intersection improvements to 
cover the cost of right-of-way, construction, engineering, and all of Ogle County’s administration. 
Ogle County will fund the Flagg Road improvements from IDOT’s intersection to the Rochelle 
High School. 


This project was surveyed and designed by Willett, Hofmann and Associates. Rockford 
Blacktop Construction is the contractor on this $3.718 million project and Nathan Schwartz, PE is 
the Resident Engineer for Ogle County on this project. 
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Section 06-00239-00-RS, Ridge Road Overlay and Shoulder Improvements 
This project was the asphalt paving of Ridge Road between IL Rt. 64 and Pines Road. Every 


12 – 18 years, hot-mix asphalt roads are overlaid with a new wearing surface. This helps to restore 
the road to its original condition by filling wheel ruts, sealing off cracks, and restoring tire friction 
to the pavement surface. Another improvement made with this project was the paving of a 3’ wide 
safety shoulder. A safety shoulder eliminates the drop-offs at the edge of the traffic lane, a 
constant maintenance problem on highly traveled roads with aggregate shoulders. 


 


  
 
The project started on August 18, 2008 when the contractor began concrete gutter replacement 


work immediately South of IL 64. The use of FHWA funding requires concrete gutter at the edge 
of a travel lane be relocated to the edge of the shoulder. Ogle County forces then excavated a 3’ 
feet wide trench, 2” deep, in the shoulder adjacent to the road. A few hours later, Northwest 
Illinois Construction then paved the shoulder trench with hot-mix asphalt. Coordination between 
the contractor and County forces was essential on this operation. 


 


  
 
Ogle County was responsible for several operations before, during, and after the contractor’s 


work on this project. In addition to preparing the aggregate shoulder trench before the contractor 
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paved the safety shoulder, after the safety shoulder was paved, Ogle County was responsible for 
grading entrances and sideroads to match the soon-to-be placed new pavement. Then after the 
contractor paved the 3.2 miles of road, Ogle County placed the aggregate shoulders on the outside 
of the 3’ safety shoulder.  


The contracted portion of this project was $561,290 and was funded with Federal Surface 
Transportation Rural funds (80%) and local Federal Aid Matching funds (20%). Northwest Illinois 
Construction Company was the prime contractor on this project. Ogle County performed the 
preliminary and construction engineering for this project. Nathan Schwartz, PE was the Resident 
Engineer on this project for Ogle County. 
 


06-00244-00-RS, Flagg Road Overlay 
This is another of the asphalt overlay projects that occur on each bituminous asphalt highway 


every 12-18 years. This project consisted of placing a 1 ½” lift of bituminous asphalt over the 
existing asphalt surface of Flagg Road, from the Lee County line to Lowden Road.  


 


  
 
Northwest Illinois Construction was the contractor on this $205,454 project. The project was 


funded by Federal Surface Transportation Rural funds (80%) and Local Federal Aid Matching 
funds (20%). Ogle County performed the preliminary and construction engineering for this project. 
Nathan Schwartz, PE was the Resident Engineer on this project for Ogle County. 
 


04-00223-00-RS, Mulford Road Microsurfacing 
Mulford Road, from Lindenwood Road to the Winnebago County line is a segment of 


highway that we have applied newer pavement preservation techniques to over the past several 
years. The applications of pavement preservation techniques are utilized to minimize the need for 
major reconstruction of asphalt pavements. The pavement preservation technique utilized this year 
on Mulford Road was microsurfacing.  
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Microsurfacing is effectively the same operation as the older “slurry seal” with a bit more 


science. Microsurfacing is the application of a thin layer of bituminous-crushed aggregate-cement 
mixture to the roadway surface. This 3/8” thick layer helps seal the pavement cracks, adds color to 
the surface, prevents further oxidation of the existing bituminous surface, and restores skid 
resistance. Once the bituminous mixture is applied, one lane at a time, traffic can be reintroduced 
to that lane within 4 hours. 


Permanent striping can then be applied to the new bituminous surface upon completion of the 
bituminous operation. Should this segment of microsurfacing perform as expected, Ogle County 
will perform more of this type pavement preservation upon selected asphalt roadways in the future. 


Micro-Surfacing Inc., Peoria, IL was the contractor on this $183,568 project. It was funded 
with Federal Surface Transportation Rural (80%) and Local Federal Aid Matching Funds (20%). 
Northwest Illinois Construction Company was the prime contractor on this project. Ogle County 
performed the preliminary and construction engineering for this project. Nathan Schwartz, PE was 
the Resident Engineer on this project for Ogle County. 
 
 
Township Bridge Projects 


This year only one township bridge was replaced under the supervision of the Ogle County 
Highway Department. Due to construction cost increases and stagnant Township Bridge Program 
funding levels, this program will only be able to fund the replacement of one Township bridge per 
year without State funding level increases. To replace Ogle County’s Township bridges before 
they reach “Centennial” status, State funding levels must at least double in today’s dollars. To 
keep these structures on a replacement cycle of 50 years, the funding levels would need to double 
again. 


 
07-14132-00-BR Adeline Road Bridge replacement 
This Township bridge project was the replacement of a reinforced concrete girder bridge 


constructed in 1924 on Adeline Road, just North of Coffman Road. The bridge was narrow and the 
concrete girders had suffered collision damage several times over the years. Of course the weight 
carrying capacity of the structure was designed for 1924 loads, not today’s much heavier loads.  
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The existing bridge was replaced by a new wider, stronger, precast, prestressed deck beam 


bridge. With the expected minimal traffic increases on this road, this structure will be capable of 
safely handling the loads imposed on it for many decades to come. 


 


  
 
Moring Construction was the contractor on this $253,407 project. It was funded by a 


combination of Township Bridge Program funds (80%), County Aid to Bridge funds (10%), and 
Maryland Township (10%).  Wendler Engineering Services performed the preliminary 
engineering. Ogle County personnel performed the construction engineering and the stakeout. 
Terry Remhof was the Resident Technician for Ogle County on this project 


 
Rockvale Township Bituminous Asphalt Overlays 
This year Rockvale Township placed a bituminous asphalt overlay on several roads. They 


included several streets in the Rock River Terrace, Silver Creek Road and Half Mile Road. The 
streets in the Rock River Terrace were grouped together with the County’s River Road project to 
attain better bid prices. 


 







 
 15 


  
 
These bituminous overlays consisted of overlaying the old, cracked, oxidized, hot-mix with  


1 ½” of new bituminous hot-mix asphalt. Placement of shoulder stone to support the edges of the 
new asphalt was completed once paving was performed. 


Schlichting and Sons contracted for the overlays on the selected Rock River Terrace streets 
for a cost of $155,000. UC Paving performed the asphalt overlay work on Silver Creek and Half 
Mile Road for a cost of $282,000. These projects were funded locally by Rockvale Township. 
Terry Remhof was the Resident Technician on these projects. 


 
08-06130-00-RS, Flagg Township Overlay 
This year Flagg Township placed a bituminous asphalt overlay on several roads. Grange 


Road, from IL 38 to Titus Road, and the roads in the Deer Creek subdivision received 1 ½” lifts of 
asphalt.   


 


 
 
 This $167,652 project was completed in a week by Rockford Blacktop Construction and was 


funded 100% by Flagg Township. Terry Remhof was the Resident Technician on this project. 
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County General Maintenance Sections 
As every year, these projects provide for the continued maintenance of our County highways. 


In 2008, 12 miles of roads were re-sealcoated to rejuvenate their bituminous wearing surface. 
Sealcoat roads are typically re-sealed every 6 years depending upon traffic and wear. Should roads 
deteriorate too far before re-paving or re-sealing, costly reconstruction may be necessary. 


The cost of the 2008 County seal coat program was $98,000 and was funded with County 
Motor Fuel Tax funds (50%) and County Federal Aid Matching funds (50%). David Boehle and 
Cliff Jones supervised the construction of these maintenance projects. 
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2009 Construction Projects 
 


 
Section 05-00233-00-BR Steward Road Overpass 
Last year we anticipated this project to begin in 2008. After a lengthy Economic Development 


Agency grant review and award process, it was agreed by all parties to wait until February 2009 
before taking bids. 


This multi-year project consists of several pieces. Part A, the major portion of this project, is 
the construction of a 30’ high, 220’ long, bridge carrying Steward Road over the BNSF railroad 
and the Rochelle railroad. Part B, is the improvement of the Steward Road / Ritchie Road 
intersection. Part C, is the improvement of Steward Road to a three lane cross section between the 
overpass and Ritchie Road. Finally, Part D is the extension of Caron Road under the new overpass 
to a new intersection with Steward Road. 


Many trucks utilize Steward Road to reach the IRE Ethanol Plant, Bay Valley Foods, and 
other area businesses. Before Steward Road can be closed to traffic to construct the overpass, the 
Caron Road extension (Part D) will be completed to allow truck traffic a route around the overpass 
construction. ProLogis Corporation, a property developer along Steward Road has committed to 
constructing this extension of Caron Road at their cost. Once Caron Road is extended to its’ new 
intersection with Steward Road, construction of the overpass, Ritchie Road intersection, and 3 lane 
section of Steward Road will begin and continue into 2010.  


These improvements are expected to cost nearly $7.6 million dollars. Sources of funding are 
expected to include the ICC, EDA, ProLogis Corporation, DP Partners Corporation, Rochelle 
Railroad, BNSF Railroad, City of Rochelle, and Ogle County. It is anticipated that funding source 
allocations will consist of $2.98 million by the EDA, $2.96 million by the ICC, $1 million 
ProLogis, $281 thousand BNSF, and $281 thousand Rochelle Railroad. Funding for any remaining 
portion of the project will be shared equally between Ogle County and Rochelle. 


This complicated project was surveyed and designed by Willett, Hofmann and Associates. 
Ogle County acquired the right-of-way and Ogle County personnel will complete the construction 
engineering. 


 
Section 08-00259-00-BR Milledgeville Road Culvert Replacement 
In the mid 1930’s Milledgeville Road, from Carroll County, East, was improved. At that time, 


a 12’ wide by 6’ tall concrete box culvert at Wilson Mill Road was constructed. This box culvert 
will be replaced this coming year. The original box culvert was extended at some time during the 
past 70 years and the construction joint at the extension has now failed. A new precast concrete 
box culvert, with a cast-in-place drop box will be built to replace the old structure. 


Ogle County personnel will perform the construction engineering on the culvert while 
Wendler Engineering Services will perform the preliminary engineering on the project. 


 
Section 08-00258-00-RS Kishwaukee Road Shoulder Improvements 
A quarter mile North of IL Rt. 72, on Kishwaukee Road begins a set of reverse curves that 


experience a rather high accident rate. Most of these accidents involve property damage where a 
motorist collides with the guardrail on one side of the road or the other, or both. In 2009, these 
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shoulders will be widened, slopes re-graded, shoulders paved, and guardrail replaced in an attempt 
to eliminate a good percentage of these accidents. Outside contractors will replace the guardrail 
and pave the shoulders while Ogle County personnel will complete the balance of the work. 


 
Township Bridge Sections 
The Township Bridge Program, in conjunction with County Bridge Funds and Township 


Local Funds, are used to replace deficient township bridges every year. With the increases in 
material and construction costs only 1 bridge per year can be replaced with Township Bridge 
Program funds. This year a second township bridge will be repaired with the use of Township 
Bridge Program funds. While many township bridges have been replaced since the inception of the 
Township Bridge Program there are still many structurally deficient, hydraulically inadequate, or 
functionally obsolete Township bridges in need of replacement 


The 2009 Township bridge replacement program consists of replacing a bridge on Scott 
Road, East of Rothwell Road, Scott Township and then making pier repairs on Edson Road, 
Monroe Township. The Edson Road bridge repair project was scheduled for 2008 but bids were 
too expensive to allow the repairs to proceed at that time. 


The Scott Road structure is an existing precast, prestressed deck beam bridge. Bi-annual 
bridge inspections revealed considerable deterioration in the timber piles over the past several 
years. Constructed in 1961, this bridge was one of the first generation of precast, prestressed deck 
beam bridges and is nearing the end of its’ design life. Upon calculation of life cycle costing, it is 
more economical to replace the structure at this time than it is to spend large amounts of money 
attempting to repair a 48 year old structure. Wendler Engineering Services is performing the 
preliminary engineering and survey while Ogle County personnel will be performing the 
construction engineering. 


The Edson Road bridge repair project consists of making repairs to the bridge piers and 
abutments of this structure over the Kishwaukee River. Transverse joints between the existing 
precast prestressed deck beams will be replaced when the associated pier and abutment repairs are 
made. The pier caps and abutments are experiencing severe delamination and spalling of concrete. 
Once the concrete spalls from the pier cap or abutment, the ability of the bridge substructure to 
carry the loads from the bridge beams is compromised. Willett, Hofmann & Associates is 
preparing the construction drawings while Ogle County personnel will be performing the 
construction engineering. 


The Scott Road bridge will be funded 80% by the Township Bridge program, 10% Ogle 
County and 10% Scott Township. The Edson Road bridge repairs will be funded by Winnebago 
County (70%), Township Bridge Program funds (22%), County Bridge Funds (4%), and Monroe 
Township Local Funds (4%) since it is on the County line.  


In addition to these bridge replacements, Ogle County personnel will be assisting Townships 
with various culvert replacements and bridge repair contracts. Monroe, Eagle Point, Forreston, 
Maryland, and Pine Rock Townships each have culverts being replaced this year by County forces. 


Other upcoming Township Bridge Program projects include bridges in Lincoln, Maryland and 
Byron Townships. Road Commissioners currently have township bridges already programmed for 
replacement through 2016. 
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General Maintenance Sections 
Approximately 20 miles of seal coat roads will be resealed to rejuvenate their asphalt-wearing 


surface. Seal coat roads are resealed in this manner every 5-6 years. The estimated cost of this 
2009 seal coat program is $175,000. 


In addition to seal coat maintenance, hot mix asphalt roads will be rejuvenated this year. 
Stillman-Meridian Road, from IL Rt. 72 to Winnebago County, will be overlaid with hot mix 
asphalt in 2009. In addition to placing 1 ½” of asphalt on the existing pavement surface, we will 
take this opportunity to install paved safety shoulders 3 feet wide from Stillman Valley to Hales 
Corner Road. These paved shoulders protect the pavement edge from wide loads and minimize the 
possibility of a shoulder drop off when aggregate is kicked out by traffic. As funds are available, 
we will attempt to install some of these paved shoulders on the more heavily traveled roads. In 
addition to Stillman Road, Flagg Road, from Flagg Center to 20th Street, will have a 1 ½” asphalt 
overlay placed on it this year. Mud Creek Road, from IL Rt. 2 to Mt. Morris will also receive a 1 
½” asphalt overlay this year. These 9.14 miles of asphalt overlays are expected to cost nearly 
$1.250M. 


Finally, Lowell Park Road, from Oregon Trail Road to Mt. Morris will receive a 
microsurfacing pavement preservation application. The bituminous surface of this roadway 
segment has prematurely oxidized and this application will arrest that situation. 


These maintenance and overlay projects will be paid for with Motor Fuel Tax, Federal Surface 
Transportation Rural and Local Matching Funds. 
 


Subdivisions and Development 
Over the past several years, overseeing the construction of residential subdivision streets and 


drainage improvements has increased tremendously. However, due to the economic downturn, it is 
not anticipated that there will be any more than 3 County subdivisions constructed in 2009. 


 







 
 20 


Long Range Planning 
 
 
As is the case every year, there are a great number of projects in the Long Range Planning 


category. Some of these are familiar, some are not. A number of the projects, which were in this 
portion of the Annual Report in the past, have moved into the 2008 Construction Projects or the 
2009 Construction Projects sections of this Annual Report. The priority of projects in this 
category is very fluid as well. 


Long range planning for highway infrastructure is necessary for many reasons. Simple 
highway maintenance projects can be done quickly. However, highway improvement projects take 
much longer. These projects typically involve the acquisition of right-of-way. To determine if any 
new right-of-way is required for a project, some preliminary engineering must be performed. If it 
is determined that right-of-way is required, environmental, archeological, and cultural issues arise. 
These issues are in addition to actually acquiring the right-of-way by negotiation. To navigate 
these hurdles, we normally begin designing and coordinating highway improvement projects 3-5 
years before they are constructed. 


Another reason for long range planning is financial. There are more necessary improvements 
to the Ogle County Highway System than there is tax money to make the improvements. By 
performing Long Range Planning, outside sources of funding are more willing to invest in a plan 
that is already on paper than a plan that is only in the idea stage. This Long Range Planning 
indicates to those outside funding sources a local commitment to making these highway 
improvements. Long Range Planning is actually tool that is being used to secure funding for Ogle 
County Highway projects from outside funding sources. 


 
There are three areas of interest in the Rochelle area when it comes to planning for future 


highway improvements. The first area already has construction underway, the Steward Road 
corridor. Future improvements will be based upon development rates and levels of increased 
traffic. The planned improvements include a three lane design from Main Street to IL 251 and 
major intersection improvements at Main Street and at IL 251. 


The second area of interest involved with this Long Range Planning report is the Flagg Road 
corridor. While improvements will be completed from IL 251 to the Rochelle Township High 
School by the fall of 2009, there are further improvements necessary. Design is underway for 
improvements to Flagg Road from Flagg Center to Queens Road. Kings Crossing subdivision will 
be making improvements to Flagg Road from the Rochelle Township High School towards Queens 
Road which will include upgrades to the intersection at 20th Street. 


The third area of interest in the Rochelle area is the Southwest Rochelle Truck Loop. This will 
include improving Brush Grove, Gurler, Titus and Thorpe Roads to 80,000# capacity, and 
constructing a roadway connection between Thorpe Road and Center Road. Once those 
improvements are made, a new interchange with I-88 near Thorpe Road in Lee County should be 
planned. 


Not all the Long Range Planning is occurring around Rochelle though. This office is planning 
for improvements to Lindenwood Road from IL 251 to the DeKalb County line and improvement 
to German Church Road, from IL Rt. 64 to the Byron Nuclear Station. 


In addition, improving Montague Road to an 80,000# truck route, from Rock City Road to 
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Rockford, is still being planned. Ogle and Winnebago Counties will each have segments of 
highway to be improved with this project. A project new to this category in 2005 was the 
improvement of Coffman Road and Rock City Road to a hot mix asphalt surface. This year we 
added proposed improvements to Penn Corner Road at Harvey Road to the list of projects that 
preliminary engineering is being performed on. Finally, with the tremendous results from the Pines 
Road/Gale Road intersection re-alignment, design began on the future re-alignment of the Pines 
Road/Angus Road intersection. 


 
As you can tell, Ogle County is planning for future infrastructure improvements. In order to 


properly prepare for these improvements, this department must anticipate change and act on it 
before being overwhelmed by the change. Long range planning is the only way to make this 
happen. Remember: Long Range Planning is just that ...Planning for the Long Range.  
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Conclusion 
 


In this year’s report we not only supplied descriptions of projects from 2008, 2009 and the 
future, we also supplied a summary of our success in obtaining funding from sources other than 
County property taxes to fund these projects. 


It takes quite an effort to successfully acquire funding from sources other than County 
property taxes to fund highway improvements. It takes vision, planning, cooperation, contact 
development and confidence in the plan. Once the funding is acquired it also takes a qualified staff 
to oversee the construction funded by these sources. If the Department cannot follow thru with the 
design and construction once the funding is attained, there will be no further funding for 
subsequent projects. Fortunately the Ogle County Highway Department has developed an 
experienced, professional staff that can attain the funding, oversee construction of the projects, and 
track utilization of the funds in a stellar manner. 


 
So when someone asks “How much work has the Ogle County Highway Department 


overseen since 2003?”, the answer would be $21.919 million County, $11.49 Township, $16.574 
from Outside Sources and $3.597 million from FHWA, more than $53.58 million in the past 6 
years!  


 
In closing, I would be amiss to neglect thanking those persons who participated in the 


completion of this year’s program. I thank the employees of the Ogle County Highway 
Department for their dedication and hard work. I thank the motorists of Rochelle for their 
patience during the 2008 and 2009 area projects. I thank all the residents of Ogle County for their 
continued support of their Ogle County Highway Department. As always, I also want to thank this 
County Board for your continued support in allowing those long range projects to turn into 
reality. The Ogle County highway system is a transportation infrastructure of which we can all be 
proud. 


 
Curtis D. Cook, P.E. 
Ogle County Engineer 
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Ogle County 
Road & Bridge Committee 


Meeting Minutes 
 
February 10, 2009 
 
I. A. Meeting called to order at 10:00 AM by Chairman Huntley. 


Members present: Don Huntley, Ron Colson, Jim Barnes, Lynne Kilker, 
Ben Diehl, Mel Messer, & Paul White. 
 


II. Received Bids 
 A. Section 05-00233-00-BR, Steward Road Overpass 


1. Motion to award low bid, subject to satisfactorily resolving any 
protests being filed by – Lynne Kilker 


2. Motion Seconded by – Ron Colson 
3. Vote - All in Favor 


B. 2009 Township Pipe Culverts 
1. Concurrence on low bids by Road Commissioners 
2. Motion to award bid to low bidders by – Jim Barnes 
3. Motion Seconded by – Paul White 
4. Vote - All in Favor 


C. 2009 County Pipe Supply 
1. Motion to award bid to low bidder by – Paul White 
2. Motion Seconded by – Ron Colson 
3. Vote - All in Favor 


 D. 2009 Township Aggregate 
1. Concurrence on low bids by Road Commissioners 
2. Motion to award bid to low bidders by – Jim Barnes 
3. Motion Seconded by – Mel Messer 
4. Vote - All in Favor 


 E. 2009 Township Calcium Chloride 
1. Concurrence on low bids by Road Commissioners 
2. Motion to award bid to low bidders by – Mel Messer 
3. Motion Seconded by – Ron Colson 
4. Vote - All in Favor 


 
III. Reviewed January 13, 2009 Minutes. 
 A. Motion to approve minutes by – Ron Colson 
 B. Motion seconded by – Jim Barnes 
 C. Vote - All in Favor 
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IV. Reviewed Bills and Payroll  
 A. Motion to approve by – Mel Messer 
 B. Motion seconded by – Ben Diehl 
 C.  Vote - All in Favor 
 
V. Petitions and Resolutions 


A. Section 05-00233-00-BR, Steward Road Overpass, Award and 
Appropriation Resolution: $100,000.00 from County Bridge Fund 
1. Motion to approve by - Ron Colson 
2. Motion seconded by - Mel Messer 
3. Vote - All in Favor 


B. Supplemental Resolution for County Road Construction to appropriate 
$37,949.76 from County Motor Fuel Tax, $64,100.14 from Federal Aid  
Matching fund, $8672.26 from Engineering fund, and $54,965.00 from 
County Aid to Bridge fund to Section 04-00229-00-FP, Center Road 
1. Motion to approve by – Mel Messer 
2. Motion seconded by – Ron Colson 
3. Vote - All in Favor 


C. Supplemental Resolution for County Road Construction to appropriate 
$79,017.42 from County Motor Fuel Tax and $79,017.43 from Federal Aid  
Matching fund to Section 06-00238-00-RS, Pines Road 
1. Motion to approve by – Lynne Kilker 
2. Motion seconded by – Ben Diehl 
3. Vote - All in Favor 


D. 2009 County Motor Fuel Tax Resolution, Appropriate expenditure of  
$650,000 for Section 09-00000-0X-GM, General Maintenance 
1. Motion to approve by – Jim Barnes 
2. Motion Seconded by – Ron Colson 
3. Vote - All in Favor 


E. 2008 County Motor Fuel Tax Supplemental Resolution, Appropriate  
 expenditure of $291,006.32 for Section 08-00000-0X-GM, General  
 Maintenance 


1. Motion to approve by – Paul White 
2. Motion Seconded by – Ron Colson 
3. Vote - All in Favor 
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F. Ordinance for the establishment of altered speed zones on Mulford Road 
in Monroe Center 
1. Motion to approve by – Lynne Kilker 
2. Motion Seconded by – Mel Messer 
3. Vote - All in Favor 


G. Joint Bridge Agreement for the extension of a pipe culvert on Brookville  
 Road between Ogle County (80.4%) and Carroll County (19.6%) 
 Participation levels based upon assessed valuations 


1. Motion to approve by – Ben Diehl 
2. Motion Seconded by – Ron Colson 
3. Vote - All in Favor 


H. Award & Appropriation Resolution Section 2009 County Pipe Supply 
$ 12,700.00     from County Aid to Bridge Fund 


 1. Motion to approve resolution by – Jim Barnes 
 2. Motion seconded by – Mel Messer 
 3. Vote - All in Favor 


 
VI.  Business & Communications 
 A. Unfinished Business 


1. The County Engineer has researched the cost of installation of a 
back-up generator for the Highway Department. Should a 
widespread power outage occur, the Department could function for a 
few hours by use of current means. More than a few hours of outage 
would cause problems with heat for the diesel vehicles in the winter 
and refueling of vehicles from the underground storage tanks. The 
Committee directed the County Engineer to move forward with the 
necessary acquisition of a back-up power source. 


2. The County Engineer and Committee discussed the upcoming 
Federal stimulus package and State capital bill. The stimulus 
package would amount to approximately $250,000 for Ogle County 
for each of two years. The state capital bill is still very early in its 
development, but increases in motor fuel tax and income tax are 
being discussed. 


 B. New Business 
1. I.A.C.E. Legislative Committee – Capital programs. 
2. I.A.C.E. Revenue Fact Finding Committee – State capital program. 
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3. Next Meeting - Tuesday, March 10, 2009, @ 10:00 AM, 
       Lettings: Scott Road bridge replacement 


         Milledgeville culvert replacement 
  Edson Road bridge repairs 


2009 Striping 
2009 Brush & Right-of-way Spraying 
2009 Bituminous Patching Material 


 
4. 2009 Project Status Report: 


    Flagg / 251 Intersection - Winter shutdown 
5. The Illinois Department of Agriculture has asked for the County to 


execute an Emerald Ash Borer Compliance Agreement. This 
agreement is voluntary and says that Ogle County will abide by 
designated quarantines. The Committee requested the County 
Engineer abide by the IDOA quarantines, but decided not to execute 
the agreement with IDOA. 


6. The County Engineer and Committee discussed the implementation 
of a physical requirements policy for new department employees. 
Many County Highway Departments across the state have such a 
requirement. During the Employer’s Association Employee Survey, 
EA suggested the Department look into establishment of such a 
policy. The Committee directed the County Engineer to come up 
with a Departmental policy for establishment for new employees. 


7. The County Engineer notified the Committee that the salt supplier 
finally delivered the last loads of a salt order placed on January 2 on 
February 3. Should the Department not have had the salt storage 
capacity of the new salt bin, the Department would have run out of 
salt in January. 


8. The County Engineer will present his 2008 Annual Report to the 
Committee and Board next week. 


9.  The Committee and County Engineer discussed the installation of 
fiber optic cable to replace the microwave connection between the 
Liberty Hill tower and the Judicial Center. This fiber would replace 
the microwave connection that has been out of service the past 
couple days leaving the County offices with no internet service or 
email service. 


11. Application for a grant to fund installation of a fiber optic connection 
between Rochelle and Oregon was also discussed. This connection 
could be the first leg of a connection between the NITT, Oregon, 
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Mt. Morris, Byron, Stillman Valley, and Davis Junction. 
12. On January 28th, the County scheduled Flagger Certification training 


for the Highway Department employees. Townships and 
municipalities were also invited to attend. Over 60 highway 
department employees of the County, Townships, and Municipalities 
of Ogle County attended the training that day.  


13. Road postings:  spring weight restrictions may be implemented very 
shortly. 


 
VII. Public Comment 
 There was no public comment at this time.    
             
VIII. Meeting adjourned at 12:02 P.M. by Chairman Huntley. 








Ogle County Emergency Telephone System Board 
PO Box 135 


Oregon, IL  61061 
John Thompson, Chairman    Sandy Beitel, Vice Chairman 


Sandy Beitel, Secretary 
E9-1-1 Coordinator 


 
 
The monthly scheduled meeting of the Ogle County ETSB could not be held due to a lack 
of a quorum.  The bills were paid pursuant to the resolution passed April 6, 1994. 
 
Members present: 
S. Beitel  D. DeWall 
B. Kunce  S. Sullivan 
 
Others present: 
Tracie Sill, Ogle County Sheriff’s Office Communications Supervisor 
Sheriff Greg Beitel, Ogle County Sheriff 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Sandy Beitel, Secretary 
Ogle County ETSB  





		John Thompson, Chairman    Sandy Beitel, Vice Chairman

		Sandy Beitel, Secretary





















 
Blackhawk Waterways Convention & Visitor’s Bureau 


Promoting Tourism in Carroll, Lee, Ogle and Whiteside Counties 
Diane Bausman, Executive Director  
Report for Month of January 2009 


 
Meetings Attended: 


• Jan 7th – Whiteside County Barn Tour meeting 
• Jan 12th – ICCVB executive board conference call. 
• Jan 12th – Dixon Tourism meeting 
• Jan 13th – Carroll County Hotel/Motel meeting 
• Jan 15th – ICCVB executive board conference call 
• Jan 20th – Tri-State Tourism conference planning mtg. 
• Jan 22nd – Rock Falls Tourism meeting 
• Jan 27th – BWCVB Board meeting 
• Jan. 28th – Rochelle TVA meeting 
• Jan. 28th – MVPA planning meeting 
•  


Web Site Update: 
•  Our redesigned website (bwcvb.com) is now up and running and we are very pleased with the many new features such as the 


Google maps component and the edition of a meetings and convention category to name a few.  Please check it out.   
• We’ve seen an increase in visits of 52% since November and feel this is due to the new website and our Adword campaign. 


Visits increased 130% compared to last year and Adwords accounted for a large majority of those visits. During December 
the top Adwords that garnered the most clicks were: Illinois Christmas tree farms, Illinois Bed & Breakfast, Illinois 
getaways, and Illinois antiques.  The average time spent on our site from these Adwords was 2.45 minutes.  We added 
‘Valentine’s Day 2009’ on Dec. 29th and since then we have received 1,128 visits from that phrase with an average of 2.63 
pages per visit.  To look at it another way...we had more visits from mid-December to mid-January than in the month of June 
(a traditionally high traffic time) last year with the old site.   


• Our Jan. e-newsletter went out the first week of the month to the 997 people who have subscribed via our website and it 
included a winter getaway/Valentines package promotion along with the Jan-Feb calendar of events for the region.   


• The 2009 Visitor Guide is now available as a downloadable pdf on our website.       
 
Bulk Mailing Update: 
• We sent out 142 packets of information during December and have sent out 166 so far in January. 
•  We sent out 55 Group Tour packets to tour operators & booking agents during December & January. 
 
Public Relations: 
• Dec. 29th – WIXN radio show. 
• We had an information booth at the Quad Cities Vacation Show Jan 16-18 and distributed approx. 500 packets of 


information.   
 
Advertising Updates: 
• During December we received 80 targeted requests for information from our ad on travelguidesfree.com and we have 


received 265 so far in January. 
• The 2009 edition of the Illinois Travel Guide has been delivered and we have an ad as part of the Northern Illinois page. We 


receive targeted requests for information throughout the year from this ad.   
 
Updates and Information:  
The 09 Visitor Guides were delivered Jan. 23rd.  We had 75,000 printed and they are distributed via visitor information outlets in 
the 4 counties and throughout the Midwest and Chicago area through tradeshows, the CTM hotel distribution system that covers 
I-80, I-88, I-90 & I-94 and through the 14 state tourism information centers located at entry points into the state.  We also have 
our Visitor Guides in information kiosks located in the Belvidere, O’Hare and DeKalb Oases.  They go out nationwide through 
website and direct mail requests we receive as a result of the advertising we do and it is also available as a downloadable PDF on 
our website.  We fund the Visitor Guide using a partial state marketing grant and through the sale of ads in the Guide.   


 
If you would like me to give a brief presentation at your county board meeting on how Blackhawk Waterways CVB promotes 
tourism in Carroll, Lee, Ogle and Whiteside Counties, call me at 800-678-2108 or contact me via e-mail at 
dbausman@bwcvb.com  
 


Blackhawk Waterways CVB Mission Statement 
To increase the economic impact to the four counties represented through promotions,  


advertising and providing information to potential visitors. 
 


 



mailto:dbausman@bwcvb.com
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HB 1 (Bradley)
MOTOR FUEL TAX SURCHARGE
Status: Revenue & Finance Committee
Provides that, beginning on July 1, 2009,
an additional surcharge of 8 cents per
gallon shall be imposed on the privilege
of operating motor vehicles upon the
public highways and recreational-type
watercraft upon the waters of the State.
The moneys collected must be used for
debt service and capital improvements.


HB 37 (Moffitt)
LEASE CLOSED STATE PARKS
Status: State Govt. Admin. Committee
Requires the Dept. of Natural Resources
and the Illinois Historic Preservation
Agency offer to lease to any interested
unit of local government, the operation
and maintenance of any closed State
park or historic site for one dollar. 


HB 58 (Reis)
WORKER’S COMPENSATION
Status: Labor Committee
Amends the Workers' Compensation Act
and Workers' Occupational Diseases Act
as follows: provides an injury by acci-
dent is compensable only if the accident
was the prevailing factor in causing both
the resulting medical condition and dis-
ability; makes changes regarding notice
of accidents; makes changes in compu-
tation of compensation paid to certain
employees who, before the accident for
which an employee claims compensa-


Lawmakers float tax proposals
by Taylor Anderson, Legislative Consultant


Several tax proposals have been floating around as
possible solutions to the State’s budget problems and
as sources of funding a capital program. 


House Bill 1 introduced by Rep. Bradley sets to
establish an additional 8 cents per gallon surcharge on
gasoline, as well as create a fund to be used solely for
the use of debt service and capital improvements (the
GROW Illinois Fund). The federal government is also
said to be looking at a gas tax. Governor Quinn said he wants to beat the feds
to it and is pressing to have a gas tax increase by April. The Governor has also
mentioned various fee increases.


There has a been a push by labor groups to increase the size of the gas
tax to 16 cents per gallon as they feel 8 cents will not be enough. There has
also been a movement to lock in all funds to be used for a capital program in
order to avoid any fund sweeps. It is estimated a capital program will need to
be $5 billion and done in two, three and five year programs. Rumors predict a
majority of the money will be handed out in the forms of bonds.


Sen. Schoenberg has introduced Senate Bill 44, a cigarette tax. It will
increase the tax on cigarettes by about $1, though this may change. The tax
increase could generate about $300 million. Currently this money is used by
the Department of Healthcare and Family Services to make reimbursements to
providers who participate in certain medical assistance programs. 


There are several different proposals for an income tax but none has
reached paper. The proposal that is gathering the most steam is a rehashing of
Senate Bill 750 (Meeks) from the 95th General Assembly. This bill was for
both corporate and individuals and gave a measure of property tax relief, as it
sought to patch the holes and increase funding for education. It remains to be
seen if the money would still be used for education. A sales tax proposal has
also been floated. The details are thin at the moment (especially with work still
ongoing with the Streamline Sales Tax) but there have been talks of including
computer software in the sales tax.


Not a tax issue but a piece of legislation that potentially could be quite
costly is Senate Bill 184 (Haine). This bill is seeking to have interest paid pre-
judgment in actions of law and arbitration from the date the party from whom
damages are sought is given written notice of the claim for money damages or
the action or arbitration is filed. From our understanding of the bill this would
require any defendant to pay interest on the amount of damages sought by a
plaintiff before a verdict has been given.


House Bills


The House and Senate will return to
regular session on February 18. This
report presents new bills introduced
in the first year of the 96th General
Assembly of interest to counties. This
list is not all-inclusive, nor is this a
roster of bills favored or opposed by
IACBMC.
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tion, had sustained an injury; makes
changes regarding review of awards;
limits certain cumulative awards for par-
tial disability; provides for certification of
permanent partial or total disability by
physicians; provides that no compensa-
tion is payable for certain injuries involv-
ing alcohol or drugs; makes other
changes.


HB 60 (Holbrook)
COUNTY DETENTION HOMES
Status: Counties & Townships Comm.
Provides that, if the county board has
levied a tax for a detention home and
cannot adequately support the facility,
the county board may expend the tax
receipts for detention services pur-
chased through agreements with other
governmental units or entities.


HB 61 (Holbrook)
PUBLIC BUILDING COMMISSION
Status: House 2nd Reading
Adds to the powers of a public building
commission. Provides the commission
has the power to employ and discharge
without regard to any Civil Services Act
"design-build" experts to carry out the
purposes of this Act.


Illinois Sheriffs support proposed
concealed carry law


After years of being neutral on concealed
carry, the Illinois Sheriff’s Association passed a
resolution earlier this month supporting a state
concealed-carry handgun law. Only Illinois and
Wisconsin have no form of concealed-carry
handgun laws.


State Rep. John Bradley (D-Marion) has
introduced House Bill 245 which creates the
Family and Personal Protection Act establishing uniform standards for the
issuance of permits to carry concealed firearms in Illinois. It authorizes the
Illinois State Police to issue concealed firearms permits to applicants who
meet a strict set of qualifications. The bill is similar to proposals introduced in
previous years, but the new bill places most of the screening process through
the local sheriff’s departments.


Several counties in Illinois have approved referenda supporting the right of
Illinoisans to carry defensive firearms including Crawford, Effingham, Franklin,
Greene, Jasper, Jefferson, Union, Ogle, Saline and Woodford. The Illinois
Association of Chiefs of Police opposes the proposal.


HB 62 (Stephens)
PTELL REFERENDUM
Status: Revenue & Finance Comm.
Provides that voters in certain counties
may initiate a referendum on the appli-
cability of the Property Tax Extension
Limitation Law by submitting a petition
to the county board signed by a num-
ber of voters equal to at least 1% of the
votes cast in the county at the last pre-
ceding general election.


HB 63 (Fritchey)
PREVAILING WAGE ACT
Status: Executive Committee
Provides that "public works" includes all
projects located in an enterprise zone
or located in an economic development
project area, but does not include proj-
ects at an owner-occupied single family
residence or multi-family residence.


HB 172 (Ramey)
FIREARM OWNERS ID CARD ACT
Status: Agriculture Committee
Provides that a county may not require
registration of firearms or impose
greater restrictions on the acquisition,
possession, transportation, and transfer
of firearms, than imposed by the Act.


HB 173 (Phelps)
FIREARM TRANSPORT
Status: Agriculture Committee
Provides that a unit of local government,
may not regulate the transportation of
firearms or the transportation of ammuni-
tion, components, accessories, or accou-
trements for firearms.


HB 242 (Nekritz)
PTELL – DEBT SERVICE EXTENSION
Status: Revenue & Finance Comm.
Provides that the debt service extension
base must be increased each year by
the percentage increase, for the previ-
ous year, of the Consumer Price Index.


HB 244 (Pritchard)
INSURANCE COVERAGE
Status: Insurance Committee
Amends the Counties Code to require
coverage for medically necessary pre-
ventative physical therapy for insureds
diagnosed with multiple sclerosis.


HB 298 (Mathias)
LOCAL GOVERNMENT MONEY
Status: Revenue & Finance Comm.
Amends the Use Tax Act among others.
Provides that 0.4% of the net revenues
realized for the preceding month from
the State's portion of the general rate of
tax imposed under the Act shall be paid
into the Local Government Distributive
Fund (reverting to the distribution in
place prior to State fiscal year 2003). 


HB 329 (Franks)
COUNTY CODE – REFERENDA
Status: Counties & Townships Comm.
Provides for binding referenda (instead
of advisory referenda) concerning the
number of members of the county board
to be elected, whether board members
should be elected from single-member,
multi-member or at-large districts, and
whether voters will have cumulative
voting rights


HB 347 (Holbrook)
COUNTY DETENTION HOMES
Status: House 2nd Reading
Provides that, if the county board has
levied a tax for a detention home and
cannot adequately support the facility,
the county board may expend the tax
receipts for detention services pur-
chased through agreements with other
governmental units.
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HB 367 (Mitchell)
CONCEAL CARRY
Status: Agriculture Committee
Establishes statewide uniform standards
for the issuance of permits to carry con-
cealed firearms in this State. Vests in the
county sheriff the authority to issue con-
cealed firearms permits to qualified
applicants.


HB 395 (Brady)
ELECTION OFFICER ENDORSEMENT
Status: Elections & Campaign Comm.
Prohibits county clerks and boards of
election commissioners from making
public endorsements of candidates.


HB 442 (Jefferson)
AUTOMATED TRAFFIC LAW
Status: Counties & Townships Comm.
Provides that the counties of Champaign,
DeKalb, La Salle, McLean, Peoria,
Sangamon, Vermilion, and Winnebago,
and the municipalities within those coun-
ties, may establish an automated traffic
law enforcement system.


HB 454 (Ford)
CIGARETTE TAX INCREASE
Status: Revenue & Finance Comm.
Provides that, beginning July 1, 2009, an
additional tax of 50 mills per cigarette
($1 per pack of 20) shall be imposed.


HB 462 (Phelps)
CONCEALED CARRY
Status: Agriculture Committee
Permits the county sheriff to issue
permits to carry concealed firearms to
persons at least 21 years of age who
meet certain requirements.


HB 466 (Jakobsson)
MUNICIPAL CODE - ANNEXATION
Status: Cities & Villages Committee
Provides that property that is located in
Champaign County and is the subject of
an annexation agreement is subject to
the ordinances, control, and jurisdiction
of the annexing municipality if the proper-
ty is located within 1.5 miles of the corpo-
rate boundaries of the municipality or
more than 1.5 miles from the corporate
boundaries of the municipality unless the
county board retains jurisdiction.


HB 473 (Mitchell)
COUNTY CODE – SCHOOL TAX
Status: Elementary Education Com.
Provides that a school district that
receives proceeds from a county school
facility occupation tax may enter into an
intergovernmental agreement with a
municipality to share those proceeds.
Provides that the municipality may use
its share of the proceeds only for
municipal infrastructure purposes.


HB 482 (Poe)
IMRF – DEATH BENEFIT
Status: Personnel & Pensions Com.
Amends the Illinois Municipal Retire-
ment Fund (IMRF) Article of the Illinois
Pension Code. Increases the death
benefit from $3,000 to $5,000. Amends
the State Mandates Act to require
implementation without reimbursement. 


HB 544 (Osmond)
HUMAN SERVICES TAX
Status: Human Services Committee
Amends the Counties Code. Provides
that taxes may be levied to provide
"human services" (now, "social services
for senior citizens"). 


HB 547 (Pihos)
IDENTITY PROTECTION ACT
Status: Computer Technology Comm.
Creates the Identity Protection Act.
Prohibits a State or local government
agency from using an individual's social
security number in certain ways, subject
to various exceptions. Requires each
State or local government agency to
develop and implement an identity pro-
tection policy. Amends the State
Mandates Act to require implementation
without reimbursement by the State. 


Legislation amending Smoke Free Ilinois
Act may not fix all problems


An amendment to the Smoke Free Illinois
Act that clarifies exemption and enforcement
components was signed into law by Governor
Quinn on February 4th. While the amendment,
also known as Senate Bill 2757, strenthens
enforcement of the Act by providing additional
guidelines for writing citations, it may also
create new complications.


There has been significant confusion on 
how to enforce provisions of the smoking ban since it went into effect Jan. 1,
2008. Prior to this amendment, violations were treated as criminal complaints
rather than civil matters which sparked legality issues as counties claimed
they could not enforce the statute until the State adopted administrative rules.
While the Illinois Department of Public Health (IDPH) proposed rules, the
Joint Committee on Administrative Rules (JCAR), never adopted the rules.
This led to inconsistencies in how the law was enforced.


While the new law removes violators from the courts by making it a civil
matter rather than a criminal offense, the amendment still doesn’t deal with
the JCAR rules. Rather, it sets forth procedures by which the state public
health department should process violations. All citations issued would need
to include “the location where the violator can pay the fine without objection;
and the address and phone number of the enforcing agency where the viola-
tor can request a hearing before the department to contest the imposition of
the fine. This new layer of bureaucracy may require specialized personnel or
contractors to oversee hearing for contested violations and could filter in to
each county. The amendment still requires the rules of the new administrative
system be consistent with the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act and be
approved by JCAR, but it is unknown as to whether the IDPH is preparing to
submit regulations to JCAR again.


96th General Assembly
New House Bills
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HB 593 (Zalewski)
COUNTIES REGULATE LANDLORDS
Status: Counties & Townships Comm.
Provides that the county board of any
county may license and regulate land-
lords, as defined by the county board,
within the unincorporated areas of that
county.


HB 654 (Schmitz)
QUICKTAKE – KANE COUNTY
Status: Executive Committee
Grants quick-take eminent domain pow-
ers for a period of one year to Kane
County for the Stearns Road Corridor
project.


HB 671 (Eddy)
PTELL – AGGREGATE EXTENSIONS
Status: Revenue & Finance Comm.
Amends the Property Tax Extension
Limitation Law in the Property Tax Code.
Provides that all contributions to a pen-
sion fund created under Article 3, Article
4, or Article 7 of the Illinois Pension
Code are exempt from the definition of
"aggregate extension". 


HB 704 (Phelps)
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Status: Counties & Townships Comm.
Provides that a county with a population
of 50,000 or less with a 3-member board
of commissioners may, upon referendum
initiated by (i) the adoption of a resolu-
tion by the board of county commission-
ers or (ii) a petition signed by not less
than 10% of the registered voters in the
county, establish a 5-member board of
county commissioners. Sets forth
requirements for the referendum.


HB 705 (Farnham)
PREDATORY LEND DATABASE
Status: Executive Database
Provides that a predatory lending data-
base program shall be established with-
in Cook, Kane, and Will counties
(instead of Cook County). 


HB 722 (Fortner)
UTILITIES – AGGREGATION
Status: Executive Committee
Provides that the corporate authorities
of a municipality or county board of a
county may adopt an ordinance under
which it may aggregate in accordance
with specified provisions residential and
small commercial retail electrical loads
located within the municipality or the
unincorporated areas of the county.


HB 766 (Howard)
MEDICAID – INCARCERATED
Status: Human Services Committee
Provides that an inmate of a penal insti-
tution maintained by the State or a unit
of local government may qualify for
medical assistance only after he or she
has ceased to be an inmate, but the
inmate may apply for medical assis-
tance in advance of his or her dis-
charge or release from the institution.


HB 817 (Eddy)
PTELL – CPI
Status: Revenue & Finance Comm.
Amends the Property Tax Extension
Limitation Law in the Property Tax
Code. Provides that "extension limita-
tion" means (a) the lesser of 5% or the
percentage increase in the Employment
Cost Index or, upon referendum
approval, the Consumer Price Index
during the 12-month calendar year pre-
ceding the levy year or (b) the rate
increase approved by the voters. 


HB 827 (Black)
MOBILE HOME TAX ACT
Status: Revenue & Finance Comm.
Defines "permanent foundation".
Requires the Dept. of Revenue to
adopt rules setting forth standards that
county or township assessment officers
must use in determining whether a
dwelling is a mobile home or real prop-
erty. Requires the Department to estab-
lish and administer a training program
to train county or township assessment
officers to use those standards. 


HB 865 (Tracy)
METH PERCUSOR CONTROL ACT
Status: Rules Committee
Creates a pilot program coordinated by
the Illinois State Police in Adams,
Madison, St. Clair, and Vermilion
Counties to track purchases of targeted
methamphetamine precursor across
multiple locations.


HB 883 (Connelly)
SPECIAL MEETING NOTICE
Status: Rules Committee
Amends the Counties Code. In a Section
concerning counties under township
organization, provides that public notice
of a special meeting of a county board
must be given as prescribed in the Open
Meetings Act (now, publication in a spec-
ified newspaper).


HB 905 (Verschoore)
LOCAL BUILDING CODES
Status: House Rules
Requires local governments without
building codes to adopt building codes
based on specified model codes.


HB 918 (Boland)
ELECTIONS – PUBLIC QUESTIONS
Status: House Rules
Sets the minimum number of petition
signatures for a local public question at
8% (now, 10%) of the number of votes
cast by registered voters in the govern-
mental unit.


HB 952 (Beiser)
PREVAILING WAGE ACT
Status: House Rules
Provides that the Act applies to the
demolition of public works.


HB 1003 (Poe)
MUNICIPAL CODE – ANNEXATION
Status: House Rules
Provides that, except for property locat-
ed in certain counties, if property that is
the subject of an annexation agreement
is located more than 1.5 miles from the
corporate boundaries of the annexing
municipality, that property is subject to
the ordinances, control, and jurisdiction
of the annexing municipality unless the
county board retains jurisdiction by the
affirmative vote of two-thirds of its mem-
bers (now, the county board may retain
jurisdiction in Boone, DeKalb, Grundy,
Kankakee, Kendall, LaSalle, Ogle, or
Winnebago County). 


HB 585 (Sacia)
COMPETITIVE BIDS
Status: Counties & Townships
Committee


Amends the Counties Code.
Provides that in a county with
fewer than 2,000,000 inhabitants
that certain contracts in excess
of $30,000 (instead of $20,000)
must be let by competitive bid.


INITIATIVE OF THE
IACBMC
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SB 43 (Clayborne)
PREVAILING WAGE ACT – PROJECTS
Status: Labor Committee
Provides that "public works" includes all
projects located in an enterprise zone or
located in an economic development
project area, but does not include proj-
ects at an owner-occupied single family
or multi-family residence located in an
enterprise zone or economic develop-
ment project area. 


SB 44 (Schoenberg)
CIGARETTE TAX INCREASE
Status: Referred to Assignments
Provides that an additional tax of 50 mills
per cigarette shall be imposed on retail-
ers of cigarettes.


SB 49 (Althoff)
IDOT – ROAD SALT GRANTS
Status: Executive Committee
Creates the Local Government Road
Salt Purchase Reimbursement Fund.
Provides that moneys in the Fund shall
be used by the Dept. of Transportation to
make grants to counties, municipalities,
townships, and road districts in the
northeastern Illinois region that entered
into contracts for the purchase of road
salt for the 2008-2009 winter season at a
rate that exceeds the regional average. 


SB 50 (Althoff)
IDOT – ROAD SALT APPROPRIATION
Status: Executive Committee
Appropriates $14,500,000 from the Local
Government Road Salt Purchase
Reimbursement Fund to the Dept. of
Transportation for the purpose of provid-
ing grants to counties, municipalities,
townships, and road districts for road salt
reimbursement.


SB 57 (Murphy)
PROPERTY TAX – ALT EXEMPTION
Status: Revenue Committee
Provides that a county may subject itself
to the alternative general homestead
exemption by adopting an ordinance
within 6 months after the effective date
of the amendatory Act. The base year for
a county that adopts an ordinance within
6 months after the effective date of the
amendatory Act is tax year 2008. 


SB 58 (Murphy)
PROPERTY TAX – HOMESTEAD
Status: Revenue Committee
Provides that the alternative general
homestead exemption applies on a per-
manent basis. Increases the maximum
amount of the exemption to $40,000.


SB 59 (Murphy)
PROPERTY TAX CODE
Status: Revenue Committee
In a Section concerning the long-time
occupant homestead exemption, pro-
vides that the exemption applies
regardless of whether or not the county
has elected to be subject to the provi-
sions of the alternative general home-
stead exemption.


SB 60 (Murphy)
PROPERTY TAX CODE
Status: Revenue Committee
In a Section concerning penalty bids,
provides that no bid shall be accepted
for a penalty exceeding 6% (instead of
18%) of the amount of the tax or spe-
cial assessment on property.


New commission looks to clean up
state government


It looks as though ethics will be a top priority
in 2009. Both chambers voted overwhelmingly to
approves Senate Joint Resolution 1 that creates
a 16-member Joint Committee on Government
Reform. The new committee willl work simulta-
neously with the Illinois Reform Commission.


The Illinois Reform Commission (IRC), headed
by former Assistant U.S. Attorney Patrick Collins,
was created through an Executive Order. This
independent advisory group will examine govern-
ment practices and ethics, and make recommen-
dations for cleaning up state government.


On February 11, 2009, the IRC delivered a letter to Gov. Quinn asking the
Governor to immediately issue an executive order to all state agencies,
boards and commissions under his control, directing those public bodies to
fully comply with all provisions of the Illinois Freedom of Information Act and
the Open Meetings Act, and to maximize transparency in their operations. the
letter also urges the Governor to support vigorous enforcement efforts, includ-
ing legal proceedings to compel compliance when necessary.


According to the Reform Commission website, ReformIllinoisNow.org,
the public is encouarged to attend commission meetings and provide input.
On April 26 the commission will submit a finished report outlining its findings
and recommendations to the people of Illinois and to the Governor.


96th General Assembly
New Senate Bills


SB 78 (Clayborne)
MANUFACTURED HOMES –
FOUNDATIONS
Status: Commerce Committee


Creates the Manufactured Home
Installation Act. Provides that a
manufactured home installed on
private property that is not a
mobile home park must be
installed so that it rests wholly on
a permanent foundation.


INITIATIVE OF THE
IACBMC


SB 103 (Trotter)
LAW LIBRARY FEE
Status: Executive Committee
Provides that a county board may
authorize a county law library fee of not
to exceed (i) $18 in 2009, (ii) $19 in
2010, and (iii) $21 in 2011 and thereafter
(instead of $13).
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SB 230 (Jones)
OCCUPATION TAX PROCEEDS
Status: Local Government Comm.
Amends the Counties Code concerning
the Special County Retailers'
Occupation Tax For Public Safety or
Transportation. Authorizes counties to
share tax proceeds received for public
safety purposes, including proceeds
received before the effective date of
this amendatory Act, with any fire pro-
tection district located in the county.


SB 231 (Raoul)
MEDICAID – PRISONER ELIGIBILITY
Status: Humans Services Committee
Amends the Illinois Public Aid Code.
Provides that if a person who is incar-
cerated in a jail or correctional facility in
Illinois or receiving treatment at a hos-
pital under the authority of the Dept. of
Corrections was a recipient of medical
assistance immediately before his or
her incarceration or period of treatment,
the recipient shall remain eligible for
medical assistance during the period of
his or her incarceration or treatment,
but the Dept. of Healthcare and Family
Services shall not provide medical
assistance for any medical care, servic-
es, or supplies provided to the recipient
during that period.


in  Illinois


Illinois Municipal League  •  Illinois Association of County Board Members and Commissioners
Township Officials of Illinois  •  U of I Extension


SB 138 (Link)
LOCAL BUILDING CODES
Status: Executive Committee


Amends the Capital Develop-
ment Board Act. Requires local
governments without building
codes to adopt building codes
based on specified model codes.
Requires that persons perform-
ing building inspection services
under the Act must be qualified
by the State, certified by a certifi-
cation organization, or have filed
verification of inspection experi-
ence with the Board. Permits a
local government to out-source
building inspection.


SB 281 (Jones)
CONSERVANCY – Franlkin / Jefferson
Status: Referred to Assignments
Amends the River Conservancy Districts
Act. With respect to the board of a dis-
trict embracing Franklin and Jefferson
counties, ends the terms of all current
trustees. Provides for appointment of
new trustees by the presiding officers of
the county boards and mayors or village
presidents. 


SB 286 (Althoff)
FARMLAND PRESERVATION
Status: Local Government Comm.
Provides that a county with a population
of less than 1,000,000 may levy an
annual tax for farmland preservation
easement purposes. Provides that the
tax may not exceed 0.05% of the equal-
ized assessed value of taxable property
in the county. Provides that the tax must
be approved by referendum. 


SB 322 (Steans)
PREVAILING WAGE
Status: Referred to Assignments
Amends the Prevailing Wage Act. In pro-
visions making it a public body's respon-
sibility to notify contractors and subcon-
tractors of a revised prevailing wage
rate, provides that the publication of an
ordinance or resolution passed by the
public body that states the ascertained
prevailing wage is sufficient notification
to the contractor and each subcontractor.


SB 1335 (Trotter)
REGISTERED TITLES ACT
Status: Referred to Assignments
Deletes a provision concerning excess
funds in a county indemnity fund that
states that the county may transfer and
expend excess indemnity fund monies
for the benefit of real property owners as
the county deems appropriate, if at least
50% of the excess monies are trans-
ferred to the lead poisoning prevention
fund but the county may not expend
excess indemnity fund monies for any
purpose other than lead poisoning pre-
vention until it first starts making loan or
grant payments under the lead poisoning
prevention program. 


SB 1341 (Bond)
COURT COST FINES
Status: Referred to Assignments
Amends the Clerks of Courts Act to pro-
vide that any person who receives court
supervision shall pay an additional fee of
$30 (instead of $20).  Provides that $20
of the $30 (instead of the $20) shall be
deposited into the State Police Vehicle
Fund and $10 shall be deposited into the
Driver's Education Fund.


SB 1352 (Viverito)
REGULATE LANDLORDS
Status: Referred to Assignments
Amends the Counties Code. Provides
that the county board of any county may
license and regulate landlords within the
unincorporated areas of that county. 


JJooiinn  uuss  iinn  cceelleebbrraattiioonn
LLOOCCAALL  GGOOVVEERRNNMMEENNTT  WWEEEEKK
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Fund: 200 - County Highway
Department: 17 - Highway


Account: 4212 - Electricity
1156 - COMED 2009-00000305 CH fund - monthly usage Paid by Check # 70817 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 1,363.06


Account Total: Electricity 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $1,363.06


Account: 4214 - Gas (Heating)
1898 - NICOR 2009-00000290 CH fund - monthly usage Paid by Check # 70825 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 1,689.05


Account Total: Gas (Heating) 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $1,689.05


Account: 4216.10 - Telephone
1265 - VERIZON 2009-00000304 CH fund - monthly usage Paid by Check # 70835 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 335.34
1773 - MCI 2009-00000309 CH fund - monthly usage Paid by Check # 70823 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 52.72


Account Total: Telephone 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $388.06


Account: 4412 - Official Publications
1502 - OGLE COUNTY LIFE 2009-00000296 CH fund - legal notices Paid by Check # 70827 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 75.16


Account Total: Official Publications 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $75.16


Account: 4474 - Deer Expense
1876 - ROCHELLE WASTE 
DISPOSAL, LLC


2009-00000367 CH fund - deer expense Paid by Check # 70898 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 15.00


Account Total: Deer Expense 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $15.00


Account: 4490 - Contingencies
1587 - ROCHELLE DISPOSAL 
SERVICE


2009-00000292 CH fund - dumpster service Paid by Check # 70830 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 120.00


Account Total: Contingencies 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $120.00


Account: 4510 - Office Supplies
1500 - OGLE COUNTY HIGHWAY 
DEPARTMENT


2009-00000359 CH fund - replenish kitty fund Paid by Check # 70893 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 271.06


1565 - QUILL CORPORATION 2009-00000360 CH fund - office supplies Paid by Check # 70897 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 215.04


Account Total: Office Supplies 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $486.10


Account: 4540 - Repairs & Maint - Facilities
1873 - GRAINGER 2009-00000295 CH fund - bldg maint supplies Paid by Check # 70821 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 457.20
2175 - MAINTENANCE 
ENGINEERING LTD


2009-00000365 bldg maint supplies Paid by Check # 70890 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 465.36


1871 - HOWARD LEE & SONS INC 2009-00000378 CH fund - fuel pump parts Paid by Check # 70889 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 174.00
1093 - BLACKHAWK LUMBER INC 2009-00000440 CH fund - bldg maint supplies Paid by Check # 70959 02/05/2009 02/05/2009 02/06/2009 02/05/2009 3.02
1480 - NICHOLSON HARDWARE 2009-00000443 CH fund - bldg maint supplies Paid by Check # 70962 02/05/2009 02/05/2009 02/06/2009 02/05/2009 2.76
1434 - MENARDS 2009-00000446 CH fund - bldg maint supplies Paid by Check # 70961 02/05/2009 02/05/2009 02/06/2009 02/05/2009 72.47
1931 - HARDER HELSLEY 
ROCKFORD


2009-00000447 CH fund - bldg maint supplies Paid by Check # 70960 02/05/2009 02/05/2009 02/06/2009 02/05/2009 340.82


Account Total: Repairs & Maint - Facilities 7 Invoice Transaction(s) $1,515.63


Account: 4545.10 - Petroleum Products -
1924 - KELLEY WILLIAMSON 2009-00000297 CH fund - gas Paid by Check # 70822 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 1,364.70
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COMPANY
1896 - SHELL FLEET PLUS 2009-00000310 CH fund - gas Paid by Check # 70832 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 17.99


Account Total: Petroleum Products - 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $1,382.69


Account: 4545.20 - Petroleum Products -
1924 - KELLEY WILLIAMSON 
COMPANY


2009-00000298 CH fund - diesel fuel Paid by Check # 70822 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 21,876.82


Account Total: Petroleum Products - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $21,876.82


Account: 4610.10 - Maint of Roads & Bridges -
2647 - MARTIN & COMPANY 
EXCAVATING


2009-00000377 CH fund - road rock Paid by Check # 70891 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 149.96


Account Total: Maint of Roads & Bridges - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $149.96


Account: 4610.40 - Maint of Roads & Bridges -
3039 - NORTHERN CONTRACTING, 
INC.


2009-00000302 CH fund - guardrail repairs Paid by Check # 70826 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 1,265.84


Account Total: Maint of Roads & Bridges - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $1,265.84


Account: 4610.90 - Maint of Roads & Bridges
2503 - ADESTA, LLC 2009-00000306 CH fund - julie locates Paid by Check # 70812 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 313.45


Account Total: Maint of Roads & Bridges 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $313.45


Account: 4620.10 - Repair Parts -
2877 - CHICAGO INTERNATIONAL 
TRUCK


2009-00000286 CH fund - truck repairs & parts Paid by Check # 70816 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 2,858.49


2289 - ERIC J. GUSTAFSON CO. 2009-00000287 CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 70819 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 33.77
2455 - STANDARD SPRING, INC. 2009-00000288 CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 70834 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 65.94
2138 - MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT 2009-00000293 CH fund - truck part Paid by Check # 70824 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 115.57
1535 - PETERS GMC 2009-00000370 CH fund - truck parts & repairs Paid by Check # 70895 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 1,031.31
1676 - TERMINAL SUPPLY CO 2009-00000371 CH fund - truck parts Paid by Check # 70903 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 34.91
2140 - PRAIRIE INTERNATIONAL 
TRUCKS, INC.


2009-00000444 CH fund - warranty policy #13 truck Paid by Check # 70964 02/05/2009 02/05/2009 02/06/2009 02/05/2009 3,535.00


Account Total: Repair Parts - 7 Invoice Transaction(s) $7,674.99


Account: 4620.20 - Repair Parts -
1869 - WEST SIDE TRACTOR SALES 2009-00000294 CH fund - heavy equipment parts Paid by Check # 70836 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 120.40
2230 - PATTEN INDUSTRIES, INC. 2009-00000364 CH fund - heavy equipment parts Paid by Check # 70894 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 987.40
2230 - PATTEN INDUSTRIES, INC. 2009-00000439 CH fund - heavy equipment parts Paid by Check # 70963 02/05/2009 02/05/2009 02/06/2009 02/05/2009 289.27
3822 - REMKE'S GARAGE LLC 2009-00000449 CH fund - heavy equipment parts Paid by Check # 70966 02/05/2009 02/05/2009 02/06/2009 02/05/2009 825.32


Account Total: Repair Parts - 4 Invoice Transaction(s) $2,222.39


Account: 4620.50 - Repair Parts -
1100 - BONNELL INDUSTRIES 2009-00000289 CH fund - snow plow parts Paid by Check # 70815 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 641.04
1100 - BONNELL INDUSTRIES 2009-00000376 CH fund - snow plow parts Paid by Check # 70886 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 5,806.61


Account Total: Repair Parts - 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $6,447.65


Account: 4630.20 - De-Icing Material -
1963 - SICALCO LTD. 2009-00000308 CH fund - calcium chloride - winter Paid by Check # 70833 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 2,625.70
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use
1963 - SICALCO LTD. 2009-00000362 CH fund - calcium chloride - winter 


use
Paid by Check # 70901 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 5,181.34


1963 - SICALCO LTD. 2009-00000445 CH fund - calcium chloride - winter 
use


Paid by Check # 70968 02/05/2009 02/05/2009 02/06/2009 02/05/2009 2,610.20


Account Total: De-Icing Material - 3 Invoice Transaction(s) $10,417.24


Account: 4630.30 - De-Icing Material -
1606 - ROGERS READY MIX 2009-00000311 CH fund - ice abrasive chips Paid by Check # 70831 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 6,915.28
1657 - STEVE BENESH & SONS 
QUARRIES


2009-00000373 CH fund - ice abrasives Paid by Check # 70902 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 2,749.90


1606 - ROGERS READY MIX 2009-00000442 CH fund - ice abrasives Paid by Check # 70967 02/05/2009 02/05/2009 02/06/2009 02/05/2009 4,147.74


Account Total: De-Icing Material - 3 Invoice Transaction(s) $13,812.92


Account: 4640.10 - Sign & Striping Material -
1156 - COMED 2009-00000300 CH fund - street & traffic lighting Paid by Check # 70818 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 43.75


Account Total: Sign & Striping Material - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $43.75


Account: 4650.10 - Hardware & Shop Supplies
1373 - BARNES DISTRIBUTION 2009-00000307 CH fund - nuts & bolts Paid by Check # 70813 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 384.29
1373 - BARNES DISTRIBUTION 2009-00000368 CH fund - nuts & bolts balance Paid by Check # 70884 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 1.55


Account Total: Hardware & Shop Supplies 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $385.84


Account: 4650.20 - Hardware & Shop Supplies
2177 - REEDSBURG HARDWARE 
COMPANY


2009-00000299 CH fund - chains Paid by Check # 70829 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 556.00


1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 2009-00000303 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 70814 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 56.57
3788 - MATCO TOOLS 2009-00000361 CH fund - tools Paid by Check # 70892 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 128.67
1603 - ROCKFORD INDUSTRIAL 
WELDING


2009-00000369 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 70899 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 312.41


1925 - SAFETY-KLEEN SYSTEMS, 
INC.


2009-00000372 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 70900 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 60.18


1078 - BASLER'S ACE HARDWARE 2009-00000379 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 70885 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 61.70
2073 - R. J. BOWERS 
DISTRIBUTORS, INC.


2009-00000441 CH fund - shop supplies Paid by Check # 70965 02/05/2009 02/05/2009 02/06/2009 02/05/2009 45.69


Account Total: Hardware & Shop Supplies 7 Invoice Transaction(s) $1,221.22


Account: 4660.10 - Tires & Tubes -
1184 - DAN'S GOODYEAR TIRE & 
SERVICE CENTER


2009-00000363 CH fund - tire repair Paid by Check # 70887 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 6.00


Account Total: Tires & Tubes - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $6.00


Account: 4660.20 - Tires & Tubes -
1865 - POMP'S TIRE SERVICE, INC. 2009-00000291 CH fund - tires Paid by Check # 70828 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 1,901.43


Account Total: Tires & Tubes - 1 Invoice Transaction(s) $1,901.43


Account: 4730.99 - Equipment - New & Used -
3699 - TWIN CITY SUPPLY, INC. 2009-00000374 CH fund - new portable air 


compressor
Paid by Check # 70904 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 1,926.00
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1206 - DIXON OTTAWA 
COMMUNICATIONS


2009-00000375 CH fund - new radio & installation Paid by Check # 70888 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 697.00


Account Total: Equipment - New & Used - 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $2,623.00


Account: 4748 - Engineering Equipment & Supplies
1777 - FELKER SNYDER PHARMACY 2009-00000301 CH fund - engr supplies Paid by Check # 70820 01/21/2009 01/21/2009 01/22/2009 01/21/2009 8.89
2893 - POSITIONING SOLUTIONS 
COMPANY


2009-00000366 CH fund - maint on engr equipment Paid by Check # 70896 01/29/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 01/30/2009 1,072.50


Account Total: Engineering Equipment & Supplies 2 Invoice Transaction(s) $1,081.39


Department Total: Highway 57 Invoice Transaction(s) $78,478.64


Fund Total: County Highway 57 Invoice Transaction(s) $78,478.64


Grand Total: 57 Invoice Transaction(s) $78,478.64


. . . . . . . . . .
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This meeting will be taped  
 


Ogle County Board Meeting Agenda     
 


Tuesday, February 17,  2009 at 5:30 p.m. 
 


 
Call to Order:   
Roll Call:   
Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance: Bowers 
 


• Motion to approve the January 20, 2009 Ogle County Board Meeting minutes 
• Motion to accept monthly reports of the Ogle County Clerk/Recorder, Treasurer and Circuit Clerk  
 


Presentations–  
 


 Curtis D. Cook – Ogle County Highway Annual Report 
 GREDCO – Peggy Friday – Tax Abatements 


♦ Project Alfa – Resolution 2009-2011 
♦ Project Buffer – Resolution 2009-2012 


 
Appointments –  
 


 9-1-1 ETS Board – Tracie R. Sill – (R-2009-2001) 
 


Vacancies –  
 


• Board of Health – 1 unexpired term ends 05/31/2009 
• Board of Health – 1 unexpired term ends 11/30/2011 - applicant is required to be a Dentist 
• Board of Health – 1 unexpired term ends 11/30/2011 
 


Application deadline for these vacancies will be 
Friday, March 6, 2009 at 4:30 p.m. in the County Clerk’s Office 


 
• Fire Protection Districts: Forreston, Leaf River, Lynn-Scott-Rock, and Oregon – 1 vacancy each 
• Lost Nation/New Landing RCD – 1 vacancy 
• Planning Commission – 2 vacancies 
• Zoning Board of Appeals – 1 vacancy 


 
Application deadline for these vacancies will be  


Friday, April 3, 2009 at 4:30 p.m. in the County Clerk’s Office 
 
Zoning –  
 


Resolution 2009-0214 or Ordinance 2009-0201 
#9-08 SPECIAL USE -- David & Paijit Ancona, 12488 E. Utility Rd., Davis Junction, IL for a 
Special Use Permit to allow a Small Rural Business (dumpster storage & rental/general hauling of 
non-hazardous materials including furniture, appliances, construction debris, etc.) in the  AG-1 
Agricultural District on property described as follows and owned the petitioners: 


 
Part of the SE1/4 of the SW1/4 Section 15 Scott Township 42N, R1E of the 3rd P.M., Ogle 
County, IL, 5.0 acres, more or less 
Property Identification Number: 11-15-300-003 
Common Location: 12488 E. Utility Rd. 
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Public Comment –  
 
Road & Bridge –  


• Section 05-00233-00-BR, Steward Road Overpass, Award and Appropriation Resolution: 
$100,000.00 from County Bridge Fund – (Resolution 2009-0202) 


 
• Supplemental Resolution for County Road Construction to appropriate $37,949.76 from County 


Motor Fuel Tax, $64,100.14 from Federal Aid Matching fund, $8,672.26 from Engineering fund, 
and $54,965.00 from County Aid to Bridge fund to Section 04-00229-00-FP, Center Road 
(Resolution 2009-0203) 


 
• Supplemental Resolution for County Road Construction to appropriate $79,017.42 from County 


Motor Fuel Tax and $79,017.43 from Federal Aid Matching fund to Section 06-00238-00-RS, 
Pines Road (Resolution 2009-0204) 


 
• 2009 County Motor Fuel Tax Resolution, Appropriate expenditure of  $650,000 for Section 09-


00000-0X-GM, General Maintenance (Resolution 2009-0205) 
 


• 2008 County Motor Fuel Tax Supplemental Resolution, Appropriate expenditure of $291,006.32 
for Section 08-00000-0X-GM, General Maintenance (Resolution 2009-0206) 


 
• Ordinance for the establishment of altered speed zones on Mulford Road in Monroe Center 


(Ordinance 2009-0301) – Presented this month 
 


• Joint Bridge Agreement for the extension of a pipe culvert on Brookville Road between Ogle 
County (80.4%) and Carroll County (19.6%); Participation levels based upon assessed valuations 
(Resolution 2009-0207)  


 
• Award & Appropriation Resolution Section 2009 County Pipe Supply $12,700.00 from County 


Aid to Bridge Fund (Resolution 2009-0208) 
 


• Vacation of the described portion of Lot 37 on McKenneys Island Subdivision (Resolution 2009-
0209) 


 
Ogle County Claims – Clerk reads the claims:  
 


• Payments in Vacation – January 2009  -  $151,806.65 
• County Board Payments -  February  2009 – $117,130.40 
• County Highway Fund – $78,478.64 
 


o Motion to approve claims as presented  
 
Committee Reports –  
 


•  LRP – Courthouse Renovation Committee: 
o Update 
o Approve Long Range Planning Invoices (R-2009-0210) 


 
• Executive & State’s Attorney Committee: 


o Update on County Administrator Search 
o Ogle County Board Rules of Order (R-2009-0213) 
o Change in County Board Meeting Time (R-2009-0215) 
 
 


 
• Chairman Comments: 
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Unfinished Business – 
 
New Business –  
 
Communications –  
 


• Sales Tax for November 2008 was $50,293.11 and $67,526.54 
• Sales Tax for November 2007 was $36,698.20 and $72,573.09 


 
Motion to adjourn until Tuesday, March 17, 2009 at 5:30 p.m.  


 
Agenda is posted at the Courthouse and www.oglecounty.org 


 
County Board Meetings will be held at the Judicial Center  


in Courtroom 202 until further notice 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



http://www.oglecounty.org/
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Proceedings of the Ogle County Board Meeting 
February 17, 2009 


 
State of Illinois )  
County of Ogle ) ss    
City of Oregon ) 
 
Call to Order           
 Chairman Rice calls the Ogle County Board Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.. 
 
Roll Call 
 The roll call shows Messer is absent. The Invocation is given by Bowers and followed with 
the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Approval of Minutes 
 Chairman Rice asks for a motion to approve the January 20, 2009 Ogle County Board 
Meeting minutes. Huntley moves to approve, Saunders seconds and the motion carries. 
  
Approval of Reports 
 Chairman Rice asks for a motion to accept the reports of the Ogle County/Recorder, 
Treasurer and Circuit Clerk. DeArvil moves to accept the reports as filed, Janes seconds and the 
motion carries on a voice vote.(Placed on file) 


 
Presentation – Nathan Schwartz – Highway Annual Report 
 Chairman Rice introduces Nathan Schwartz to the members of the board for the Ogle County 
Highway Annual Report presentation. Nathan has a PowerPoint presentation on the new salt bin 
which was built by the employees of the Highway Department. 
 
Presentation – Peggy Friday of GREDCO – Project Alfa 
 Chairman Rice introduces Peggy Friday of GREDCO to the board and asks for her to present 
information on the two Tax Abatements which will be presented tonight.  
 Ms. Friday states the Abatement for Project Alfa is part of the Reinvest in Rochelle Retail 
Initiative. This Initiative provides a 5-year real estate tax abatement on the incremental EAV 
upon the approval of all local taxing bodies. Boes inquiries if this business met certain 
qualifications to meet this abatement and not all applicants asking for an abatement on a 
remodeling project may qualify? Ms. Friday states that is correct – this was just for retail and 
commercial with a minimum capital investment of $25,000. They also had to be an existing 
business with a history of paying Taxes and Sales Tax to the community. There were other 
incentives from the City of Rochelle, they waived the Building Permit and rebated this back once 
the project was complete. Barnes asks how many employees are with this company. Ms. Friday 
states there are about 15 to 20 employees and no new jobs have been created yet. Ms. Friday 
reviewed the Abatement percentages and amounts with the members of the County Board. Boes 
asks if there were any challenges from the ones that were denied. Ms. Friday said no there were 
not.  
 
Presentation – Peggy Friday of GREDCO – Project Buffer 
 Ms. Friday says the square footage of Project Buffer is 120,000 to 140,000 with a Capital 
Investment of $18,000,000 with the creation of about 25 to 35 jobs. Friday states they are 
competing with Missouri and Wisconsin for this project.  
 
Project Alfa – Kenney makes the motion to approve the Tax Abatement for Project Alfa -
Resolution 2009-0211. Nye seconds and a roll call vote is taken: 
 
YES:  Bauer, Bowers, Colbert, Diehl, Hopkins, Horner, Huntley, Kenney, Nye,     
   Saunders, Stahl and Rice 
 
NO:  Barnes, Boes, Colson, DeArvil, Gouker, Gronewold, Heuer, Janes, Kilker, White   
   and Williams 
 
ABSENT:  Messer 
 


The motion carries on a roll call vote.(Placed on file) 
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Project Buffer – Nye moves to approve the Tax Abatement for Project Buffer – Resolution 
2009-0212. Kenney seconds and a roll call vote is taken: 
 
YES:  Bauer, Boes, Bowers, Colbert, Colson, DeArvil, Diehl, Gronewold, Heuer,  
   Hopkins, Horner, Huntley, Janes, Kenney, Nye, Saunders, Stahl, White, Williams,  
   Barnes and Rice 
 
NO:  Gouker, and Kilker 
 
ABSENT:  Messer 
 


The motion carries on a roll call vote.(Placed on file) 
 
Appointments –  


9-1-1 ETSB (R-2009-0201) 
 Chairman Rice presents Resolution 2009-0201 for the Sheriff’s Designee for the appointment 
of Tracie R. Sill to the 9-1-1 ETSB for a term which ends June 30, 2012. Horner moves to 
approve the appointment resolution as presented, Bauer seconds and the motion carries on a 
voice vote.(Placed on file) 
 
Vacancies –  
 Chairman Rice announces the following vacancies: 
 


• Board of Health – 1 unexpired term ends 05/31/2009 
• Board of Health – 1 unexpired term ends 11/30/2011 - applicant required to be a Dentist 
• Board of Health – 1 unexpired term ends 11/30/2011 
 


Application deadline for these vacancies will be 
Friday, March 6, 2009 at 4:30 p.m. in the County Clerk’s Office 


 
• Fire Protection Districts: Forreston, Leaf River, Lynn-Scott-Rock, and Oregon – 1 each 
• Lost Nation/New Landing RCD – 1 vacancy 
• Planning Commission – 2 vacancies 
• Zoning Board of Appeals – 1 vacancy 


 
Application deadline for these vacancies will be  


Friday, April 3, 2009 at 4:30 p.m. in the County Clerk’s Office 
 
 
Zoning – #9-08 Special use – David & Paijit Ancona – R-2009-0214 or O-2009-0201 
 Chairman Rice and County Clerk Huntley present the request from David & Paijit Ancona, 
12488 E. Utility Rd., Davis Junction, IL for a Special Use Permit to allow a Small Rural 
Business (dumpster storage & rental/general hauling of non-hazardous materials including 
furniture, appliances, construction debris, etc.) in the  AG-1 Agricultural District on property 
described as follows and owned the petitioners: 
 


Part of the SE1/4 of the SW1/4 Section 15 Scott Township 42N, R1E of the 3rd 
P.M., Ogle County, IL, 5.0 acres, more or less 
Property Identification Number: 11-15-300-003 
Common Location: 12488 E. Utility Rd. 


 
Hopkins moves to concur with the Zoning Board of Appeals and adopt an Ordinance to approve 
#9-08 Special Use Permit (O-2009-0201) with the following conditions: 
 


1. All proposals and representations made by the applicant and/or their representative 
shall be conditions of the Special Use Permit, including, but not necessarily limited 
to, the installation of screening (6' high fence) as depicted and described on the 
Concept Plan submitted as part of the petition for Special Use Permit. Said 
fence/screening shall be installed within ninety (90) days of the approval of this 
Special Use Permit. 


 
 2.   There shall be no outside storage and/or accumulation of junk (as defined by the Ogle 
   County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance), waste, inoperable and/or unlicensed motor  
   vehicles, etc. on the site. 
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 3.   There shall be no storage on the site of dumpsters containing waste materials in   
   excess of twenty-four (24) hours, provided any dumpster containing waste is    
   completely covered or enclosed. 
 
 4.   All dumpsters shall be stored within the area enclosed by fence/buildings and out of  
   view from the public road at all times. 
 
 5.   This special use permit shall be valid for a period of five (5) years from the date of  
   approval by the Ogle County Board. The Supervisor of Assessments and Planning &  
   Zoning Committee of the Ogle County Board shall have the delegated responsibility  
   and authority to either extend or discontinue the Special Use Permit upon the    
   expiration of said five (5) year period, giving due consideration to the continued   
   compatibility of the authorized use with the surrounding area and other applicable  
   factors as determined by the Committee. The Committee shall give notice of its intent 
   to act on this matter as provided herein to the owner of the land to which the Special  
   Use Permit applies, to all adjacent land owners, to the Village of Davis Junction, and  
   to Scott Township. 
 
Saunders seconds. Rice asks Hopkins how long has this facility been in business. Hopkins states 
it has been in business for 17 ½ years. Janes comments on the grave concerns of the water 
facility which is within 1000 feet radius of the site. Chairman Rice asks if this information was 
presented during the hearing. Janes said no sir, it was not. Chairman Rice asks what has 
happened in the last seventeen years with this business being there. Janes states the well has only 
been put in a couple of years ago. White asks for a roll call vote. Gouker asks for clarification at 
the end of the 5 year period? Hopkins states the petitioner would have to come back and ask for 
an extension. Reibel states he would have to come before the Planning and Zoning Committee to 
either extend the Special Use Permit or discontinue. The ZBA thought the 5 years would be a 
good time to re-establish discussion. Hopkins asks if this Special Use Permit can be pulled if any 
of the conditions are not met. Reibel states yes, if there are outstanding violations on the 
conditions it can be revoked. Reibel says you have to give the landowner an opportunity to fix 
any violations. Saunders asks for clarification on the well Janes was referring to in his 
comments. Janes says the well belongs to the Village of Davis Junction. Saunders states they 
drilled this well after this business has been at this location for 17 years. Janes states he doesn’t 
think anyone knew this business was located at the location since it wasn’t zoned. Barnes states 
they have had problems with this petitioner cleaning up the place. Chairman Rice asks what the 
other committees have recommended from Hopkins. Hopkins states Ogle County Regional 
Planning Commission was in favor – ZBA was in favor and the Planning & Zoning Committee 
was a tie vote. Huntley asks if the Township Planning Commission made a recommendation – 
Hopkins states the Township Planning Commission sent a letter not recommending this petition. 
Gouker states his concerns regarding this petition and we should deny this request. Colbert has a 
question regarding condition #3. Hopkins explains the need to possibly keep a container(s) 
overnight due to the landfill is closed and he will have to wait until morning to deliver the 
container(s). Hopkins states he would like to find another place out in the country – but due to 
the economic times he is unable. DeArvil states he has received several warnings as far back as 
1997 to clean his location up and he has not made much improvement. He received a zoning 
violation in November of 2007 and still hasn’t tried to make much of an effort. Reibel states the 
dumpsters were not there at that time and the past violations were for assorted junk. Boes says he 
voted no on this at the Planning & Zoning Committee because the property owner has 
continuously ignored the County Ordinances and State’s Attorney notices. A Roll Call vote is 
taken: 
 
YES:   Diehl, Hopkins, Huntley, Kenney, Nye, Saunders, Stahl, Bauer and Rice 
 
NO:   Boes, Bowers, Colbert, Colson, DeArvil, Gouker, Gronewold, Heuer, Horner,   
    Janes, Kilker, White, Williams and Barnes 
 
ABSENT:  Messer 
 


The motion is defeated on a roll call vote.(Placed on file) 
 
Public Comment –  
 
Colson asks if this would be the time to bring up the Resolution regarding the authorship of 
meeting minutes. It was recommended he present this Resolution to the Board during New 
Business. 
 







  


 
Ogle County Board Meeting 


February 17, 2009 
Page 9 


 
 
Road & Bridge – Resolution for County Bridge Construction – 2009-0202 
 Huntley moves to approve Section 05-00233-00-BR, Steward Road Overpass, Award and 
Appropriation Resolution: $100,000.00 from County Bridge Fund – (Resolution 2009-0202). 
Colson seconds and the motion carries on a voice vote.(Placed on file) 
 
Road & Bridge – Supplemental Resolution for County Road Construction – 2009-0203 
 Huntley moves to approve Supplemental Resolution for County Road Construction to 
appropriate $37,949.76 from County Motor Fuel Tax, $64,100.14 from Federal Aid Matching 
fund, $8,672.26 from Engineering fund, and $54,965.00 from County Aid to Bridge fund to 
Section 04-00229-00-FP, Center Road (Resolution 2009-0203). DeArvil seconds and the motion 
carries on a voice vote.(Placed on file) 
 
Road & Bridge – Supplemental Resolution for County Road Construction – 2009-0204 
 Huntley moves to approve the Supplemental Resolution for County Road Construction to 
appropriate $79,017.42 from County Motor Fuel Tax and $79,017.43 from Federal Aid Matching 
fund to Section 06-00238-00-RS, Pines Road (Resolution 2009-0204). Hopkins seconds and the 
motion carries on a voice vote.(Placed on file) 
 
Road & Bridge – County Maintenance Resolution – 2009-0205 
 Huntley moves to approve the 2009 County Motor Fuel Tax Resolution, Appropriate 
expenditure of $650,000 for Section 09-00000-0X-GM, General Maintenance (Resolution 2009-
0205). Colson seconds and the motion carries on a voice vote.(Placed on file) 
 
Road & Bridge – Supplemental County Maintenance Resolution – 2009-0206 
 Huntley moves to approve the 2008 County Motor Fuel Tax Supplemental Resolution, 
Appropriate expenditure of $291,006.32 for Section 08-00000-0X-GM, General Maintenance 
(Resolution 2009-0206). Kenney seconds and the motion carries on a voice vote.(Placed on file) 
 
Road & Bridge – Ordinance for the Establishment of an Altered Speed Zone – 2009-0301 
 Huntley presents the Ordinance for the Establishment of an Altered Speed Zone on Mulford 
Rd in Monroe Center. This is presented this month and will be voted on at the March Ogle 
County Board Meeting.  
 
Road & Bridge – Joint Bridge Agreement Resolution – 2009-0207 
 Huntley moves to approve the Joint Bridge Agreement for the extension of a pipe culvert on 
Brookville Road between Ogle County (80.4%) and Carroll County (19.6%); Participation levels 
based upon assessed valuations – Section 08-07121-00-BR (Resolution 2009-0207). White 
seconds and the motion carries on a voice vote.(Placed on file) 
 
Road & Bridge – Resolution for County Bridge Construction – 2009-0208 
 Huntley moves to approve the Award & Appropriation Resolution Section 2009 County Pipe 
Supply $12,700.00 from County Aid to Bridge Fund (Resolution 2009-0208). DeArvil seconds 
and the motion carries on a voice vote.(Placed on file) 
 
Road & Bridge – Resolution for McKenney’s Island Street Vacation – 2009-0209 


Huntley moves to approve Vacation of the described portion of Lot 37 on McKenneys Island 
Subdivision (Resolution 2009-0209). Colson seconds. The Island is located across from County 
Farm Road. The petitioner owns the property on both sides of the vacated road on the Island. The 
motion carries on a voice vote.(Placed on file and Recorded #2009-00902127) 
  
Ogle County Claims – Clerk reads the claims:  
 


• Payments in Vacation – January 2009  -  $151,806.65 
• County Board Payments -  February  2009 – $117,130.40 
• County Highway Fund – $78,478.64 
 


Bauer moves to approve the claims as presented, Kenney seconds. Gronewold asks the Sheriff if 
these are the first tasers ordered. Sheriff Beitel states this is the 2nd order. The motion carries on a 
voice vote.(Placed on file) 
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COMMITTEE REPORTS 
  
The following committee minutes have been placed on exhibit: 911 ETS Board, Blackhawk Hills 
RC&D, Executive and State’s Attorney, Finance and Insurance, GIS Committee, HEW & Solid 
Waste, Ill Assoc of Co Bd Members,  Juvenile & Probation/Judiciary & Circuit Clerk, LRP-
Courthouse Renovations, Mental Health Board, Planning & Zoning – Supervisor of 
Assessments, Road & Bridge and Sheriff & Coroner/Buildings & Grounds/IT Committee.  
 
The following committees had no minutes to file: Board of Health, LRP –Emergency Operations 
Center, Liquor Commission, Personnel & Salary - County Clerk, Regional Planning 
Commission, Safety Committee and UCCI/ICRMT. 
 
Long Range Planning 
Courthouse Remodeling  Minutes placed on exhibit 
 
Update on project Stahl says the Committee has discussed: 
 


o Waiting for feedback from Paint Specialist 
o Project is on track for June Construction 
o Committee has been assigned to track antiques at Courthouse 


which will stay at Courthouse – Chairman Rice states the 
Committee members will be Bonnie Hendrickson (Chairman) – 
Sheryl Hopkins – Kristine Daws, Jeanne Scholl and Peri Query 


o Geo-Thermal testing needs to be re-done at companies expense 
o Next meeting scheduled for Tuesday, February 24th at 9:00 a.m. 
 


Ad-Hoc Committee White asks if this committee needs to be approved by the County 
Board. Chairman Rice states this is an Ad-Hoc Committee and will 
only be reviewing the antiques from the Courthouse and making a 
recommendation to the Board. Bowers moves to approve the Inventory 
Courthouse Antiques Committee which will be: 


 
   Bonnie Hendrickson – Chairman 
   Sheryl Hopkins – Kristine Daws – Jeanne Scholl and Peri Query 
   
  Saunders seconds. White asks since this was not listed on the Agenda - 


will we need a motion to suspend the Rules? Heuer states we will need 
  to suspend the Rules. Bauer moves to suspend the Rules of Order per 


     #25. Kenney seconds and the motion carries to suspend the Rules.        
 
  The motion to appoint the Ad-Hoc Inventory Courthouse Antiques 


Committee which will consist of Bonnie Hendrickson as Chairman, 
Sheryl Hopkins, Kristine Daws, Jeanne Scholl and Peri Query carries 
on a voice vote. 


  
Resolution 2009-0210 Stahl presents Resolution 2009-0210 authorizing $101,398.84 to be 


paid out of the Long Range Planning Fund as presented and Bowers 
seconds. Barnes asks why are we paying Verzieg $10,000 when they 
haven’t drilled 300 feet. The report says they quit at 240 feet. We are 
going to pay them the full amount? Chairman Rice states it was an all 
inclusive contract. The motion carries on a voice vote.(Placed on file)  


 
Executive Committee Minutes placed on exhibit 
 
Update on Springsted  Chairman Rice updates the Board Members on the search for the   
      County Administrator –  


 There were a total of  41 applicants  
 Springsted will be recommending 13 applicants to the 


   Executive Committee  
 Executive Committee will meet in Closed Session on  


 Friday, February 20th at 10:00 a.m. to review applications 
 March 13th will be an off-site visit with Candidates,  


 Department Heads and County Board 
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Resolution 2009-0213  Chairman Rice presents the Resolution Setting Governance of Rules   
      and Procedures  County Board Chairman or Vice-Chairman      
      Establishing a Quorum for Committee Meetings. Chairman Rice states 
      Heuer worked with State’s Attorney Ben Roe on the language of this  
      Rules of Order change. Nye moves to approve the resolution and  
      Colbert seconds. Gouker asks if a Rules of Order change should be  
      changed by an Ordinance and not Resolution. Roe states a Resolution    
      will suffice. County Clerk Huntley states historically a Rule of Order  
      change has been presented by a Resolution. A Roll Call vote is taken: 
 
YES:  Bowers, Colbert, Diehl, Heuer, Hopkins, Horner, Huntley, Kenney, Nye,      
   Saunders, Stahl, White and Bauer 
 
NO:  Colson, DeArvil, Gouker, Gronewold, Janes, Kilker, Williams, Barnes, Boes and  
   Rice 
 
ABSENT:  Messer 
 


The motion carries on a roll call vote.(Placed on file) 
 
Resolution 2009-0215 
                 and          
Resolution 2009-0216  There are two Resolutions to change the meeting location of future   
     County Board Meetings. Chairman Rice says Barnes presented a    
     Resolution to him from the Farm Bureau to use their facilities. White  
     would like to see the County Board Meeting time remain at 5:30 p.m..  
     There was discussion on which Resolution could be voted on tonight    
     and since the subject is on the Agenda we can present and vote on  
     either Resolution. The consensus from the board is they would like to   
     see the meetings remain at 5:30 p.m. Bauer moves to approve  
     Resolution 2009-0216 to move the County Board Meetings to the Ogle  
     County Farm Bureau Building. Barnes seconds and a roll call vote is  
     called: 
 
YES:  Colbert, Colson, DeArvil, Diehl, Gouker, Gronewold, Heuer, Huntley, Janes,  
   Kilker, Saunders, Stahl, White, Williams, Barnes, Bauer, Boes, Bowers and  
   Rice 
 
NO:  Hopkins, Horner, Kenney and Nye 
 
ABSENT:  Messer 
 


The motion carries on a roll call vote.(Placed on file) 
 
Chairman Comments 
♦ Chairman Rice has been working with Allied Moving from Sycamore to provide a spec 


sheet for the moving of the Courthouse to Mt Morris 
 
Unfinished Business –  
♦ Bowers would like to remind Board Members to complete the Mental Health Board Survey 


she had the County Clerk’s Office e-mail during the week 
 
New Business –  
♦  Colson presents a Resolution he drafted regarding the Authorship of Meeting Minutes -


Gouker states this is already a State Law and doesn’t require a Resolution – Chairman Rice 
suggests we send this Resolution to State’s Attorney Ben Roe to make a recommendation 
at the next meeting. 


 
Communications –  
 


• Sales Tax for August 2008 was $33,321.62 and $78,491.82 
• Sales Tax for August 2007 was $46,269.09 and $77,933.64 
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Motion to Adjourn 
 At 7:00 p.m., Nye makes the motion to adjourn the February Ogle County Board meeting 
until Tuesday, March 17, 2009 at 5:30 p.m. at the Ogle County Farm Bureau Building. DeArvil 
seconds and the motion carries on a voice vote. 
 
 


W. Ed Rice 
Chairman - Ogle County Board 


 
 
Attest: Rebecca Huntley, Ogle County Clerk & 
         Ex-officio Clerk of the Ogle County Board 

























Executive & State’s Attorney Committee Meeting 
 


February 11, 2009 
 


Tentative Minutes 
 


1. Call to Order: Chairman Rice called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. Present: Fred Horner, Don 
Huntley, Skip Kenney, Lyle Hopkins, Maggie Nye, Kim Stahl and Pat Saunders. Others: Treasurer John 
Coffman, Assistant State’s Attorney Aaron Wiles, Sheriff Greg Beitel, County Engineer Curtis Cook, 
Lynne Kilker, Marcia Heuer and Don Conn. Absent: Jason Bauer (arrived at 4:20 p.m.). 
 


2. Approval of Minutes: January 14, 2009: Motion by Huntley, 2nd by Hopkins to approve the minutes. 
Motion carried. 
 


3. Public Comment: None 
 


4. Sheriff & Coroner / Building & Grounds Committee Report: Committee Chairman discussed issues 
about Weld Park roads and their conditions, internet / email access outage for 3 days due to radio 
microwave failure and security for County Board Meetings held at Judicial Center.  
 


5. Road & Bridge Committee Report: Committee Chairman Huntley stated there will be 8 items before the 
County Board.  
 


6. Personnel / Salary & County Clerk Committee Report: Committee Chairman Kenney stated they 
discussed issues with the Employers Association wage survey, employee health benefits information and 
Marcia Heuer prepared a wage comparison of clerical employees of the County. 
 


7. Executive Committee: 
a. County Administrator Search: Chairman Rice stated Springsted is narrowing from 35 applicants 


down to 10, and then the Executive will narrow it down to 5 for interviews. 
 


b. Tax Abatement – Project Alfa: Motion by Kenney, 2nd by Huntley to recommend approval of 
Project Alfa to the full County Board. Motion carried. 
 


c. Tax Abatement – Project Buffer: Motion by Huntley, 2nd by Nye to recommend approval of 
Project Buffer to the full County Board. Motion carried. 
 


d. Vice-Chairman Election: Discussion took place; Vice-Chairman of County Board is 
automatically assigned Vice-Chairman of Executive & State’s Attorney Committee. 
 


8. Zoning Committee Report: Committee Chairman Hopkins stated they will have 1 item for the County 
Board. 
 


9. HEW & Solid Waste Committee Report: Committee Chairman Bauer stated they have no 
recommendation for the Mental Health “708” Board at this time because they are looking at 
restructuring the interview process. He also stated Janet Kacvinsky (Lee/Ogle ROE) gave a brief 







explanation on their truancy program.  
 


10. Finance & Insurance Committee Report: Committee Chairman Hopkins stated the Committee reviewed 
the current budget and everything looks good and had an annual review of coverages. 
 


11. Judiciary Committee Report: Committee Chairman Nye stated there is nothing to report on. 
 


12. Long Range Planning Committee Report:  
a. Monthly Invoices: Motion by Stahl, 2nd by Huntley to approve the Long Range Planning bills in 


the amount of $101,398.84. Motion carried. 
 


b. Committee Chairman Stahl stated a special meeting will be held at 9 a.m. February 24th. Allied 
Moving of Sycamore was down to look at offices and will submit a bid for the project and the 
geo-thermal results are not ready yet. 
 


13. County Board Agenda Issues: Chairman Rice brought it to the Committee’s attention that future County 
Board Meetings will now be held in the Judicial Center due to maintenance issues and if they continue 
with a 5:30 p.m. start time, it will increase over-time for security. Motion by Nye, 2nd by Hopkins to 
recommend to the full County Board, a start time of 3 p.m. to help defray the over-time for security. 
Motion carried. 
 


14. Appointment – Resignation and/or Recommendations: Motion by Stahl, 2nd by Hopkins to recommend 
Tracie R. Sill to 911 ETSB. Motion carried. 
 


15. State’s Attorney Report: 
a. Monthly Invoices: Motion by Huntley, 2nd by Horner to approve the State’s Attorney bills in the 


amount of $3,799.74. Motion carried. 
 


b. Ogle County Rules of Order Resolution: Motion by Kenney, 2nd by Horner to recommend 
approval of the Ogle County Rules of Order Resolution. Motion carried. 
 


16. New Business: Horner addressed the Committee in regards to a lighting issue in Flagg Township; they 
referred him to Zoning Dept. 
 


17. Old Business: None 
 


18. Adjournment: As no further business was before the Committee, Chairman Rice declared the meeting 
adjourned. Time: 5:15 p.m. 


 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Tiffany O’Brien 

































COUNTY BOARD FEBRUARY 2009


Barnes, Jim
304 N. Mix St. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     
Oregon, IL 61061 Additional Meetings: 2 at $50 each 100.00$     


Mileage: 115 at .485 55.78$       
Addl. Expenses:


TOTAL 305.78$        


Bauer, Jason
PO Box 634 County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     
Byron, IL 61010 Additional Meetings: at $50 each -$           


20 miles round trip Mileage: 60 at .485 29.10$       
Addl. Expenses: -$           


TOTAL 179.10$        


Boes, Larry
4235 E. Countryview Dr. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     
Byron, IL 61010 Additional Meetings: at $50 each -$           


22 miles round trip Mileage: 44 at .485 21.34$       
Addl. Expenses: -$           


TOTAL 171.34$        


Bowers, Dorothy
8521 Olympia Drive County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     
Byron, IL 61010 Additional Meetings: 1 at $50 each 50.00$       


24 miles round trip Mileage: 96 at .485 46.56$       
Addl. Expenses: -$           


TOTAL 246.56$        


Colbert, Eleanor
910 N 10th St. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     
Rochelle, IL 61068 Additional Meetings: 1 at $50 each 50.00$       


40 miles round trip Mileage: 120 at .485 58.20$       
Addl. Expenses: -$           


TOTAL 258.20$        







COUNTY BOARD FEBRUARY 2009


Colson, Ron
131 S. Third St. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     
Oregon, IL 61061 Additional Meetings: at $50 each -$           


Mileage: 68 at .485 32.98$       
Addl. Expenses: -$           


TOTAL 182.98$        


DeArvil, Robert K
5980 Rt. 64 East County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     
Chana, IL  61015 Additional Meetings: at $50 each -$           


12 miles round trip Mileage: 36 at .485 17.46$       
Addl. Expenses: -$           


TOTAL 167.46$        


Diehl, Ben
6844 N. Mt. Morris Rd. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     
Leaf River, IL 61047 Additional Meetings: 1 at $50 each 50.00$       


24 miles round trip Mileage: 72 at .485 34.92$       
Addl. Expenses: -$           


TOTAL 234.92$        


Gouker, Kim
PO Box 926 County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     LRP Meetings: at $50 each -$        
Byron, IL 61010 Additional Meetings: at $50 each -$           Mileage: at .485 -$        


TOTAL -$       
20 miles round trip Mileage: 20 at .485 9.70$         


Addl. Expenses: -$           
TOTAL 159.70$        


Gronewold, Richard
11155 W. Coffman Rd. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     LRP Meetings: 1 at $50 each 50.00$    
Forreston, IL 61030 Additional Meetings: at $50 each -$           Mileage: 44 at .485 21.34$    


TOTAL 71.34$   
44 miles round trip Mileage: 88 at .485 42.68$       


Addl. Expenses: -$           
TOTAL 192.68$        







COUNTY BOARD FEBRUARY 2009


26 miles round trip


Heuer, Marcia
589 S. Harmony Rd. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     
Oregon, IL 61061 Additional Meetings: 4 at $50 each 200.00$     


14 miles round trip Mileage: 494 at .485 239.59$     
Addl. Expenses:


TOTAL 589.59$        


Hopkins, Lyle
7074 W. Penn Corner Rd. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     LRP Meetings: 1 at $50 each 50.00$    
Polo, IL 61064 Additional Meetings: 5 at $50 each 250.00$     Mileage: 24 at .485 11.64$    


TOTAL 61.64$   
24 miles round trip Mileage: 135 at .485 65.48$       


Addl. Expenses: -$           
TOTAL 465.48$        


Horner, Fred
919 N. 9th St. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     LRP Meetings: at $50 each -$        
Rochelle, IL 61068 Additional Meetings: 1 at $50 each 50.00$       Mileage: at .485 -$        


TOTAL -$       
40 miles round trip Mileage: 160 at .485 77.60$       


Addl. Expenses: -$           
TOTAL 277.60$        


Huntley, Don
5038 S. Chana Rd. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     
Chana, IL 61015 Additional Meetings: 1 at $50 each 50.00$       


20 miles round trip Mileage: 84 at .485 40.74$       
Addl. Expenses: -$           


TOTAL 240.74$        


Janes, R. Daniel
3044 N. Meridian Rd. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     
Stillman Valley, IL 61084 Additional Meetings: at $50 each -$           


Mileage: 78 at .485 37.83$       
Addl. Expenses: -$           


TOTAL 187.83$        
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Rochelle, IL 61068 Additional Meetings: 3 at $50 each 150.00$     


30 miles round trip
Addl. Expenses:


TOTAL 358.20$        


Oregon, IL 61061 Additional Meetings: at $50 each -$           


4 miles round trip
Addl. Expenses:


TOTAL 151.94$        


Rochelle, IL 61068 Additional Meetings: at $50 each -$           Mileage: 44 at .485 


44 miles round trip
Addl. Expenses:


TOTAL 192.68$        


Rochelle, IL 61068 Additional Meetings: at $50 each -$           Mileage: at .485 


40 miles round trip
Addl. Expenses:


TOTAL 208.20$        


Rochelle, IL 61068 Additional Meetings: 7 at $50 each 350.00$     Mileage: 120 at .485 


40 miles round trip
Addl. Expenses:


TOTAL 839.73$        


Kenney Jr, John "Skip"
10376 Hickory Ridge Dr. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     


Mileage: 120 at .485 58.20$       
-$           


Kilker, Lynne
PO Box 243 County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     


Mileage: 4 at .485 1.94$         
-$           


Messer, Mel
720 Kelley Dr. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     LRP Meetings: 1 at $50 each 50.00$    


21.34$    
TOTAL 71.34$   


Mileage: 88 at .485 42.68$       
-$           


Nye, Marguerite
1257 Tilton Park Dr. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     LRP Meetings: at $50 each -$        


-$        
TOTAL -$       


Mileage: 120 at .485 58.20$       
-$           


Rice, W. Ed
1049 N. 8th St. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 400.00$     LRP Meetings: 6 at $50 each 300.00$  


58.20$    
TOTAL 358.20$ 


Mileage: 185 at .485 89.73$       
-$           







COUNTY BOARD FEBRUARY 2009


Polo, IL  61064 Additional Meetings: 2 at $50 each 100.00$     


35 miles round trip
Addl. Expenses:


TOTAL 283.95$        


Oregon, IL 61061 Additional Meetings: at $50 each -$           Mileage: at .485 


Addl. Expenses:
TOTAL 150.00$        


Forreston, IL 61030 Additional Meetings: at $50 each -$           


44 miles round trip
Addl. Expenses:


TOTAL 214.02$        


Byron, IL 61010 Additional Meetings: at $50 each -$           


28 miles round trip
Addl. Expenses:


TOTAL 177.16$        


Long Range Planning 612.52$        


Saunders, Patricia E.
14738 W. Milledgeville Rd County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     


Mileage: 70 at .485 33.95$       
-$           


Stahl, Kim
904 Adams St. County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     LRP Meetings: 1 at $50 each 50.00$    


-$        
TOTAL 50.00$   


Mileage: at .485 -$           
-$           


White, Paul
PO Box 926 County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     


Mileage: 132 at .485 64.02$       
-$           


Williams, Dennis
9550 Woodgate Lane County Board Salary: 1-2-3- Meetings 150.00$     


Mileage: 56 at .485 27.16$       
-$           


GRAND TOTALS
County Board 6,435.83$     
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AN ORDINANCE FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT 
OF AN ALTERED SPEED ZONE 


 
IT IS HEREBY DECLARED by the County Board of Ogle County, Illinois, that the basic 
statutory vehicular speed limits established by Section 11-601 of the Illinois Vehicle code are 
greater, or less, than that considered reasonable and proper on the street or highway listed in the 
following Schedule for which Ogle County has maintenance responsibility and which is not 
under the jurisdiction of the Department of Transportation, State of Illinois. 
 
BE IT FURTHER DECLARED that Ogle County has caused to be made an engineering and 
traffic investigation upon the streets or highways listed in the Schedule: and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER DECLARED that, by virtue of Section 11-604 of the above Code and subject 
to approval by the highway department of said County, this Board determines and declares that 
reasonable and proper absolute maximum speed limits upon those streets and highways 
described in the Schedule shall be as stated therein. 
 
BE IT FURTHER DECLARED that this Board has been advised that the highway department of 
said County that the proposed maximum speed limit for the zone or zones of said street or 
highway described in the Schedule has been approved and signs giving notice thereof shall be 
erected in conformance with the standards and specifications contained in the Illinois Manual of 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways. 
 
BE IT FURTHER DECLARED that this ordinance shall take effect immediately after the 
erection of said signs giving of the maximum speed limits. 
 
I, Rebecca Huntley , County Clerk in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, 
and keeper of the records and files thereof, as provided by statute, do hereby certify the 
foregoing to be a true, perfect, and complete copy of an ordinance adopted by the County Board  
of Ogle County, at its meeting held at Oregon on      March 17                            2009.           
 
 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said County  
at my office in Oregon in said County, this 17th day of March                                2009.
 


(SEAL) 
 
        
 County Clerk  
 
 
Date        March 17,                      2009
                                                                                                                                                                             Chairman 
 


SCHEDULE OF ALTERED SPEED ZONES 
Zone 1: On Mulford Road 45 MPH from 1130' North of IL Rte 72 to  IL Rte 72 in Monroe Twp. 
Zone 2:  On Mulford Road 40 MPH from 2660' South of IL Rte 72 to IL Rte 72 in Monroe Twp. 
 


ORDINANCE 2009-0301


PRESENTED AT THE FEBRUARY 17, 2009 OGLE COUNTY BOARD MEETING
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